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Financial Highlights

SRR

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
“Z-ImE —2-=f —E-CF —E——fF —E-EF
HKS$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million
BEATL BEAET BEAT BEAT BEAT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&) (&%)
Revenue Yrzs
— Semiconductor distribution —ERESH 2,671.7 2,230.1 3,064.3 2,801.3 2,389.3
— Consumer electronic product - HBREfED 69.7 100.8 86 105.8 68.4
— Others —Efth 25 36 233 20 -
2,749.90 2,3345 3,173.6 2,909.1 2,457.7
Profit/(loss) before interest, tax, depreciation, B 718 BB 4 &
amortisation and non-cash items BENEREBEA
w7/ (B8)
- Corporate UNE] (8.5) 24.1 (20.7) 67.2 17.5
- Venture capital -8l 26.1 15.2 (5.9) - -
- Semiconductor distribution —YEESE 76.5 473 61.5 50.4 455
— Consumer electronic product ~-HBEETEMR (7.8) 2.5) 73 195 24
- Others —Efth (5.6) 29 (8.6) 54 19)
80.7 81.2 336 142.5 63.5
Depreciation and amortisation e L (13.8) (14.9) (13.1) (9.3) (4.6)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to IATATEEREE
w7/ (EE)
— Shareholders of the Company NS 3.4 9.2 2.4 1236 76.8
- Non-controlling interests — R R 9.7) (16.1) (1.9) (0.5) -
(6.3) (6.9) 0.5 123.1 76.8
Dividends (i8]
~ Interim — 5 - - 6.1 15.7 14.0
— Proposed final —BERH - 6.0 - 24.8 20.9
- 6.0 6.1 405 349
Dividends per share (HK cents) BRARS (GBIL)
— Interim — i - 1.0 3.0 3.0
~ Proposed final —BERH - 1.0 - 4.0 40
- 1.0 1.0 7.0 7.0
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Financial Highlights
BITSE A

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E2-mE —E-=f CECF 2% CE-TF
HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$ ' million
BEAR BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
(Restated) (Restated)
(mE5)) (EE3))
Total assets BERE 1,335.5 1,482.8 1,443.4 1,388.1 871.0
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARDEE 694.1 674.8 692.5 685.8 3885
Total equity EniafE 668.7 647.2 634.7 680.2 3809
Borrowings and finance lease payable RERBERENE 5114 536.3 579.0 507.3 369.1
Cash and cash equivalents RekZERRLER 87.8 87.0 166.5 287.4 151.8
Equity investments at fair value through EREREATEBIE
profit or loss BARE 199.1 186.2 1111 2233 104.8
Cash and cash equivalents and BeRERBELEAR
equity investments BRARE 286.9 2732 2776 510.7 256.6
Total debt to total equity EReEEAEGREI LT 76% 83% 91% 75% 97%
Current assets to current liabilities MBEERRBBRELE 152% 122% 127% 148% 129%
Cash and cash equivalents and equity SRR RERAREEE R
investments per share (HKS) RARE (B) 0.40 0.45 0.46 0.82 0.55
Total equity per share (HK$) ShkEmeE (BL) 0.94 1.07 1.05 1.10 0.82
Revenue to property, plant and equipment (x) Wz BN E HER
RBLE (fF) 51.9 19.6 24.2 43.0 36.0
Revenue to inventories (x) BT EHE (1F) 10.5 6.7 10.7 113 23.1
Revenue to trade receivables (x) lhmEERE FER
L (f2) 125 10.4 1.7 12.2 17
Revenue to trade payables, deposits received IS E2fERT & HER TN
and accrued expenses (x) BlRe Rk
ERTE AL E (fF) 20.9 8.1 15.0 15.1 24.7
Revenue to borrowings (x) R ER X (1) 5.4 44 55 57 6.7
AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statemegt

Dr. Hon. So Yuk Kwan & &5 {8+
Chairman = &

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am honored to present the annual
results of AV Concept Holdings Limited (“AV Concept” or the “Company”)
together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2014 (the “year under review").

Thanks to the fast-growing global demand for smartphones and handheld
tablets, in particular the rapidly increasing market share of low-end mobile
phones in China, the Group recorded rather satisfactory results during the year
under review. However, as the recovery of the US and Europe retail markets
remain slow, consumer products market was dragged which posed a severe
impact to the Group’s consumer electronic product business. For the year
under review, the Group recorded a turnover of HK$2,749.9 million (2013:
HK$2,334.5 million), representing a 17.8% growth that brought forth by
semiconductor distribution business. However, due to the dropped sales of
consumer electronic products under fierce competition and sluggish market
environment, the Group's gross profit slightly increased 4.0% to HK$111
million compared to last year (2013: HK$106.7 million).

Despite the challenging macro-economic environment, the Group sat clear
and prudent development strategies and fully utilized its resources to develop
potential business in order to achieve satisfactory business growth. With
excellent quality of products and effective marketing strategies, the brand
awareness of SOUL® has managed to swipe across the world with a forefront
position in the US, Europe market and other major countries since 2011.
However, the growth of retail market was far from expectation due to fierce
global competition and increase in marketing and sales costs. In view of this,
the Group has planned to discontinue the SOUL® headphone business in order
to focus its resources in developing the semiconductor business as well as
mobile phone applications and games that come with synergic effects.

RAEREZESFTEMAMAELE 2 AV Concept Holdings
Limited (TAV Concept ] 3k [AR A &) & E B Q&
(#B [ A5E ) BEE-_Z—HF=A=+—HLEFE
(IEEFENEFEE-

REREHREEETFREFREMOTRIRER L
HEFEPEBFERTSEERUSRER AEAEER
REBEFETRTHEOEBFIER - BET ER U REON
BTSN EETERRERBERUKRAZE HERT
LEEHE 2ASENEERETEMERERRR
HEE - NEBEFE  AEBRE %% /H2,749,900,000
Bt (ZZF—=4:2,334,500,000% 7T ) © fEL B8 D
R TEAEI T FF4917.8%  ERHAEBEE FESE
BEBRREBHTRT  HE T LB EEGE
£ £111,000,000/ 7T ( —F — =4 : 106,700,000/
TT)  BEFRMA40% o

HAZBREBERFERE  AEECETBHMERENE
RER AONBERERABINES HURGHE
BEBIER - SOULPE#B —T— —FHEHNUE A
B RAE Mo E R AR IS B R B REUM
TSREESTISERR WITAZRZEETEZER: A
2 BRERMISHEF B HERBEERA LK TEHS
BREVBERESR - EER I AEBEERRENRE
HIE T ZSOULPE X B E BB R ILEE X UEF
BRBINBRLEROHEBALBEABHRR
PR TR A2 S Ml B P B 05 o

AV Concept Holdings Limited 7
Annual Report 2014 4 4



Chairman’s Statement

As SOUL® headphone business has become a discontinued operation, the
associated loss drove down the profit attributable to shareholders to HK$3.4
million during the year under review (2013: HK$9.2 million). In the long run,
this decision will raise the competitiveness of the Group and reduce operation
cost. We believe the success of SOUL® headphone business in terms of its
global sales has laid a solid foundation for the Group in expanding global
business in the future.

During the period under review, the semiconductor distribution business
continued to enjoy economic benefits from the fast-growing global demand
of smartphones and handheld tablets. Driven by the semiconductor
distribution business of Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Samsung
Electronics”), the growth achieved by the Group's joint venture, AVP
Electronics Limited (“AVPEL"), was remarkable. Smartphone business in
China will continue to enjoy huge untapped market opportunities under
strong demand for mid to low-end smartphones. A report from global mobile
internet industry data agency iMedia Research shows that the number of
smartphone users in China took up as much as 33.9% of the world in the
first half of 2014. The report also states that the market size of China mobile
games is expected to reach RMB19 billion in 2014 with number of mobile
games users exceeding 450 million. The Group will focus its resources in
expanding smartphones and mobile games related businesses in order to bring
greater returns for shareholders.

PROSPECT AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Looking into future, success of the semiconductor distribution business
has provided the Group with a greater and more beneficial synergic effect
in developing mobile gaming applications and mobile game publishing
platforms. With more than two decades of solid experience in semiconductors
distribution, the Group has established its market reputation and credit,
together with the close ties with key mobile phone manufacturers, AV
Concept is managed to pre-install the mobile games distribution platform
apps, Freedu, in the smartphones of the semiconductor clients in order to
speed up the development of Koocell Limited (“Koocell”) in the smartphone
market. It is a plan to leverage on the platform to further promote mobile
games developed by Me2on Co., Ltd. (“Me2on”), a fast-growing mobile
games developer and publisher in Korea invested by the Group, so as to
develop the AV Concept smartphone business eco-chain which takes a very
unique advantage. During the period under review, Koocell and Me2on
launched several popular smartphone games, which have drawn significant
influence in Hong Kong and other Asian regions. In future, the Group will
assist Me2on for its business expansion in Northeast Asia and explore bigger
market opportunities.

8 AV Concept Holdings Limited
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ENAREEESOULPE B E R BRI L 5T - BT
EEAE VA B 5 18 B B 01 BE 4F 2 N BR S AR S FE AL S ) TR
%3,400,000% 7L (=Z — =4 :9,200,000/8 7T ) ° K&
Rei R EEPIRAAEEFF /- BB **EBZK
BAPIHES - SOULCE H E F5 M A Th 2 3R 1% & 81 4¢ B
RAEERRREHIMREBETE RIFER -

FEESHEBROBEFENEESR
ﬁ%ﬂﬁ’f}i%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁiﬁi‘ﬁ AREESGENLER

2Aal ([AE)) E=ZE2EFERAR([=Z£FF])
#%% PHEBBHT BESAHE - PHTETFHR
%i‘%&*ﬁﬁﬁ%éﬁ?%&ﬁfﬁ’zﬂ’]ﬁﬁim@"l— HEEZH
BEATSBERTH 2B EREATERRER TR
Yk (IMedia Research)E SUIEFE K :%—V_qit
FFERHEEFRAL G2 EETFHAPHLES
33.9% : FEFF=F— @iqﬂli%iﬁilﬁm%%ﬁﬁﬂ—r};)\
R¥E190(E T FREBERERKRBBEBISEA K
EEREPERMBETREF R FRIZEIAR 2 2
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REFREETF
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af
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A1 BE A0 1S
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BEREREARTFRESDETFETRERNERT
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?%EFWZE%?/\T’EFW? F#%Eﬁﬁfﬁ%%@)ﬁﬁ’ﬂ
BRETFRABEASEARECFRERSHTARE
T2 Freedu PABNRKoocell Limited ([Koocell ] ) %S
EFHMmENER NEENTEEHLTaE—TH
BAEERANRRERBEFRERSRAERETA
FIMe2on Co., Ltd. ([Me2on | ) B F#E - ek BB
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AEEgHIHIMe2onE— P HRERILBER  UBEE
BRI TS E -



Despite the ever-changing economic environment, the Group continues to
maximize its profit by utilizing existing resources efficiently and maximizing
synergic effects between business segments. To keep the fast development
pace in the smartphone and smartphone mobile game market, the Group will
focus on game development and deliver good quality games, as well as to
bring better returns to shareholders.

To conclude, | would like to extend our sincere gratitude to all our
stakeholders including our customers and business partners, who have
reposed great trust in us and in our products. | also thank all of our employees
for supporting us in our business and helping us grow further. Through our
commitment to excellence and the realization of the group’s comprehensive
strategies, | believe we will realize further successes and deliver satisfactory
returns to our shareholders.

So Yuk Kwan
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 June 2014

Chairman’s Statement

ARE - EZENEERET AEEBEERRNAR
BER EMEBAE 2RO BRI FERAFE -
RIEEEETHE DT RERT SN REERKE
AEBERETNERMAE HELEEER ARRER
FEMR-

RE AAZBUBEROBIMERNE (BEEM
MEP BEAERKHE)BRMARETERRETRR-
R +ORHAEBE T —BEXHARRERERE BB
BIE—FPRE -AEENBETERBNEHEZEER
RE BAARERMSSINE PR BERESK
TR A8 A @ 3R o

F1Eig
5

B
—E-FENA=Z+tH
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Management
Discussion ‘and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The following sets out the financial highlights for the year ended 31 March
2014, with the comparative figures for the corresponding financial year of

BEENWmN O

RBELOEK A=

TREJBE_T—NWEF=RA=F+—RUEFEZUH
R ER-_Z-=FURFERAZLRETF-

2013.
2014 2013
—E-NF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
(Restated)
(fe&E7)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS HEREER
Revenue Wz
Semiconductor distribution F BB 5 2,677.7 2,230.1
Consumer electronic product HERETEM 69.7 100.8
Others Hh 2.5 36
2,749.9 2,334.5
Profit/(loss) before interest, tax, depreciation, BFE  BIE TE - #ER
amortisation and non-cash items B2 HA G (EE)
Corporate NET! (8.5) 24.1
Venture capital =1k 26.1 15.2
Semiconductor distribution 38 52 > 4 76.5 47.3
Consumer electronic product HERETE® (7.8) (2.5)
Others HAit (5.5) 2.9)
80.8 81.2
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH
Corporate NG (1.6) (1.7)
Venture capital Bl (1.0) (1.5)
Semiconductor distribution FE R 5 (7.0) (8.5)
Consumer electronic product SHEBBETEm (3.2) (3.2)
Others EAb (1.0) -
Total depreciation and amortisation WE RSB (13.8) (14.9)
Profit before interest and tax B ) B N B TE AT g 67.0 66.3
Interest expenses FlE R (13.1) (14.0)
Profit before tax from continuing operations FREA TS 2 BREL A g 53.9 52.3
Income tax FriSt (0.2) (3.4)
Profit for the year from continuing operations SRS E TS 2 F AR A 53.7 48.9
DISCONTINUED OPERATION ERIEREER
Loss for the year from a discontinued operation ~ B4R IFE & 2 FREE (60.0) (55.8)
Loss for the year FHEE (6.3) (6.9)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: AT ATEEFER
wHL (BE)
Owners of the Company PAN/NCIEZ 2SN 3.4 9.2
Non-controlling interests e T 9.7) (16.1)
(6.3) (6.9)
AV Concept Holdings Limited 1 1
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWmN O

BUSINESS REVIEW

Global economic growth remains dampened and the road to recovery for
US and Europe remains long and rocky. Despite the challenging macro
economic environment, our long established business foundation as well as
our clear and prudent development strategies helped AV Concept to achieve
satisfactory growth in its semiconductor distribution business. Meanwhile, the
Group'’s joint ventures, AVP Electronics Limited and its subsidiaries (“AVPEL
Group”) even reached a turnover beyond expectation.

The Group’s turnover from continuing operations increased 17.8% to
HK$2,749.9 million in 2014, compared to HK$2,334.5 million in 2013.
Gross profit from continuing operations amounted to HK$111.0 million
(2013: HK$106.7 million) while gross profit margin from continuing
operations was 4.04% (2013: 4.57%). This was due to the decrease of sales
of the high-gross-margin consumer electronics products. Semiconductor
distribution business recorded significant growth, turnover jumped 20.1%
from HK$2,230.1 million in 2013 to HK$2,677.7 million in 2014. Turnover
of AVPEL Group was not consolidated in the Group's financial statements,
AVPEL Group recorded turnover surged 43.3% to HK$4,197.4 million (2013:
HK$2,928.9 million). Consumer electronic product business turnover was
HK$69.7 million (2013: HK$100.8 million).

As SOUL® headphone business has become a discontinued operation, the
associated loss drove down the profit attributable to shareholders to HK$3.4
million during the year under review (2013: HK$9.2 million).

Semiconductor Distribution Business

During 2014, the Group’s semiconductor distribution business recorded a
turnover of HK$2,677.7 million (2013: HK$2,230.1 million), representing a
significant growth of 20.1%. The Group continued to enjoy the economic
benefits from the fast growing global demand for smartphones and handheld
tablets. During the year under review, AVPEL Group recorded a significant
growth of 43.3% in turnover to HK$4,197.4 million (2013: HK$2,928.9
million) mainly brought forth by the semiconductor distribution of Samsung
Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Samsung Electronics”). Of which, the revenue growth
from the exclusive distribution of Samsung CMOS images sensors was the
most significant. While the growth in other Samsung Electronics products
under distribution including multi-chip packages and ARM processors were
also substantial.

1 2 AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report ()14 4

£ 0]

RIREBESRFERE BEQBEEF 2KMTMmE
R-MATBEERERE BEEREEREAKRET
PV ER M RBENBRERE  AEENTED
¥ EREBN@EFASRBIEBMNIER - M HRFZE
HERRBARIE (AR EXET BT AR

48 o
18

REBEBR T —MFEHE ML T A2,749,900,000
B W T — = ANEME 35 52,334,500,000
BT R H17.8% o AEMEXS 2 FEFIA111,000,000
BT (ZZ—=4:106,700,00087T) : EF XA
4.04% (ZZE—=F:1457% ) WX HREFE
ERETEMRMEE THRATH - LEESHERREIE
& BT —=4#2,230,100,000/8 T £ 4920.1%
%2,677,700,0005% 7T » [F 18 I & & 6 5 2N 52 [ B 7% 3
FARMATER B & ¥ 5 54,197,400,0008 70 (= F
— =% :2,928,900,000% 7T ) * NIEIE R A)43.3% ;8
BB TEMESE ¥ A69,700,0008 L (ZE—=
£ 1 100,800,000/ 7T ) °

EREBEEET ZSOULLEREAD R IR L ER &
FEARENEE SR OEFNESREREEMNT
[% 23,400,000/ 7T ( —Z&— =% : 9,200,000/ T) °

HEROHER
N-E—UFMEEEA2,677,700,000870 (ZF—=
4 :2,230,100,000/ 70 ) - EE I K £920.1% - A K H
MFEESEEBRROBTFRNEETER2EETF
BAMFEREMFROREER FRARBE=EETF
M ERE D GEEIEA ST - $R15 4 25 /54,197,400,000
I (ZZ — =4 :2,928,900,000/8 7T ) K IE 1 & 4
433% BROW-EE T2 BEEXE 2 HE LR
LhEBEE - HMOHERBE ZREHENS  FH
ARMEIE SR EF R EEBHTERIER-



Management Discussion and Analysis

According to the IDC’s Global Mobile Phone Tracker (“IDC Report”), China’s
total smartphone shipments reached 112 million in 1Q2014. Thanks to the
foresight of management, the entry into the mid to low-end smartphone
markets for the semiconductor distribution business has become a key growth
driver due to the sharp increase in shipments of mid to low-end smartphones
in China. IDC Report also mentions, under the fierce competition among the
Mainland China smartphone manufacturers, Chinese consumers nowadays
tend to purchase local smartphone brands with comparable performance as
of those international tier-1 brands but at a lower average selling price (ASP).
This makes mainland smartphones with prices below RMB2,000 a substantial
growth driver in the China’s smartphone market.

Consumer Electronic Product Business

During the year under review, US consumer market remained sluggish,
together with the intensified competition in the worldwide consumer
electronic product market. The Group's consumer electronic product business
was dragged. Despite our relentless effort in consolidating and promoting
the consumer electronic product distribution business, the sales was far from
satisfactory. The segment turnover was HK$69.7 million, dropped 30.9%
compared to last year (2013: HK$100.8 million).

In view of this, the Group has planned to discontinue the SOUL® headphone
business. And the Group will focus its resources in developing the
semiconductor business as well as mobile phone applications and mobile
games that come with synergic effects.

Mobile Application Business

The Group invested in Me2on Co., Ltd. (“Me2on”), a fast-growing mobile
games developer and publisher in Korea and Koocell Limited (“Koocell”), an
innovative mobile game company with mobile games publishing platform and
is dedicated in developing the most sought-after mobile applications as well
as mobile games and both have brought satisfactory business performance
during the period under review. The mobile phone application developed by
Koocell (including the popular Free4U application) has reached a total number
of 800,000 users since the launch. In January 2014, Koocell launched its first
mobile puzzle RPG Three Kingdoms related mobile game called “Tales of
Three Kingdoms” and is available for free download on both iOS and Android
platforms. This game targets the Mainland China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and
other Asian markets that are currently overwhelmed by Three Kingdoms-
themed smart phone games. Mobile application business is a new business to
the Group, which recorded a revenue of HK$2.5 million in 2014.

EIEET MmN DT

BEHSMAERBIDCR —E—HNFEFEMERI2RT
WHENBREET —S—NFEEHESEFRTY
BEIN2EN BREEFEZLEK  FMTEETH
MM EROHER AFEPEREEFREEE
MRREERES T KAREBS —EXREEH -
IDCEF IR EUR - B B F M b8 35 - 3R
ART AEEESTHEARBEE L HERRET
ALY BERSHEBEENRANRETFRER SEE
RZTARBUATZFH KAGETEEETFHEMER
TEEERIERE N

HEEEFERER

REESA XBEEBMSRHERS RR2EEER
BETERTSRFABNE FEENEERETE
MEGEEEEIINBR - LARMBERTEANE
EAOER e REEER BEEHEENHRAADN
BR-FR AEENEBEETEMEREEBRSE
69,700,000/ 7T * B A F T [##930.9% (=T —=%F:
100,800,000/ 7T ) °

BEN AEEBET ZSOULCE#IEAD R IHKEE
2B UERERBRINEREEMN LB O HER -
LURBEEEHRSERNFHEERRER KI5 E
;}’gc

FHERER
REEBETHRENGEEFREBRERFAERETA
A]—Me2on Co., Ltd. ([Me2on ]) * LARE R RTT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWmN D

A report from global mobile internet industry data agency iMedia Research
shows that the number of smart phone users in China took up as much as
33.9% of the world by 1H2014. The report also states that the expected
market size of China mobile games will reach RMB19 billion in 2014 with
number of mobile games users exceeding 450 million. Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology of PRC released the “Mobile Internet White Paper” in
May 2014 reiterating the importance of developing smart terminus industry.
Further, according to the statistics from China Semiconductor Industry
Association, semiconductor industry is showing signs of continuous growth.
The Group will focus its resources in expanding smart phones and mobile
games related businesses in order to bring greater returns for shareholders.

Venture Capital Business

During the period under review, the venture capital business of the Group
achieved a profit by recording a EBITDA of HK$26.1 million compared to last
year (2013: HK$15.2 million). During the year, the Group retained 33.13%
equity interest in Integrated Energy Limited. As of 31 March 2014, various
funds, equity investments, and debt securities were held at fair market value
of HK$199.1 million (2013: HK$186.2 million) in the Group. The management
monitored the Venture Capital Business by reference to the world financial
markets. Although global economy is volatile with uncertainties ahead, the
Group will strive for satisfactory results for its venture capital business.

Prospect

Despite the sluggish emerging economy as well as the tenuous economic
growth across the globe in 2014, the global mobile phone and mobile phone
related business is believed to be a new economy. By leveraging on the ride of
the growth in mobile phone market, the Group's semiconductor distribution
business is expected to maintain a significant growth.

The success of the semiconductor distribution business has provided the
Group greater and more beneficial synergic effect for developing the mobile
gaming applications and mobile game publishing platforms. Therefore,
the Group will devote more resources in consolidating the operating scale
of the semiconductor distribution business and expanding relevant sales
network. With more than two decades of solid experience in semiconductors
distribution, the Group has established its market reputation and credit,
together with the close ties with key mobile phone manufacturers, AV
Concept is managed to pre-install the mobile games distribution platform
apps Koocell in the smartphones of the semiconductor clients in order to
speed up the development of Koocell among the mid-to-low end smart
phone market. In future, it is the plan to leverage on this platform to further
promote Me2on and mobile game apps by other developers, so as to develop
the AV Concept smartphone business eco-chain which enjoys the very unique
advantage.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Later in 2014, Koocell will also launch a new smartphone game named
"GGO Football” which is created based on an animation cartoon series
“GGO Football” in China. It has been broadcasted in over 10 countries
and translated into different local languages such as Mandarin, English and
Spanish. This animation cartoon was the top-10 highly-rated animation
cartoon series in China. The Group believes that Koocell’s innovative and
highly efficient design and development ability in mobile games and other
apps will help to build the Group’s mobile application business eco-chain,
which will be able to bring satisfactory returns in the near future. In order to
speed up the growth in this area, and to show greater confidence towards
Koocell team, the Group increased the equity interest in Koocell from 51% to
100% in March 2014.

Me2on grows swiftly as well, with headquarters in Korea and regional offices
in Hong Kong, Taiwan, and the Mainland China. Me2on uses a push strategy
in which it pushes games to gamers through active digital marketing and
distribution through SNS and self-developed platforms.

To conclude, given the strong growth of the global smart phone and
handheld tablet market, together with the fast development of China mobile
gaming industry, the Group remains very optimistic about the semiconductor
distribution business, and expects to further strengthen the competitiveness of
this area to bring better returns for shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The total debt position as at 31 March 2014 and the corresponding gearing
ratio are shown as follows:

EIRET MmN DT

Koocell TN i =& — MU 4F A #E 4 & (GGO Football)
CHEEEFRER BV EEAAREERBHE (B
BRERN) ZHEER2ERTZERK UERF R
B OAMTESEMESTER KAZFBE+AZEK
BEEA & - £EME{ZKoocel £ & BE F HBEEL R H b F
HERREMAIRT RE KRR N EEL
SEMEEETFHREBERE YR T ARG RERRED

3R o &£ A T AR F 12 B A R & R R ¥ Koocell
MiEL RZT—MNF = A Koocel i * AR %L
FFAB51%ENET100% °

Me2oni KR - IREF AR R ER WHREE 48

&qﬂlﬂz“é 8 & I B IR o Me2oniR U #E SR A% -
I RXBERE R BRARE T EEBRBEGESE LA
%H%%E%H&ﬁ%ﬁ%o

BEME  BFIRREEFT RN FIREMTISRERD
B ARPBEFEMSHERR AEEHYTE)
HEBASFRLE MBUBMABREILRINEF
N RERIERERHEH

RBEERMBER
R-T-—ME=A=+—AzBEHRERRRERE
AEFELENT :

2014 2013

—E2-mE —F=%F

HKS$'million HK$ million

HEBETR BEATT

Cash and cash equivalents ReMERBERIEE 87.8 87.0
Equity investments at fair value through FREREATBEEIR

profit or loss fRAI& & 199.1 186.2

Cash and cash equivalents and REFFRBEELER &

equity investments RAIZE 286.9 2732

Borrowings and finance lease payable B R ENEERERIEA 511.4 536.3

Total equity REmiaE 668.7 647.2

Total debt to total equity BB R AT 2 & 76% 83%

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014 4 4



Management Discussion and Analysis
BB N DT

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had cash and cash equivalents (i.e.,, cash RZ-ZE—HWHEF=A=+—HB AEEZHERER
and bank balances and unpledged time deposits) of HK$87.8 million (2013: #R&EE (MR ERBTEFREERENEFIT) A
HK$87.0 million), while the Group's equity investments at fair value through ~ 87,800,000/ jt ( =% — =% : 87,000,000/ 7T ) -
profit or loss amounted to HK$199.1 million (2013: HK$186.2 million). The MASBEFREHEZAFEEINER IR AERE A
equity investments included a balanced mix of fixed income, equity and 199,100,000/ 7T ( =& —=4F : 186,200,000/ 7T ) ° %
alternative investments and such amount represented the cash reserves held ~ZAEBEEBFEEWA - BRARSZELE 2 FEES
for the Group's medium to long term business development and would form  ZEFRFEEREBREEH Hﬁiﬁﬁﬂiﬁ%?ﬁﬁzfﬁﬁ
an integral part of the Group's treasury. #E ABKASEEEES 2 —2H

The total debt to total equity ratio as at 31 March 2014 was 76% (2013: R-Z-—HF=ZR=+—HZEKRFERERETE 2
83%), while the Group's total equity as at 31 March 2014 was HK$668.7 thER76% (ZT—=%:83%) AEEZ E=EHE
million (2013: HK$647.2 million), with the total balances of cash and cash RZZ—WM4=F =+ —H A&668,700,000/ T (=%

equivalents and equity investments as at 31 March 2014 of HK$286.9 million ~ — =% :647,200,000/& 7T) " M & Rk ERIR ¢ IH B
(2013: HK$273.2 million). ERAGE 2 HEHRBENR S —NF=A=+T—0HA

286,900,000 7T ( =& — =4 : 273,200,000/ 7T °

The working capital position of the Group remains healthy. As at 31 March A&BEZEEESRADNABR - R_T-—EF=

2014, the liquidity ratio was 152% (2013: 122%). A=F+—HB RHEEHEXAE152% (=T —=4F:
122% ) °

2014 2013

—E-MF —E—=F

HK$'million HK$ million

BEBT BEBT

Current assets MBEE 976.3 983.5
Current liabilities mEEE (641.3) (808.0)
Net current assets mEEEFE 335.0 175.5
Current assets to current liabilities MBEERRSBEZLE 152% 122%

Management is confident that the Group follows a prudent policy in EEERXRGEAEEEEEEESKA T EKESE
managing its treasury position, and maintains a high level of liquidity to ensure & WIRIF RKFZREE S - MERNEBELFF
that the Group is well placed to take advantage of growth opportunities for — # - gt B ¥ RE S HEF| -

the business.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs cost in Hong Kong dollars and US
dollars. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider the impact of
foreign exchange exposure of the Group is minimal.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of contingent liabilities are set out in note 41 to the financial
statements.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2014, the Group employed a total of approximately 316
(2013: approximately 379) full-time employees. The Group recruits and
promotes individuals based on merit and their development potentials for
the positions offered. Remuneration package is determined with reference to
their performance and the prevailing salary levels in the market. In addition,
the Group operates share option schemes for eligible employees to provide
incentive to the participants for their contribution and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of the Group. Share options and discretionary bonuses
are granted based on the Group's and individual’s performances.

BEENWmN O

S B JEL B
REBAHRBRz W REE 2 KAEEZAB T RET
HE-ARAEZ([BZ])RR AREZIMNERRF
EEM-

HAREE
SRR 2 S E RN RN 41 -

=]

RZZE—NMF=ZA=+—B A5EEAEERL3164
(ZE—=F {3792 ) 2BEB AL BENREET
JRENMBIRBU FZERENMEAREABI -
FNEE2BETI  REATSERZHEKTE
FEeolbsh REBMABEEKIEB L HERETE Ut
SEEBRARNEERZMIEL B KRB E BT
SMERE - REERELRPNBEEADEAEERES
BARIRMIRE
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Hon. So Yuk Kwan, aged 64, is the founder, Chairman and Executive
Director of the Company. Dr. Hon. So Yuk Kwan is the father of Mr. So Chi
On. In the early 1980’s, he founded AV Concept Limited. Dr. So is primarily
responsible for overall business strategies and business development to the
Company. Dr. So has over 38 years of experience in the electronics industry.
Under his leadership, AV Concept achieved remarkable results in the sales and
marketing of semiconductors contributing to the appointment by Samsung
Electronics as its distributor since 1982. In 1989, AV Concept Singapore Pte.
Ltd. was established to develop its electronic business in Singapore, South-east
Asia countries and subsequently expand to the market in PRC through vertical
integration in early 90's. In April 1996, AV Concept Holdings Limited listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group
continuously received numerous awards, including Samsung Electronics’s
and Fairchild Semiconductor Corporation’s “Best Performance Award” in
recognition of the excellent sales and marketing performance as well as
contribution to cultivate strong customers relationship in the semiconductors
market.

Dr. So holds an honorary degree, Doctor of Philosophy in Business
Administration from the International American University and a Master
Degree in Business Administration from the University of East Asia (now
known as University of Macau) and he is also a Fellow Member of the British
Institute of Management. Presently, he is the Vice Chairman of the Executive
Committee and the Chairman of HKEIA Education Fund of The Hong Kong
Electronic Industries Association. Dr. So is also the Vice President of The Hong
Kong Semiconductor Industry Council. Further, Dr. So is a Fellow Member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors, the Honorary Chairman of Advisory
Committee (Industry) of Cooperative Education Centre of City University of
Hong Kong and a Fellow Member of CEO Club of The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University.

Mr. So Chi On, aged 37, is the Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
of the Company. Mr. So is responsible for the overall corporate strategies and
operation of the Group. Mr. So joined the Group in 1999 and was appointed
as an Executive Director of the Company in March 2001. Mr. So has over 15
years of experience in corporate and financial management. Mr. So holds a
Bachelor Degree of Business Administration from the University of Wisconsin
Madison. Mr. So Chi On is the son of Dr. Hon. So Yuk Kwan.

Mr. Ho Choi Yan Christopher, aged 40, is the Chief Financial Officer,
Executive Director and Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Ho joined the
Group in 2006 and has over 19 years of experience in finance, accounting
and taxation. He was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in
January 2011. Mr. Ho obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Accountancy from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Ho is a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ho had been
working for various Hong Kong listed companies holding key positions in
financial and corporate accounting.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP, aged 76, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since 1996. Dr. Lui is an established industrialist. Dr.
Lui was a member of the Legislative Council of the HKSAR between 1998
— 2008 and also a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. He is now an Honorary Chairman of The Chinese Manufacturers
Association of Hong Kong, The Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association
and The Hong Kong Shandong Chamber of Commerce. In addition, he is also
an Advisor of the Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre and a member
of the Hong Kong Economic Development Commission. Dr. Lui obtained a
Master Degree in Applied Science from the University of New South Wales in
Australia and a Doctorate in Engineering from the University of Saskatchewan
in Canada. He is currently the Managing Director of Keystone Electronics Co.
Ltd..

Mr. Charles Edward Chapman, aged 65, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2000. He was Executive Director
of the Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association (HKEIA) and Managing
Director of the HKEIA’s subsidiary publishing company, the Hong Kong
Electronics Promotions Ltd. from May 1988 to June 2007 when he retired.
Currently, Mr. Chapman is an Independent Non-executive Director of Mobicon
Group Limited and he is also a Senior Industry Consultant for a number
of overseas-based trade fair organisers. Prior to joining the HKEIA, Mr.
Chapman worked for 12 years as Economics Editor at the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council and for 8 years as Business Editor in a local English-
language newspaper.

Mr. Wong Ka Kit, aged 37, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since September 2004. Mr. Wong is the Senior Vice
President, Mergers and Acquisitions of a Hong Kong listed property company.
Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting, Finance and Economics
from the University of Wisconsin Madison.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2()14 4

20

BYKHITES

BEAEE L BS ATHE 7658 B — LN EE—
BEEAARRZENHNTERT BH LT AMNETE
Ko BETR—ANNEE ST N\EHRHEETEE
AITHREN AEZE8 NATPEARBAHBESEZE
B-REABBTEREHAG BAETERNGRE
BILREE 2 EEEF N BIRBBBREETEF
LDEREREBREEREZESNKE - B LHERIMT
FRBEMAZEAREELIBNRMEADERET
BEBLEM -FHEEANPAETARATAZESTEL
f%o

Charles Edward Chapman% 4 6555 B — ST T 4F
NR—BEEAARA 2B INTEST - B — NNNF
FABREZZTTLFNARKA H—ELEEAET
EHeHITHE ULBEBETERCHETHRAASE
BEFREBRARESHLLIE  Chapmant £ KA
BRNEESRARZBYIIFNTES  NAZKEN
REENR oM TEBB MABEETERSH
Chapmant A EREEE FEREBIREEREIZE2
F IR DA ENRETTEREENF-

BERBRE 375 B -_ZEMFAAUNKR—EREAR
RAZEIFPTEZ -BEERHBBLTUER
AlzHBEESREAE BERERERNTEFREE
BEIRZET MBREERELTEM-



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANGEMENT

Mr. Kweon Jong Keun, aged 50 is the President of AV Concept Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Kweon joined the Group in 2006 and he has
over 25 years of experience in Sales and Marketing. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Kweon was the Managing Director and President of Gencore Co., Ltd., the
Senior Marketing Manager and Market Manager of Fairchild Semiconductor
International, Inc. Hong Kong Branch and Korea Branch respectively. He had
also been working for Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. (Semiconductor Business)
as Sales and Marketing (Europe, Korea and America).

Mr. Choi Joon Yun, aged 50, was appointed as the President and Chief
Executive Officer of AV Concept Limited, a subsidiary of the Company
from 2006-2011. Mr. Choi currently is the President and Chief Executive
Officer of AVP Electronics Limited, a jointly-controlled entity of the Company
since January 2012. Mr. Choi has over 25 years of experience in Sales and
Marketing. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Choi was the Sales and Marketing
Director of Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. (Shanghai), and the Sales and
Marketing Senior Manager of Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. (Hong Kong
and Shenzhen). He had also been working for Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd.
(Semiconductor Business) as Sales and Marketing for Asian market.

Mr. Lee Jun Hyog, aged 51, is the President of AV Concept Singapore
Pte. Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Lee joined the Group in 2003
and has over 24 years of experience in Sales and Marketing. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Lee was the Marketing Vice President of Onyx Technologies
Taiwan Branch, Sales and Marketing Manager of Fairchild Semiconductor
International, Inc. (Taiwan Branch), and the Sales and Marketing Manager of
Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. (Semiconductor Business).

Mr. So Chi Heng Kevin, aged 28, is the Chief Operation Officer of the
Company responsible for operation of the Group and AV Concept Singapore
Pte. Ltd. Mr. So joined the Group in 2011 and was appointed as the Chief
Operation Officer of the Company in April 2013. Mr. So holds a Master of
Business Administration from the Bentley University. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. So had pursued a career in corporate finance in an international financial
institution. Mr. So Chi Heng, Kevin is the son of Dr. Hon. So Yuk Kwan.
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Directors’ Report
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The Directors of the Company present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of the Group consist of the marketing and distribution of electronic
components, the design, development and sale of electronic products, and
venture capital investment. The Group ceased the trading of Light-emitting
Diode (“LED") business during the current year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 46 to 183 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend in respect of
the year (2013: HK1 cent).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Company
and Group, and investment properties of the Group during the year are set
out in notes 15 and 16 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and share options
during the year are set out in notes 35 and 36 to the financial statements,
respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association (the “Articles of Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year.

Directors’ Report
EEEWE

ARRERERREHE-_T—NWF=A=+—H1It
FEZEZORENREEVEAMBREK -

FEXRK

AARZEBEBBRELR -AEBTEREET T
HrzmBHEBERDHE BEFERZET BAZEREEN
RAIEREEG - ALEBEERAFERILEBEX_GE
([LED ) EE %7 -

RERKE

FEEBE - T-NE=A=+-HULFEZ¥ENR
RARRAEERZ A ZEBRR BN AFRE468
EEIBE 2B RE-

EXZe T TRIRNAFEZRARE (ZE—=5F11
A -

ME - BMERRBARRENE

ARBRAEEZME BEERBARKNERZKE
MERFAZEDFHB HRERTBREMEISR
16 °

% 25 X B B fE
RARIZBARBRENFRZEBFHE  HRISRH
TR MIFE35 %36 °

BrBEERE

ARAZERERMA ([FIRMA]) K5 2 BB D)
B EBSIAR R BARBRILIAREBRER2SE
# IR 1 2 (B I8 B IR

BE HEIBEEAAT LHES

FRAARAKEEAMBARMERE HEXEE K
REZEA LETES -

AV Concept Holdings Limited 2 3
Annual Report 2()14 4 4



Directors’ Report
EEEWE

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 37 to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2014, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately HK$419,643,000. The share premium of the
Company is available for distribution or paying dividends to the shareholders
provided that immediately following the distribution or the payment of
dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements, is set out below.

it
ARRFRAEEZ HERFER2EEFHE 2 5EHR Y
BHRERMAITRGEEREH K-

A 7 kb
\ZE-ME=A=+ B RASHBATNEZAT
8 AR AT D IR 2 B45419,643,0008 7T ° &
R 2 BB i (B A 4 R S A T AR AR, e
PIRHZ MRS M - AR T AR B E R B R T
BB 2 75 -
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FEERBSAE T ELERMBRER 2O R AR
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RESULTS E 45
Year ended 31 March
HZE=A=1t-HLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
“E-mE —E-=F —E-Cf —F——F —E-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ERn TEL THL FEL THL
(Restated) (Restated)
c::47)) (BE7)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FESEER
REVENUE W& 2,749,902 2,334,475 3,173,592 2,909,125 2,457,688
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AER 53,888 52,301 2,241 121,809 49,957
Income tax FRiEH (210) (3.368) (4,756) 1,254 26,859
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREHN 53,678 43,933 (2,515) 123,063 76,816
DISCONTINUED OPERATION CRIEBEEK
Loss for the year from a discontinued operation ~ E#& IHELEH 7 EREE (60,023) (55,811) 3,000 - -
(6,345) (6,878) 485 123,063 76,816
Attributable to: MTATIEE:
Owners of the Company NCIE 2 =-DN 3,353 9,237 2,416 123,601 76,816
Non-controlling interests FERER (9,698) (16,115) (1,931) (538) -
(6,345) (6,878) 485 123,063 76,816
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Assets and liabilities

Directors’ Report
EEEWE

BERRE

As at 31 March

R=B=1+-H

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-mE —E-=F —T-C-F —E——F “T-%fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER T FHL T T
TOTAL ASSETS BEEARE 1,335,459 1,482,833 1,443,422 1,388,107 870,991
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEAHE (666,806) (835,606) (808,730) (707,935) (490,115)
668,653 647,227 634,692 680,172 380,876

DIRECTORS ==

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Hon. So Yuk Kwan (Chairman)

Mr. So Chi On (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Ho Choi Yan Christopher (Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP

Mr. Charles Edward Chapman

Mr. Wong Ka Kit

The Company has received annual written confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS,
JP, Mr. Charles Edward Chapman and Mr. Wong Ka Kit, confirming their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
and considers the Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Profile of the Directors and Senior management of the Group as at the date of
this annual report are set out on pages 18 to 21 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee, and approved by the board of Directors (the “Board”), as
authorised by shareholders in the annual general meeting of the Company,
having regard to their skills, knowledge and involvement in the Company'’s
affairs. No Directors are involved in deciding their own remuneration.

FARBEARERRZARREEMT

WITES:

it (£E)

BERKE (TTHAAR)

MBREE (BEHBRERAANE)

B IFHITESE

BRAEE L SBS K AL
Charles Edward Chapman3t 4
BRESRE

RIEBEEBHERSHMERAAFSH EMHL ([ TR
A1) #3131 RARIE KRB EILIENTES BlA
BREEfE £ > sBS ' A P4k =+  Charles Edward Chapmanst 4
REREAEZEMBEH  FEERAE BRES2E
M AWRBEBUERITEFHRBILIAL

ZREERAEESREEERATREBZEBEHRN
AERFISEEFE21H -

FENBUR
BEEZHMWOBFMRESEEBRE 2R MMk
HAAREHZ2EREREHES YhmEFS ([&F
FeEBEREARFBRRBFRGRE T IE - BF
ETF2HEETERS 2 HH -
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We offer competitive remuneration package, including medical and retirement
benefits, to eligible employees. Apart from basic salary, executive Directors
and employees are eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking into
account factors such as market conditions as well as corporate and individual’s
performance during the year.

In order to attract, retain and motivate the eligible employees, including the
Directors, the Company and a subsidiary have adopted share option schemes.
The schemes enable the eligible persons to obtain an ownership interest in the
Company and that subsidiary and thus will motivate them to optimise their
continuing contributions to the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares and underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")), as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
contained in the Listing Rules, are as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company
(a) Interests in shares of the Company

Nature of Interest

Name of Director and Capacity

AEENSERRERUARFNZHFNES BES
BIORIRERN - REAHEIN RITEERREE A ZE
BRIBREL WHREETRAR QB EBARFRZ
RIRERRIREM

AR RENHBEERER (BEES) ARAR
—HfBATCRABRETE - ZEFAARAERA
TAEBR AR A RZMB AR 2w (MRS RERF
BRAAREFHREANER

ESENaHzkER

5 20 P A 2 2 20 ) o LT BB 28 T 37
EAHAEBEHBEAZ AN EERMEREE
Kb o

EERFETRAERKRMG REER D
Z s

REZZE-—WF=ZA=+—H EERARAEZTHA
BRAARREBEEE (E&REFRAEED ([F
FREEAGEI ) EXVED) Z &l - B RES D
BARRAREESF R EGRIIFEIS2GZRERETRE
ZERMAEE s R XA RE EHRAME L
MEITAEFETESFRHNFESTR (MFLEFH])
ABTHBEARRRBTERERXSMERLAE ([HR
Frl) zm bk mT

REARBRS 2 HA
(a) RAELQXTARMDzERE

Number of Approximately
Ordinary percentage of
Shares of interest in the

the Company Issued Shares

ERITROER
EEpE EEMER S D AREEBREA BMAOBE DL
Dr. Hon. So Yuk Kwan Corporate Interest 227,892,189 32.22%
IR ITE £ NG £
Beneficial owner 614,000
EREEA
Beneficial owner 600,000
ERnEAA (Note 1)
(H1aZ1)
Mr. Ho Choi Yan Christopher Beneficial owner 1,500,000 0.21%
B EEE ERnEAA (Note 2)
(K1:£2)
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Notes:

1. These shares include (i) 147,252,300 shares held by B.K.S. Company Limited
("BKS"); (i) 80,639,889 shares held by Jade Concept Limited (“Jade Concept”);
and (i) 614,000 shares and 600,000 share options held by Dr. Hon. So
Yuk Kwan as beneficial owner (“Dr. So”). Dr. So is deemed to be interested
in 227,892,189 shares by virtue of his interests in BKS and Jade Concept,
the particulars are more fully described in the section headed “Interests of
Substantial Shareholders” below.

2. The 1,500,000 shares was held by Mr. Ho Choi Yan Christopher as beneficial
owner.

(b) Interests in underlying shares of the Company
The interests of the Directors and chief executive in the share options
of the Company are separately disclosed in note 36 to the financial
statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had registered any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interest in Shares and Underlying Shares” and in the share option scheme
disclosures in note 36 to the financial statements, at no time during the
year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them or was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Directors’ Report
EEEWRE

CE

1. ZEWRHBIEG)HEB.K.S. Company Limited
([BKS|)#H 2147,252,300/% K& {3 : (ii)E
Jade Concept Limited ([Jade Concept])#FA 2
80,639,889 f& 17 ¢ K (i) Ax B9 1 £+ ([ &k 18
+1) ({EREHEE A)FH 2614,0000% i 17
12600,00017 B iR # 28 7 &% 18 + 7EBKS & Jade
ConceptZ #as #4515 A14227,892, 1890 A 7
HaEER BEFBER T X ERR 2 #E=] —
B s o

2. 521,500,000k D BRITERSE (EAE=HRE
AN)FFE -

(b) REQBEBERG2ER
BEENTIBETHRABRARABREZERZAN
H 7% R M AT 36 EE

B EXPEEEN RCE—MF=A=+—H8 #E&
BEERARAETETRABRAR A S HARARE
B (EEREFRBMEGROIISEXVER) 2 i 8RR D
SEFTECHEREES MG GRIE3S2GEZHRE
ATREZECMALEARBEEETHNESTANEG
ARBZAEFERIOXE

EEREROIES 2EF

BRIEERETBITBRABRBRND RARKN 2] —
B R R Rk M 36 2 BB AR R T B BE R IR PR ER
EFI BERFAEORERTANEFLRSSE 2
BEAKRFFRETAZBEARARBRNHEFME
SRz EN FETNRETEZTEN MARFK
BB QRSS2 ET A2 BEEER
AR EAEA B RS LSRR -
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2014, the following substantial shareholders (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) had interests in the shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO were set out as follows:

FERRz2HES

REZE-—MF=A=+—HB ATZERR (EFKA
RAEAIEZTBABRIN RAR B I A RIERES
REEGPIEI36HZREATREZELMALCEZ

BT :

Long position in the shares of the Company REARRGZHR

Approximate

percentage of

Number of interest in the

Name of shareholder Nature of capacity shares held issued shares

ERITROER

BREREARE SHME FERGEE BHBED

B.K.S. Company Limited (“BKS") Beneficial owner 147,252,300 (Note 1) 20.71%
EmBEAA (Bi7E1)

Jade Concept Limited (“Jade Concept”) Beneficial owner 80,639,889 (Note 2) 11.34%
EmBEAA (Ki7#2)

Madam Yeung Kit Ling (“Madam Yeung") Interest of spouse 229,106,189 (Note 3) 32.22%
HmRR AL ([HBL]) Be 8 2 (B17#3)

Och Daniel Saul Interest of controlled corporation 54,134,000 (Note 4) 7.61%
EEHIAE 2 (K17F4)

Notes:

1. BKS is beneficially owned by Dr. Hon. So Yuk Kwan (“Dr. So”). By virtue of the SFO, Dr.
So is deemed to be interested in 147,252,300 shares of the Company held by BKS.

2. Jade Concept is beneficially owned by Dr. So. By virtue of the SFO, Dr. So is deemed to
be interested in 80,639,889 shares of the Company held by Jade Concept.

3. As Madam Yeung is the spouse of Dr. So, by virtue of the SFO, she is deemed to be
interested in the shares of BKS and Jade Concept of the Company in which Dr. So has
interested 614,000 shares and 600,000 share options held by Dr. So.

2 8 AV Concept Holdings Limited
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4. Based on the individual substantial shareholder notice of Daniel Saul Och filed on
24 June 2013: (i) of these shares of the Company: (a) 14,614,000 shares are held by
OZ Asia Master Fund, Ltd.; (b) 1,146,000 shares are held by Gordel Holdings Ltd;
(c) 33,688,000 shares are held by OZ Master Fund, Ltd.; (d) 906,000 shares are held
by OZ Global Special Investments Master Fund, LP ; (e) 26,000 shares are held by
0OZ Enhanced Master Fund, Ltd.; (f) 3,754,000 shares are held by OZ Management Il
LP; (ii) OZ Management Il L.P. has 100% control in each of OZ ELS Master Fund, Ltd.
and Goldman Sachs Profit Sharing Master Trust; (i) OZ Management, L.P. has 100%
control in each of OZ Asia Master Fund, Ltd., Gordel Holdings Ltd., OZ Master Fund,
Ltd., OZ Global Special Investments Master Fund, LP , OZ Enhanced Master Fund, Ltd.,
OZ Eureka Fund, L.P. and OZ Management Il , LP ; (iv) Och-Ziff Capital Management
Group LLC has 100% control in Och-Ziff Holding Corporation, which in turn has 100%
control in OZ Management, LP ; and (v) Daniel Saul Och has 67.1% control in Och-
Ziff Capital Management Group LLC and accordingly, is interested or deemed to be
interested in the 54,134,000 shares of the Company by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, the Company has not been
notified by any person or corporation (other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company whose interests were set out above) having
interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be notified to the Company pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or
which are recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business are provided under note 44 to the financial statements.
None of the related party transactions as disclosed in note 44 to the financial
statements is subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements of the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company and a subsidiary operate share option schemes (the “Schemes”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operation. Further details of the
Schemes are disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions amounting to
HK$866,000 (2013: HK$1,596,730).

Directors’ Report
EEEWE

4. R & Daniel Saul Ochit —Z— =%/ A *‘HT_EI BiEXR 2

PEBZRFBE  VWARAZERMDF : (a) 14,614, ooo
AR 17 R OZ Asia Master Fund, Ltd.%qﬁ~ ) 1,146,000
& P% 1 f1 Gordel Holdings Ltd.#574 ¢ (c) 33,688,0000% %
3 B10Z Master Fund, Ltd. 5% : (d) 906,0000% % 15
0Z Global Special Investments Master Fund, LP# % : (e)
26,0000% f% 15 F10Z Enhanced Master Fund, Ltd. ﬁﬁ'
(f) 3,754,0000% % 15 F10Z Management Il LP# A : (i) OZ
Management Il L.P7A0Z ELS Master Fund, Ltd. &Goldman
Sachs Profit Sharing Master Trusti# & & 202 HI4E : (i) 0Z
Management, L.PFA0Z Asia Master Fund, Ltd." Gordel
Holdings Ltd.>OZ Master Fund, Ltd.-OZ Global Special
Investments Master Fund, LP+ OZ Enhanced Master Fund,
Ltd. * OZ Eureka Fund, L.P.}20Z Management II, LP¥ & &
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# 1 J&(v) Daniel Saul Och#A Och-Ziff Capital Management
Group LLCHEBG67.1% 2 76l - FItREZE S R EE
PIA SARAR A 7254,134,000% A8 A BB AR AR A HE RS o
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted
for approximately 44% of the total sales for the year and sales to the largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 19%. Purchases from
the Group's five largest suppliers for the year accounted for approximately
88% of the Group's total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 62 %.

None of the Directors or any of their associates, or any shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the share capital of the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) were considered to have an interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group, other than those businesses of which the Directors were
appointed as directors to represent the interests of the Company and/or the
Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share
capital was held by the public during the year ended 31 March 2014 and as at
the date of this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existing during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company's corporate governance practices are set out on
pages 32 to 42 of this annual report.

3 O AV Concept Holdings Limited
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.22 OF THE BELFTRAEI3.2FEEZHE
LISTING RULES

As at 31 March 2014, the aggregate amount of financial assistance to, and RZ-ZT—MNF=A=+—H AAGKELREEZH
(where applicable) guarantee given for the loan facilities granted to, affiliated &K (WEA) FEEEERBERBZER B
companies of the Company, exceeds 8% under the assets ratio as defined — ZE#RE EARBIE14.07(1NVEMTAEZEELLER Z8% -
under Rule 14.07 (1) of the Listing Rules. In compliance with the requirement A4 EMBRRIE 13221628 F  RExfEm B8 - i
of Rule 13.22 of the Listing Rules, the combined balance sheet of the affiliated BARIZAHEEBER (REAEENEEQRPE
companies (with attributable interest of the Group in the affiliated companies) {54 %5) & 50T -

as at the latest applicable date is set out below:

Group's
Combined attributable
balance sheet interest
EHEEEER AEBELER
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets JERENE EE 2,418 1,814
Current assets mENE E 966,033 724,525
Current liabilities mEBaE (809,003) (606,752)
Non-current liabilities JEREEE (74) (56)
159,374 119,531
Share capital Ar A 80,000 60,000
Reserve G 76,936 57,702
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR = 2,438 1,829
159,374 119,531
EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD MERRBREE
Details of the significant event after the reporting period of the Group are set ~ A&EEZ EARE L FIE 2 F1E  HRHBHREME
out in note 50 to the financial statements. 50 °
AUDITORS 3 il
Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as auditors of LK@ EHATHEER AR BB ERERERSE
the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting. ARELREABR BEALSRRT ZZEEA-
On Behalf of the Board REEFE
So Yuk Kwan FE
Chairman BIg1
Hong Kong, 27 June 2014 BE —ZE-MNEXAZTEH
AV Concept Holdings Limited 3 1
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Corporate Governance Report

The Group is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate governance
and enhance its transparency and corporate value. The Group believes that
good corporate governance provides a framework between the board and the
shareholders so as to enhancing shareholders’ interest and value as a whole.
The Board continually reviews and improves its corporate governance practices
to ensure the Company keeps abreast of the expectation of shareholders of
the Company (“Shareholders”).

The purpose of this report is to provide Shareholders with information on
the major principles and corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2014, the Company has applied the
major principles with the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Corporate Governance Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). Further details of the
Company's corporate governance practices will be described in the following
sections.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board should assure responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and its subsidiaries; and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company and its subsidiaries affairs.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the formulation of the
Group's business objectives and strategies. Matters reserved for the Board
are those affecting the Group's overall strategic policies, finance and risk
management. The senior management is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group directed by leadership of the Executive Directors. To
this end, the senior management has to implement, manage and monitor
the business plans, internal controls and corporate governance practices
developed by the Board.

TEERRE

AEB-HHNERRDKFZEEES  UAGKRSD
HERAERECREE AKRERRE REZEXRER
REFEHRBRRZERTER BAERRR2EE
MNEMEE EFBFERIINEHLLEERT
M NERARRZEFEZEHARRBRR (TBER])
ZHIE-

AREEERERERBEBAABMRATERA
RERERFRIER

REBEZE-ZT-NEF=A=1t—HILEEFEAN &1
A-HEREEMERSMBERAREZ EMARA
(TETRA D4R EERER TR ([REE
JASTAIL) Pz ST RNRS - BRARBIRRE AT MR
ZE—THE BRAT EEF -

EEg
EFCEARBEREEAAARANBAR 2B
B UHAAREEREEAARRENBARZE
7% o

EFEEMEIRAE ARNEARBZEHBERE
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Board Composition
The Composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company.

As at 31 March 2014, the Board comprised three Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors (“INEDs”). One of the INEDs has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers the INEDs
to be independent. Having the INEDs in the Board ensure that independent
judgment is exercised and that a proper balance of power is maintained
for full and effective control of the Group and its executive management.
The Directors believe that the existing Board composition reflects the
Company’s respect for high standards of business conduct commonly
adopted by multinational enterprises. The INEDs perform an important role in
safeguarding the Shareholders’ interests.

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board composition
(which include an assessment of the skills, knowledge and experience of the
existing Directors and suitable candidates) and for formulating procedures
for appointment of its own members and for nominating them for election
by the Shareholders on the first appointment and thereafter at regular
intervals through the retirement by rotation process pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Each of the INEDs has been appointed for specific term and has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of one year, which
shall continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party giving
the other not less than three months’ notice in writing. All the Directors
are subjected to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the Company.
Mr. Ho Choi Yan Christopher and Mr. Wong Ka Kit will retire from the
office by rotation and are being eligible to offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The board has assessed the
independence of Mr. Wong Ka Kit who has met the independence guidelines
set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. He has given an annual confirmation
concerning his independence to the Company. The Board, therefore, consider
him to be independent.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The position of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ") are
held by separate individuals. Such division of responsibilities helps to reinforce
their independence and accountability and responsibility.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to, and overseeing the
functioning of the Board to ensure that the Board acts in the best interest of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Chairman determines
that the Board is provided with direction and sufficient consultation for the
Directors in effectively discharging their responsibilities for different aspects of
the business.

The CEO, supported by senior management, are responsible for
implementation of corporate goals, business strategies and policies resolved by
the Board from time to time. The CEO assumes full accountability to the Board
in respect of the Group's operations and development.

Save as Dr. Hon. So Yuk Kwan, the Chairman, is the father of Mr. So Chi On,
the CEO, there is no relationship among members of the Board.

Board Meetings

Board meetings are scheduled to be held at about quarterly interval. The
senior management of the Group from time to time reports to the Directors
information on the activities and development of the Group’s business. In
addition, the Directors have full access to information on the Group and
independent professional advice whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.
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The attendance records of regular four board meetings held during the year is
set out below:

FARTzHARBRESFEER 2L FLHEHTIN
T

Attendance/ aRHER
Name of Directors Number of meetings EZHH RE
Executive Directors HiITEE
Dr. Hon. So Yuk Kwan (Chairman) 44 wmEHELE (FE) 4/4
Mr. So Chi On (Chief Executive Officer) 44 BRELNE (7THAEE) 4/4
Mr. Ho Choi Yan Christopher 4/4 [AEREA 4/4

(Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary) (B BHEEF L E)

Independent Non-executive Directors HIHHITEE
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, sBs, JP 4/4 EEREEL s APt 4/4
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 4/4  Charles Edward Chapmanit 4 4/4
Mr. Wong Ka Kit 44  wEREFLAE 4/4
Board Committees EEZEE

As at the date of the report, there were four Board Committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Corporate Governance Committee in operation and each one of
them was established with specific terms of references to assist the Board
discharging its responsibilities and maintain proper internal controls and to
promote good corporate governance as a whole.
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Audit Committee

As at 31 March 2014, the Audit Committee comprises of three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP (the Chairman of
the Audit Committee), Mr. Charles Edward Chapman and Mr. Wong Ka Kit.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include (i) to discuss with the
external auditors before the audit commence, the nature and scope of
the audit and confirm their independence and objectivity; (ii) to review the
Group'’s financial information before submission to the Board; (iii) to review
the Group's financial reporting system and the effectiveness of the audit
process with internal control procedure; and (iv) to review external auditors’
management letter and the relationship with the Group.

In accordance with the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Audit
Committee met at least twice a year to review the interim results and the final
results of the Company.

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held and all the Audit
Committee members had attended the meetings. The Audit Committee had
reviewed the Group’s audited financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2013 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 September
2013. The Audit Committee had also reviewed and discussed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
and discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting matters

/JE‘ //\-I\-\Ai&m
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including the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014. B -

The attendance records of the Audit Committee meetings held during the year FREBTzEREZES e HEDEHIIMT -

is set out below.

Name of Attendance/ ERHER

Audit Committee Members Number of meetings BRZEEREUSR RE

Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP (Chairman) 22 EEAEEL s AFMT (EE) 2/2

Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 2/2  Charles Edward Chapman’t & 2/2

Mr. Wong Ka Kit 22 EREGRE 2/2
AV Concept Holdings Limited 3 7
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Remuneration Committee

As at 31 March 2014, the Remuneration Committee consists of three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee is chaired
by Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBs, JP and the other members include Mr. Charles
Edward Chapman and Mr. Wong Ka Kit. One Remuneration Committee
meeting was held during the year to consider the salary increment of the
Directors and all members had attended the meeting.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and structure
for the remuneration of Directors and senior management and reviewing
the specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management by reference to the Company’s performance and profitability as
well as remuneration benchmarks in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions. No Director or any of his associates shall be involved in deciding his
own remuneration. The Remuneration Committee normally meets once a year
and at other times as required. The Remuneration Committee had reviewed
the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2014.

The attendance records of the Remuneration Committee meeting held during
the year is set out below.

FMEES

R-ZE—NFEF=ZA=+—H FHEESH =25
VIERTEEEKR -FHEES EFEASHER
T sBs AP+ M E A & B #E Charles Edward
Chapmanft £ RERG LA - HIE B SR FRNETT
TREHRUNEERESNG  2BKEHALF -

FINEZE e T ERBBERARFAEELARE
BEZFHBEMRBRESTSRERZE L2RA
NRIZRE N BRNEES  ARERNFEELIRITH
NBHAMBERTEERSRERE CABHHAE
B BEYHIABMBEAIHINS2EETEAFZ
FH-TmMEZEe - REFETREFH ARER
ERNBRTEA - FHEZEGERFNBE_T—MF
A=t BLEFEZEZHH-

FRBRTZHFHEEE R HFELEEIIMT -

Name of Attendance/ SRHER
Remuneration Committee Members Number of meetings FHHZEEGHER R KB
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP (Chairman) 171 EBREEL s ARt (F/F) 11
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 1/1  Charles Edward Chapman’t 4 11
Mr. Wong Ka Kit 17 BERERAE 11
Nomination Committee REZES®

As at 31 March 2014, the Nomination Committee comprises of three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The members of the Nomination
Committee are Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP, Mr. Charles Edward Chapman and
Mr. Wong Ka Kit, all are the Independent Non-executive Directors. Dr. Lui
Ming Wabh, SBS, JP is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include (i) review
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company's
corporate strategy; (i) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors; and (iv) make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.
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The Nomination Committee meeting held at least once a year and additional
meeting may be held as required. During the year, the Nomination Committee
held a meeting and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board.

The attendance record of the Nomination Committee meeting held during the
year is set out below:

/JE‘ '/\-I\-\Ai&m

REZEBGEVEFRTREH ANEFERH
55%?? FoFN REZEGCLBETREF L

R EFEZRE  ABURAEK -

FRABTZREZESEZ M FEHIIMT

Name of Attendance/ EBHERS
Nomination Committee Members Number of meetings REZEEREU SR RE
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP (Chairman) 171 EREE L s ATt (£/F) 11
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 1/1  Charles Edward Chapman3t 4 71
Mr. Wong Ka Kit 11 'wEREEAE 11
Corporate Governance Committee TtEEREES

As at 31 March 2014, the Corporate Governance Committee comprises of
three Independent Non-executive Directors. The members of the Corporate
Governance Committee are Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP, Mr. Charles Edward
Chapman and Mr. Wong Ka Kit, all are the Independent Non-executive
Directors. Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP is the Chairman of the Corporate
Governance Committee.

The Corporate Governance Committee is primarily responsible for developing
and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and make recommendations to the Board and to reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the Code in Corporate Governance Practices in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

The Corporate Governance Committee meeting held at least once a year.
During the year, the Corporate Governance Committee held a meeting and
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements.
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The attendance record of the Corporate Governance Committee meeting held

FRRTZEREAEARERZLELLNIIN

during the year is set out below: I

Name of Attendance/

Corporate Governance Number of EBHERS
Committee Members meetings BGEERZEEREHS RE
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP (Chairman) 171 BEREE L s ATaE (£/F) 1”1
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman 1/1  Charles Edward Chapman’t 4 71
Mr. Wong Ka Kit 111 \EREEAE 11
INTERNAL CONTROL B EE 4

The Board reviews the Group’s internal control system from time to time
and will take any necessary and appropriate action to maintain an adequate
internal control system to safeguard Shareholders’ interests. An overall review
on the effectiveness of the internal control system will be discussed annually
with the Audit Committee.

During the financial year under review, the Directors had arranged to conduct
reviews over the effectiveness of the Group's internal control system to
provide reasonable assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations
in achieving the established corporate objectives, safeguarding Group assets,
providing reliable financial reporting, and complying with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Board has also reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff for the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programmes and budget. Both the Audit
Committee and the Board were satisfied that the internal control system of
the Group has been functioned effectively during the year and no material
internal control aspects of any significant problems were noted.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2014.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s independent auditors
during the year, is set out as follows:

EERRE

2T

FR B EAAR BB AZEAD 2 B S 8 50
T

Services rendered FriR AR 7% Fee paid/payable
BN ENER

HK$'000

FAET

Audit of Financial Statements BB B WK 3,354
Tax advisory services BB AR 261
3,615

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group.

With the assistance of the Finance Department which is under the supervision
of the Chief Financial Officer, the Directors ensure the preparation and
publication of the Group's financial statements in a timely manner in
accordance with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and accounting
standards. The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

A statement by the Company’s auditors about their reporting responsibilities
on the Group’s financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 43 to 45 of this report.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company established a dedicated investor relations section in order
to provide timely information to the investors as well as Shareholders and
institutional investors. The Company also conducted a meeting with institutional
investors and analysts from time to time and to maintain updated information
opened to the public regarding recent development of the Company. Relevant
information of investor relations is available on the Company’s website
(http://www.avconcept.com/html/en/investor_relations.html).
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company recognises the rights of Shareholders and their opinions are
valuable to the Company. The Shareholders are encouraged to participate
in general meetings or to appoint proxies or corporate representatives to
attend and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to
attend the meetings. The Shareholders are encouraged to raise their enquiries
on the operations, corporate governance, corporate strategy and further
development of the Company during the meeting by way of shareholders’
rights. The process of the Company’s general meeting will be monitored
and reviewed on a regular basis, and, if necessary, changes will be made
to ensure that Shareholders’ needs are best served. The Board members, in
particular, either the chairmen or deputy chairmen of Board committees or
their delegates, appropriate management executives and external auditors will
attend annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions.

SHAREHOLDERS COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company has established Shareholders Communication Policy in providing
a communication platform to the Shareholders of the Company with
information about the Company and enabling them to engage actively with
the Company and exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.
Effective and timely dissemination of information to Shareholders shall be
ensured at all times. Any question regarding this Policy shall be directed to the
company secretary of the Company or the board of directors of the Company.
Appropriate arrangements for the annual general meeting shall be in place
to encourage Shareholders’ participation and all corporate communication
will be provided to Shareholders in plain language and in both English and
Chinese version to facilitate Shareholders’ understanding, including but not
limited to interim reports, annual reports, results announcements, notice
of general meeting, circulars, and associated explanatory documents, other
announcements and monthly return on movements in the Company's
securities for each month and next day disclosure returns in relation to the
Company are available on the Company’s website (www.avconcept.com).
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B RS

Ernst & Young TXEEHEIEEFR Tel EBEE: +852 2846 9888
EY& i 22/F, CITIC Tower ERDIRANFEIR Fax 8 E: +852 2868 4432
¥ | 1 Tim Mei Avenue m{EkE2212 ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of AV Concept Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AV Concept
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
"Group”) set out on pages 46 to 183, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2014,
and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

l%/—-]; :.\/%%

Year ended 31 March 2014 HE =T —F=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-F —T—=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5T FHExT F& T
(Restated)
(reE5)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEKEER
REVENUE U 5 5 2,749,902 2,334,475
Cost of sales $HE B A (2,638,921) (2,227,813)
Gross profit EH 110,981 106,662
Other income and gains H A U A K B 5 64,878 12,837
Changes in fair value of REWMHERNFEBEZE
investment properties 16 (1,542) 8,293
Selling and distribution expenses HE RS HEH (34,022) (33,937)
Administrative expenses THER (96,580) (127,342)
Fair value gains/(losses), net: NEFEWZ (EE)
Equity investments at fair value through ~ FEiBEEHIERAFEENIRZ
profit or loss R &
— held for trading —FEEE 5,673 (5,061)
— designated as such upon — R R IR E A
initial recognition I EE R (27.411) (49,197)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries S BT B A 7l 2 W as 39 3,234 2
Gain on disposal of associates unk=2ic kNI s = 150,285
Other expenses, net Hth & FHF 58 (15,764) (22,504)
Finance costs A& B 7 (13,096) (14,015)
Share of profits and losses of: D F B
Joint ventures EELHE 59,082 42,518
Associates /N (1,545) (16,240)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM BEKEERZ
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BR B A ER Al 6 53,888 52,301
Income tax FriS % 10 (210) (3,368)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM BERKEXEB 2FRNRF
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 53,678 48,933
DISCONTINUED OPERATION BRIEREER
Loss for the year from ERIEEEEBE 2 FANEE
a discontinued operation 12 (60,023) (55,811)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FABE (6,345) (6,878)
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N

Year ended 31 March 2014 H#E =%

bk

—HME=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-F —T—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt E FERT F&T
(Restated)
(geE5))
Attributable to: AT AT :
Owners of the Company KRTER A
Profit for the year from SEREEK 2
continuing operations F A& 56,399 49,344
Loss for the year from BERIEEEEBRE 2
a discontinued operation FAEE (53,046) (40,107)
Profit for the year attributable to RAAEAR NES
owners of the Company F N A 11 3,353 9,237
Non-controlling interests SRR
Loss for the year from SEIREEK 2
continuing operations FNEE (2,721) (411)
Loss for the year from BERIEEEEBR 2
a discontinued operation FNEE (6,977) (15,704)
Loss for the year attributable to FEPE AR 2w B AL FF N B 1R
non-controlling interests (9,698) (16,115)
(6,345) (6,878)
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE R 7 E R
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF ¥ HEAEBESREF
THE COMPANY 14
Basic 2R
— For profit for the year —F P A 0.51 centsfll 1.53 centsflll

— For profit from continuing operations

— B XN

8.59 cents{ll

8.17 centsflll

Diluted
— For profit for the year

g
—F R

0.51 cents{ll

1.53 centsfll

— For profit from continuing operations

—RERERBZEN

8.59 centsfll

8.17 centsflll

Details of the dividend proposed for the prior year are disclosed in note 13 to

the financial statements.

B R AR B 2 B R BT A TR M A1 3
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e 2 W m Rk

Year ended 31 March 2014 HE =T —F=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—E-F —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREE (6,345) (6,878)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Hte2EBA (BE)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) AT REEAESNSEEERZ
to be reclassified to profit or loss Hi2mEKRA (EEB)
in subsequent periods:
Available-for-sale investments: EH%:H ERE
Change in fair value NEEEE 494 1,847
Reclassification adjustment for gain ARG EERZ
on disposal of subsidiaries included HEME R AW 2
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss B OB (4,734) =
(4,240) 1,847
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINERS 2 BN ZH
foreign operations 249 1,096
Exchange differences released upon & — A N B R ERRR 2
disposal of an associate e Z8 - 2,171
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) HRARBREN S EEERE 2
to be reclassified to profit or loss Hi2mEKRA (BER)F5E
in subsequent periods (3,991) 5,114
Other comprehensive income TeRTERAREST I EEER
not to be reclassified to profit or loss ZEMEEA
in subsequent periods:
Gains on property revaluation %%Eﬁﬂ&ﬁ?& - 15,974
Income tax effect IR E = (3,993)
Net other comprehensive income SRARBAEN>BAEER
not to be reclassified to profit or loss Zﬁﬁﬂiﬁqﬂlkﬁ%ﬁ
in subsequent periods - 11,981
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FREMZ2EBA (FHE)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX HBRFE (3,991) 17,095
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FREZEKA (EEB)BHE
FOR THE YEAR (10,336) 10,217
Attributable to: AT AT B
Owners of the Company RKARER A (626) 26,332
Non-controlling interests FEE MR (9,710) (16,115)
(10,336) 10,217
AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR AR

MMmm2m4_$ ME=A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5% FET F&T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y2 B R & 15 53,019 119,153
Investment properties "EYZE 16 80,764 82,760
Goodwill B 17 32,780 40,848
Other intangible assets ﬁ‘rﬁlﬁﬁ?’ﬁ?‘ 18 20,464 23,141
Investments in joint ventures REEREZRE 20 123,396 95,610
Investments in associates REERE 2 IRE 21 2,450 3,927
Convertible bonds AR ESH 22 - 71,262
Available-for-sale investments Al HERE 23 42,920 39,507
Deposits and other receivables R& Rk H b eI GRIE 26 680 21,119
Pledged time deposits BEAE TR 28 2,686 1,994
Total non-current assets EMEBEERE 359,159 499,321
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 23 - 19,825
Inventories e 24 262,427 349,417
Trade receivables FEUE 5 R 25 219,222 224,528
Due from associates JE Ui B 5 R B FRIE 21 33,726 24,251
Prepayments, deposits and SELRE/OER Tﬁﬁ&
other receivables E A fE R IE 26 130,611 23,012
Equity investments at fair value through ~ FEBEZZAFEETIEZ
profit or loss IR E 27 199,110 186,229
Convertible bonds AR ESH 22 6,509
Tax recoverable AU EI 7 IR 2,202 3,263
Cash and cash equivalents RekZERBFEER 28 87,755 86,987
941,562 917,512
Assets of a disposal group classified PERFEHEZ
as held for sale HEMARZEE 12 34,738 =
Assets classified as held for sale PERFHELEZEE 29 - 66,000
Total current assets mBEEAE 976,300 983,512
AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR AR

31 March 2014 —Z—M&=A=+—8H

2014 2013
—E-F —T—=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt 5E FHExT F& T
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables, deposits received and ERE SRR EliZe &
accrued expenses fEETE 30 131,616 288,173
Interest-bearing bank and By SR 1T B B Ath & K
other borrowings 31 493,688 495,542
Finance lease payables FE 1< b B A & K08 32 239 429
Tax payable FEfI A1 1,230 1,206
Financial guarantee obligation MG EREE 33 5,694 1,410
632,467 786,760
Liabilities directly associated with HAHARIELEZ
a disposal group classified HEHARNEEAB B E
as held for sale 12 8,870 -
Liabilities directly associated with HAHARIELEZ
the assets classified as held for sale BEEEEHBECAE 29 - 21,270
Total current liabilities mEBERE 641,337 808,030
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 334,963 175,482
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BREERRBEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 694,122 674,803
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Mt EERITE K 31 17,026 18,362
Finance lease payables FE 1< b & A0 & RKIE 32 479 731
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEAE 34 7,964 8,483
Total non-current liabilities EME B EREE 25,469 27,576
Net assets BEFE 668,653 647,227
EQUITY i
Issued capital BETRA 35 71,111 60,311
Reserves f# 37(a) 622,688 601,660
Proposed final dividend R AR B 13 - 6,031
Equity attributable to equity holders of RAFIERFER A
the Company G 693,799 668,002
Non-controlling interests FEFEAR = (25,146) (20,775)
Total equity et R 668,653 647,227
Director Director
EE EE
AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
refEmPER

Year ended 31 March 2014 &EZ=F—

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

WE=A=+—HILLFE

ARREREEARE
Avallable- Equity-
forsale settled
Share investment Asset  share-based Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued premium Capital revaluation revaluation payment fluctuation Retained final controling Total
capital account resenve’ Tesene resene Tesenve Tesenve profits*** dividend Total interests equity
e IhiEEE
REEH B HRGER Ex 3 51
BERE  ROEER Pt i B Bh RE  REEA KBRS aE  HEREs EslE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
liF:d Thn T T T Titn Titn Titn Titn Thn Thn T T
At 1 April 2012 R-2-—£RA-H 60419 312319 19,376 = = 1,669 6417 179,561 - 639,821 (5,129 634,692
Proftoss) for the year ERER|/ (B8 - - - - - - - 9237 - 9237 (16,115) (6,878)
Other comprehensive incomel(oss) for the year:  £AZB2ERA/ (FE) :
Changes in fai value of avaiable-forsale AHHERELATEEZED
investments, net of tax Bilcz - - - 1847 - - - - - 1847 - 1847
(Gain on property revaluation, net of tax MEERYE NBFE - - - - 11,981 - - - - 11,981 - 11,981
Exchange differences on translation of BEBNEBENER
foreign operations
- Associates -BENA - - - - - - (183) - - (183) - (183)
— Subsidiaries -KEAA - - - - - - 1373 - - 1373 - 1373
- Joint ventures -RELE - - - - - - (%) - - %) - (94)
Exchange differences released upon HE-FRENRRERZ
disposal of an associate EiZE - - - - - - 21 - - 211 = 21
Total comprehensive incomel(oss) for the year ~ ER2EMRA/ (BB 4 - - - 1847 11,981 - 3267 9237 - 26332 (16,115) 10217
Capttal contribution from HiaMiER AL E
a non-controlling interest - - - - - - - - - - 469 469
Repurchase and cancellation of the BEREHAAARG
Company’s shares 35 (108) #17) 108 - - - - (108) - (525) - (525)
Equity-settied share option arangements R ERRER S % - - - - - 2415 - - - 2415 - 2415
Share of reserve of an associate ElE-FRERAZRR - - - - - @ - - - I - @
Release of reserve of an associate upon disposal ﬁﬁﬁw‘% BBERA G - - = = = (89) = = = 89) = 89
Share options lapsed BRELK - - - - - (1,628) - 1628 = = = -
Proposed final dividend BARSRE 13 - - - - - - - (6,031) 6,031 = = =
At31 Match 2013 R-2-Z6ZA=t-A 31 I l9M IaT TS 245 9f BT 601 680 @7 ena
AV Concept Holdings Limited 5 1
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEREREER

Year ended 31 March 2014 HE T —NF=A=+—HILtFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FARAREARG
Avalable- Equity-
forsale settled
Share investments Asset  share-based Exchange Proposed Non-
Issued premium Capital Other  revaluation revaluation payments  fluctuation Retained final controlling Total
capital account Teserve’ Reserve Tesenve reserve® Teserve resenve profits™ ~ dividend Total interests equity
e hREE
REEH EEUBBAR Efng Bd
BRfRE  ROEER  REBE  E4ER i EfER L & REEM  AERR BE  FEREE  EEEE
Notes HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
it TEn TEn Tén TEn TEn TAn TEn T#n THn TEn TEn THn Tén
At1 Al 2013 HZZ-=EmA-A 60,311 31962 19,484 - 1847 11,981 2415 9,684 184,287 6,031 668,002 (20,775) 647,21
Profilos) for the year £/ (58) - - - - - - - - 33 - 33 (96%8) (6:345)
Other comprehensive incomelloss) for th year: ERERZAR)/ (B
Changes n fairvlue of avalableforsdle THHERENTEE 2D
nvestments, et oftax nBRA - - - - 9% - - - ] - o
Avalableorsale investment revaluation esene HEMBATGERALY ERE
relased upon disposa o subsidaries i\ﬁ?w £l - - - (4734) - - - 4734) - (4734)
xchange diferences on translation f foreign operatons EXZE
- Subsiciaries - - - - 4 - - o (12) i
- Joint ventures - - - - (179) - - (179) - (179)
Totel comprehensiee incomefoss) for the year - - - - (4,240) 21 3383 - (626) (9710) (10,336)
Acquistion of subsidares - - - - - - - - - 3589 3589
Acquision of a non-controling interest - - - (38,306) - - - - (38,306) (6%4) (39,000)
Final 2013 dividend declared - - - - - - (786) (6031) (6817) - (6817)
Isue of new shares on subscrpion,net of shae isse expense: i 3 1260 35,600 - - - - - = 4,860 = 42,860
Evercse ofshare opions 3540 21, - - (7,296) - - - 8538 - 3538
Fquity-setled share option arrangements 3% - - - - 4991 - - - 4991 2601 159
Share options of a subsdiary lapsed - - - - - - 157 - 157 (151) -
At31 March 2014 RoZ-BE=A=1-A mmm 134,856+ 19,484 (38,306 (2393)* 11,981 110¢ 9945 187,011 - 693,799 (25,146) 668,653
3 Included in the balance of the capital reserve as at 31 March 2014 was a capital ~ * RIZE-—NFE=A=+—Bz2RAFHHHRBERAE
redemption reserve balance amounting to approximately HK$16,142,000 (2013: [E] 3 {85 45 #42 £916,142,000/8 7T (= F — =4 : 16,142,000

HK$16,142,000).
L The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from an owner-occupied
property to an investment property carried at fair value, during the year ended 31
March 2013. In accordance with HKAS 16, these balances were frozen and were not
available to offset the current and future years' revaluation deficits on investment
properties until the retirement or disposal of these assets.

s As at 31 March 2014, there was goodwill of HK$12,470,000 (2013: HK$12,470,000)
arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years which remained eliminated
against the consolidated retained profits.

@ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$622,688,000 (2013:
HK$601,660,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2014.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-_r\ IE%/}ILE%

Year ended 31 March 2014 HE =T —NF=A=+—HILFE

2014 201 3
—E-mF —T—=
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000
B THT T T
CASH FLOWS FROM REEBRCZHERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: B A Bl & A
From continuing operations KEFEERLEETR 53,888 52,301
From a discontinued operation RE BRI EETE (60,023) (63,447)
Adjustments for: FLATHBFHFE:
Finance costs R E AN 13,143 14,336
Share of profits of joint ventures DIEE &R F (59,082) (42,518)
Share of losses of associates DhEEE R R EE 1,545 16,240
Depreciation neE 8,670 10,272
Changes in fair value of KEMENTFEBEZE
investment properties 1,542 (8,293)
Amortisation of other intangible assets H 8 6 7,751 7,821
Impairment of trade receivables EUWE 5 R 2R E 1,134 2,887
Bad debts written off I 882 R 6 6 =
Impairment of slow moving inventories BT & 2 B 1,563 1,252
Write-off of other receivables 361 85 EL At B UK IB - 4,777
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEWE HE k& EEEB
property, plant and equipment Z e (Wa) (55,569) 250
Gain on disposal of associates ek NI 6 = (150,285)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE B ARz Wi (19,723) )
Provision for amounts due from 7E UK Bt 2 ) B B
associates 6 2,045 2,663
Write-off of an amount due from Wﬁﬁﬁfuﬂl 1 Al Ff 8 A
a former subsidiary B 19,330 -
Impairment of available-for-sale T R E 2 e
investments 6 - 6,623
Impairment of goodwill R 2 R E 20,744 7,947
Gain on derecognition of financial R ETERB ISR
guarantee obligation SEzZWE 6 (6,755) (5,163)
Impairment of investments in REEREZRE ZRE
joint ventures 6 6,755 5,163
Fair value losses/(gains), net: AFEFE/BE (W)
Equity investments at fair value through ~ E#@IBRIZAFEE
profit or loss PR 2 A% &
— held for trading —HEEE 6 (5,673) 5,061
— designated as such upon initial — RV I6 TR B
recognition sl il 6 27,411 49,197
Equity-settled share option expense IRt it H B R 6 7,592 2,415
Interest income from debt securities B EH A B WA 6 (1,168) (1,485)
Dividend income from listed investments  _EH#&& 2 i% 2 U A 6 (1,890) (817)
Interest income from an associate —RHE &R | 2 F B U A = (1,269)
Interest income from available-for-sale AHEHERE ZFEWA
investment (1,161) -
Bank interest income FRITH B MA 6 (67) (243)
(37,992) (84,317)
Increase in amounts due from associates & Y Bt & /A &) FXIE 2 12 N (1,241) (11,107)
Movement in balances with joint ventures & 2 (b 3 &% #4 7 & B 61 16,264
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEEZmL,/ () 76,144 (54,398)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables EBUNE ZERF 2
W, (1) (1,796) 43,110
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TET A « 2 Jo H i fE IR
deposits and other receivables HIBZRY () (735) 55,943
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables, ENE SRR BElire R
deposits received and accrued expenses fEstEA 2, Cd) (173,032) 75,814
Cash generated from/(used in) maEmE/ (A RE—
operations — page 54 %548 (138,591) 41,309
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-ﬁ IE%/}“JE%

Year ended 31 March 2014 HE =T —F=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
= ik —T=%
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FEx FHET
Cash generated from/(used in) KmERE (FTA)RE—
operations — page 53 %538 (138,591) 41,309
Dividend income received Bl —HEEeEREWA
from a joint venture 35,340 11,129
Hong Kong profits tax paid EREBFER (806) (3,211)
Overseas tax paid B8R 1A (861) (1,440)
Net cash flows from/(used in) e, (FTA)
operating activities HEREFRE (104,918) 47,787
CASH FLOWS FROM REFTHZRERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Bank interest income received BURER 1T A B U A 67 243
Interest income from debt securities B FEHF BIA 1,168 1,485
Dividends received from listed investments 2 U _EH &K B 1,890 817
Increase in pledged deposits [REEEUER i b (692) (1,994)
Purchases of items of property, HWEME BEKEREEB
plant and equipment (5,761) (4,153)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYSE  BRER&EEE
property, plant and equipment Fr {55538 40 11,288 1,406
Additions to other intangible assets //J\Eﬁi\mﬁﬁ/éF (16) (214)
Additions to investment properties R E Y E - (11,727)
Investments in associates EAHﬁ%’& AlZIEE - (7,770)
Subscription of shares in associates RN TH&L@ - (4,940)
Subscription of shares in a joint venture RE—HEELERSD - (30,000)
Proceeds from disposal of associates HEH AR RFTBRIE - 200,963
Acquisition of subsidiaries gAY NG 38 (23,129) -
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries S BT B A R FT 13 3R 39 23,103 =
Subscription of convertible bonds REBA I ES - (65,465)
Proceeds from disposal of non-current HERERE ZIERDEE
assets held for sale FiS 308 66,000 -
Proceeds from redemption of convertible ~ #&[@ & —Hﬁlﬁxt\%ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ
bonds 11,655 -
Purchases of available-for-sale investments & B A] it H €15 & (2,919) (15,540)
Purchases of investments at fair value BEERBEREATEE
through profit or loss SR 2R E (2,976) (175,147)
Disposal of equity investments at fair value H & FBEZEZ A FEE
through profit or loss PR 2 I ARG & 21,049 39,992
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing BEEEME (FTA)
activities ReREFE 100,727 (72,044)
54 AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
an\ Eﬁ:ﬁ/)“}%%&

Year ended 31 March 2014 HZ =T —NF=F=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E-F —T—=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt % FHExT FE T
CASH FLOWS FROM METH2RERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRID TR R 42,860 =
Repurchase of shares of the Company E%EK AR - (525)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests U B FE12E I 25 (39,000) =
Capital contribution from FEERER 2 EARLE
a non-controlling interest - 469
New bank and other loans FERITREMER 7,783 126,570
Repayment of bank loans BEFITER (22,825) (6,357)
Net increase/(decrease) in import and EORGETBIBEEFRZ
trust receipt loans #in, Crd)E5E 13,727 (164,455)
Capital element of finance BEHERSRBELL S
lease rental payments (425) (427)
Interest paid B F &8 (13,086) (14,278)
Interest element on finance lease BEHERSRIBENEH S
rental payments (57) (58)
Dividend paid B E (6,817)
Proceeds from exercise of share options 17 {8 E& % 4 AT 15 708 23,538 =
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing BMEEEE, (FTA)
activities BERE R 5,698 (59,061)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCASH BRe&RZEFEELEHZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B, CRd)F8E 1,507 (83,318)
Cash and cash equivalents FYzHekERRELER
at beginning of year 86,987 166,467
Effect of foreign exchange BE) o wE T
rate changes, net (739) 3,838
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZ2ASRERREER
AT END OF YEAR 87,755 86,987
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF ReRERRELER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EERZ DM
Cash and cash equivalents as stated WBARR KR RIRERER
in the statement of financial iz Re R ERIBESIEE
position and in the statement of
cash flows 28 87,755 86,987
AV Concept Holdings Limited 5 5
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Statement of Financial Position

FFAR AR

31 March 2014 = —F=A=+—H

2014 2013
—E-NEF —T—=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y B k& 15 5 1
Investments in subsidiaries RHBARZEE 19 511,332 459,927
Total non-current assets ERMEBEERE 511,337 459,938
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Due from subsidiaries & WL B8 A F) 19 2,563 4,094
Prepayments TEfT IR 26 117 50
Cash and cash equivalents RekERBEER 28 549 643
Total current assets MEBEERE 3,229 4,787
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBE
Accrued expenses FEET &R 30 1,866 1,568
Financial guarantee obligation MIEEREE 5,694 1,410
Total current liabilities mEBEARE 7,560 2,978
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) REBEE(8F)FE8E (4,331) 1,809
Net assets BEFE 507,006 461,747
EQUITY Em
Issued capital BETRA 35 71,111 60,311
Reserves (G 37(b) 435,895 395,405
Proposed final dividend EEAMIRE 13 - 6,031
Total equity e 507,006 461,747
Director Director
X EE
AV Concept Holdings Limited
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2.1

Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

AV Concept Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office of
the Company is located at PO. Box 309, Ugland House, South Church
Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, the Cayman Islands, British
West Indies and its principal place of business is located at 6th Floor,
Enterprise Square Three, 39 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong
Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. During the
year, the Group was engaged in the following principal activities:

o Marketing and distribution of electronic components;
o Design, development and sale of electronic products; and
o Venture capital investment

The Group ceased the trading of Light-emitting Diode (“LED") business
during the current year.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss, certain available-for-sale
investments (including key management insurance), convertible bonds
and investment properties, which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2014. The financial statements
of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

2.1

B RS R 2R Y

31 March 2014 == —F=A=+—H

REER

AV Concept Holdings Limited ([Z&R2AF] ) AR
FHEMHEEMKY 2 ARAR - ARNRA R Z M
#E = B2 P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, South
Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman,
the Cayman Islands, British West Indies * ifj £ &=
SEXMB AN EBNELRBE3NREE
% = Hietg -

ARBZEBEBRBREZER -FR AKHE
FEREUTER:

o EBfRMZMBHERDE:
e EBETEMIR HAEBEREE R
o BIRKRE

AEBERAFERKIEH L _EE ([LED])E

LA

AP BHRRIDBBEERSAMASEMZEE
MBmEER (BEMETEMHREER
FEGMENRRE) BEAARERAR
FERARIGPIZBBERERE BB BERE
RNFEEIRZBARE ETAHEERE
(BRIZEEABRR) FHRERESMEE
WMERBERFEBEIN BBHRERIVIRELK
AEMREL - R IK Ty AETT 251 - kR 3F
ZERA BRIMEEEER AREIZ T
2o

mEREEE
HSEVBHRREBARRRENE QT (FHE
[REE])BE_ZE—NF=A=1T—HIF
& 2 B 75 4Rk o B A A1 B R A R] 2 B 7% Rk
Z s HREAER - WERA B SETBERRR -
Bt 2 B 2 2248 I AR SR B BUSHE M 2 B AR
BAR IHEGAAR BEZERERL L
ZBAIE-.
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Notes to Financial Statements

IR AR AL

31 March 2014 = —F=A=+—H

2.1

2.2

58

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required in the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the

first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards —
Government Loans

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 - Transition Guidance

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKAS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Presentation of ltems of
Other Comprehensive Income

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
HKAS 36 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets

— Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-

Financial Assets (early adopted)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of

a Surface Mine

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued
2009-2011 Cycle in June 2012

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS
10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKFRS 13, amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 1 and HKAS 36, and certain amendments included
in Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle, the adoption of the new
and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as
follows:

(@)  HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that addresses the accounting
for consolidated financial statements and addresses the issues
in HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. It
establishes a single control model used for determining which
entities are consolidated. To meet the definition of control in
HKFRS 10, an investor must have (a) power over an investee, (b)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee
to affect the amount of the investor's returns. The changes
introduced by HKFRS 10 require management of the Group to
exercise significant judgement to determine which entities are
controlled.

The application of HKFRS 10 does not change any of the
consolidation conclusions of the Group in respect of its
involvement with investees as at 1 April 2013.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

60

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and
HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers. It describes the accounting for
joint arrangements with joint control. It addresses only two
forms of joint arrangements, i.e., joint operations and joint
ventures, and removes the option to account for joint ventures
using proportionate consolidation. The classification of joint
arrangements under HKFRS 11 depends on the parties’ rights and
obligations arising from the arrangements. A joint operation is a
joint arrangement whereby the joint operators have rights to the
assets and obligations for the liabilities of the arrangement and
is accounted for on a line-by-line basis to the extent of the joint
operators’ rights and obligations in the joint operation. A joint
venture is a joint arrangement whereby the joint venturers have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement and is required to be
accounted for using the equity method in accordance with HKAS
28 (2011).

The application of HKFRS 11 does not have any significant impact
to the financial statements.

HKFRS 12 sets out the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries,
joint arrangements, associates and structured entities previously
included in HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS
28 Investments in Associates. It also introduces a number of
new disclosure requirements for these entities. Details of the
disclosures for subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are
included in notes 19, 20 and 21 to the financial statements.

The HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Amendments clarify
the transition guidance in HKFRS 10 and provide further relief
from full retrospective application of these standards, limiting the
requirement to provide adjusted comparative information to only
the preceding comparative period. The amendments clarify that
retrospective adjustments are only required if the consolidation
conclusion as to which entities are controlled by the Group is
different between HKFRS 10 and HKAS 27 or HK(SIC)-Int 12 at
the beginning of the annual period in which HKFRS 10 is applied
for the first time.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(e)

()

(9

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and a single
source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across HKFRSs. The standard does not change the
circumstances in which the Group is required to use fair value,
but rather provides guidance on how fair value should be
applied where its use is already required or permitted under
other HKFRSs. HKFRS 13 is applied prospectively and the
adoption has had no material impact on the Group's fair value
measurements. As a result of the guidance in HKFRS 13, the
policies for measuring fair value have been amended. Additional
disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the fair value measurements
of investment properties and financial instruments are included in
notes 16 and 47 to the financial statements.

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of items
presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI"). Items that
could be reclassified (or recycled) to profit or loss at a future
point in time (for example, exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations, net movement on cash flow hedges
and net loss or gain on available-for-sale financial assets) are
presented separately from items which will never be reclassified
(for example, the revaluation of land and buildings). The
amendments have affected the presentation only and have had
no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group.
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income has been
restated to reflect the changes. In addition, the Group has chosen
to use the new title “statement of profit or loss” as introduced by
the amendments in these financial statements.

The HKAS 36 Amendments remove the unintended disclosure
requirement made by HKFRS 13 on the recoverable amount of
a cash-generating unit which is not impaired. In addition, the
amendments require the disclosure of the recoverable amounts
for the assets or cash-generating units for which an impairment
loss has been recognised or reversed during the reporting period,
and expand the disclosure requirements regarding the fair
value measurement for these assets or units if their recoverable
amounts are based on fair value less costs of disposal. The
amendments are effective retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014 with earlier application
permitted, provided HKFRS 13 is also applied. The Group has
early adopted the amendments in these financial statements. The
amendments have had no impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

62

(h)

Annual Improvements 2009-2011 Cycle issued in June 2012 sets
out amendments to a number of standards. There are separate
transitional provisions for each standard. While the adoption of
some of the amendments may result in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments have had a significant
financial impact on the Group. Details of the key amendments
most applicable to the Group are as follows:

o HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Clarifies
the difference between voluntary additional comparative
information and the minimum required comparative
information. Generally, the minimum required comparative
period is the previous period. An entity must include
comparative information in the related notes to the
financial statements when it voluntarily provides
comparative information beyond the previous period.
The additional comparative information does not need to
contain a complete set of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the opening
statement of financial position as at the beginning of
the preceding period must be presented when an entity
changes its accounting policies; makes retrospective
restatements or makes reclassifications, and that change
has a material effect on the statement of financial position.
However, the related notes to the opening statement of
financial position as at the beginning of the preceding
period are not required to be presented.

o HKAS 32 Financial Instruments. Presentation: Clarifies that
income taxes arising from distributions to equity holders
are accounted for in accordance with HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes. The amendment removes existing income tax
requirements from HKAS 32 and requires entities to apply
the requirements in HKAS 12 to any income tax arising
from distributions to equity holders.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and
HKAS 39 Amendments

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011)
Amendments

HKFRS 11 Amendments

HKFRS 14

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

Amendments

HKAS 19 Amendments

HKAS 32 Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

2w N -

Financial Instruments*

Hedge Accounting and amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39*

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011) — Investment Entities’

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting
for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations?

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation?®

Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits — Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments. Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’

Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Novation of Derivatives

and Continuation of Hedge Accounting’

Levies'
Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in January 20142

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
issued in January 20142

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

No mandatory effective date yet determined but is available for adoption
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 23 BHEMAERNRERZEBHBERE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase 1 of
a comprehensive project to entirely replace HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This phase focuses on the
classification and measurement of financial assets. Instead of classifying
financial assets into four categories, an entity shall classify financial
assets as subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair value,
on the basis of both the entity’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets. This aims to improve and simplify the approach for the
classification and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of HKAS 39.

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to HKFRS 9 to address
financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the
current derecognition principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39.
Most of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from HKAS 39,
while changes were made to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value
option (“FVO"). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in
the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit risk
must be presented in OCI. The remainder of the change in fair value is
presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change
in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts which have been designated under the
FVO are scoped out of the Additions.

In December 2013, the HKICPA added to HKFRS 9 the requirements
related to hedge accounting and made some related changes to HKAS
39 and HKFRS 7 which include the corresponding disclosures about risk
management activity for applying hedge accounting. The amendments
to HKFRS 9 relax the requirements for assessing hedge effectiveness
which result in more risk management strategies being eligible for
hedge accounting. The amendments also allow greater flexibility on the
hedged items and relax the rules on using purchased options and non-
derivative financial instruments as hedging instruments. In addition, the
amendments to HKFRS 9 allow an entity to apply only the improved
accounting for own credit risk-related fair value gains and losses arising
on FVO liabilities as introduced in 2010 without applying the other
HKFRS 9 requirements at the same time.
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2.3

2.4

Notes to Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety. Before
this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on impairment of
financial assets continues to apply. The previous mandatory effective
date of HKFRS 9 was removed by the HKICPA in December 2013
and a mandatory effective date will be determined after the entire
replacement of HKAS 39 is completed. However, the standard is
available for application now. The Group will quantify the effect in
conjunction with other phases, when the final standard including all
phases is issued.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 include a definition of an investment entity
and provide an exception to the consolidation requirement for entities
that meet the definition of an investment entity. Investment entities are
required to account for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in
accordance with HKFRS 9 rather than consolidate them. Consequential
amendments were made to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011). The
amendments to HKFRS 12 also set out the disclosure requirements
for investment entities. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of these amendments upon initial application.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a
legally enforceable right to setoff” for offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities. The amendments also clarify the application of the
offsetting criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems (such as central
clearing house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that
are not simultaneous. The amendments are not expected to have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group upon
adoption on 1 April 2014.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHHERBE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement
of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company's investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which
it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there
has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent
of the Group's investments in the associates or joint ventures, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or joint
ventures is included as part of the Group's investments in associates or
joint ventures.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)
If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.
In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the associate or
joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures and recognises
any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment
and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Business combination and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value either recognised in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration
is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance with
the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHHERBE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Business combination and goodwiill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a
gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group
of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, convertible bonds,
certain available-for-sale investments and equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value
of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHHERBE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, investment
properties, financial assets, goodwill and assets of a disposal group
classified as held for sale/assets classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHHERBE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of
a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Non-current assets and disposal groups held for
sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 2% - 3%
Leasehold improvements 20% — 33'5%
Furniture, fittings and office equipment 20% - 335%
Plant, machinery and tools 20% — 50%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year of
the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied properties
or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a property
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes
an investment property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any difference
at that date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for as movements in the asset revaluation reserve.
On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuation is transferred
to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sales
transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case,
the asset or disposal group must be available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale must be highly
probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a disposal
group are reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the Group
retains a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment
properties and financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets classified as held
for sale are not depreciated or amortised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBERE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Club memberships

The Group's club memberships are stated at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses, on an individual
basis.

Trademarks and customer relationships

Trademarks and customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of five years.

Mobile application

Mobile application is stated at cost less any impairment losses and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of five
years.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are accounted for as
finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments
under finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to
the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic rate
of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing nature
are accounted for as finance lease, but are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the statement of
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease in
property, plant and equipment.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial investments, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale
in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHHERBE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not held for trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the
fair value through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income and gains in
the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans
and in other expenses for receivables.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in unlisted equity investments. Equity investments classified
as available for sale are those which are neither classified as held for
trading nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss, or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or
loss. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-
sale financial investments are reported as interest income and dividend
income, respectively and are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss as other income in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its
available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate.
When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset
that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount
is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired,
then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHHEERBE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

3 the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash
flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all
collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Group..

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of
profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHHERBE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that an
investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective
evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against
the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there
is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case
of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings and finance lease payables.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHHEERBE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the weighted average basis and includes all costs of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHHERBE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,
on the following bases:

(@  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective control over the
goods sold;

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset;

(c)  rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

(d)  management fee income and trademark licence income, when
the services have been rendered; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after
7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are given in note
36 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefit expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is conditional
upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions
are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if
the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHHEERBE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken as at the end of the reporting period is permitted
to be carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in the
following year. An accrual is made at the end of the reporting period for
the expected future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by
the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group's
employer voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China, Singapore and Korea are required to participate in pension
schemes operated by the respective local municipal governments. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll costs to the pension schemes. The contributions are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the pension schemes.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the statements
of financial position, until they have been approved by the shareholders
in a general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHHERBE @)

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
If these portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses carried forward
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised, based
on all available evidence. Recognition primarily involves judgement
regarding the future performance of the particular legal entity or tax
group in which the deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety
of other factors are also evaluated in considering whether there is
convincing evidence that it is probable that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised, such as the existence of
taxable temporary differences, tax planning strategies and the periods
in which estimated tax losses can be utilised. The carrying amount
of deferred tax assets and related financial models and budgets are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and to the extent that
there is insufficient convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits
will be available within the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of
the tax losses carried forward, the asset balance will be reduced and
charged to the statement of profit or loss. The amount of unrecognised
tax losses at 31 March 2014 was approximately HK$259 million (2013:
approximately HK$332 million). Further details are contained in note 34
to the financial statements.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market
for similar lease terms and other contracts. In the absence of current
prices in an active market for similar properties, the Group considers
information from a variety of sources, including:

(@)  current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those
differences;

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and

(c)  discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts and (when possible) by external evidence
such as current market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and
timing of the cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment properties (continued)

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March 2014 was
HK$80,764,000 (2013: HK$82,760,000). Further details, including
the key assumptions used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity
analysis, are given in note 16 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwiill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period. Other
intangible assets are tested for impairment annually and at other times
when such indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group determines that available-for-sale investments are impaired
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value below its cost. When the fair value declines, management
makes assumptions about the decline in value to determine whether
there is an impairment that should be recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. For available-for-sale investments measured at cost,
management assess the future prospects of these investments to
determine whether there is an impairment that should be recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. As at 31 March 2014, an impairment
loss of HK$6,623,000 (2013: HK$8,523,000) had been recognised
for available-for-sale investments. The carrying amount of available-
for-sale investments as at 31 March 2014 was HK$42,920,000 (2013:
HK$59,332,000).
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31 March 2014 = —F=A=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of trade receivables, deposits and other receivables
The Group makes impairment provision for trade and other receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of these receivables.
Impairment provision is made for these receivables where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires the use of
judgement and estimates, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each debtor. Where the expectation on
the recoverability of these receivables is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of these
receivables and impairment provision in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed. The aggregate carrying amount of trade
receivables as at 31 March 2014 amounted to HK$219,222,000 (2013:
HK$224,528,000). The aggregate carrying amount of deposits and
other receivables as at 31 March 2014 amounted to HK$127,932,000
(2013: HK$38,955,000).

Provision for inventories

The Group’s management reviews the inventory ageing analysis
periodically, and makes allowance on an annual basis for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable
for use in production. The Group carries out an inventory review
on a product-by-product basis at the end of each reporting period
and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving items through
management’s estimation of the net realisable value for such obsolete
and slow-moving items based primarily on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions. The aggregate carrying amount of the
Group's inventories as at 31 March 2014 was HK$262,427,000 (2013:
HK$349,417,000).

Impairment of goodwiill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the
value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2014 was
HK$32,780,000 (2013: HK$40,848,000). Further details are given in
note 17 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of assets (other than goodwiill)

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has to exercise
judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value or such
event affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by the management to determine
the level of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on the
expected cash flows discounted at current rates applicable for items
with similar terms and risk characteristics. This valuation requires the
Group to make estimates about expected future cash flows, credit risk,
volatility and discount rates, and hence they are subject to uncertainty.
The fair value of the unlisted equity investments at 31 March 2014 was
HK$29,773,000 (2013: HK$46,679,000). Further details are included in
note 23 to the financial statements.

Useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group amortises its intangible assets with a finite useful life on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful lives reflect the management’s estimate of the period that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of these
intangible assets. The carrying amount of intangible assets at 31 March
2014 amounted to HK$20,464,000 (2013: HK$23,141,000).
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31 March 2014 = —F=A=+—H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and has four reportable operating
segments as follows:

(@)  the semiconductor distribution segment engages in the sale and
distribution of electronic components;

(b)  the consumer electronic product segment engages in the design,
development and sale of electronic products;

(c)  the venture capital segment engages in the investments in listed/
unlisted equity investments with an ultimate objective of capital
gain on investee's equity listing or, in some circumstances, prior
to listing. It also includes investments in real estates or managed
funds; and

(d) the others segment mainly comprises the Group's trading of
Light-emitting Diode (“LED") and mobile application development
business.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure
of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before
tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit/(loss) before tax
except that interest income, dividend income from listed investments,
management fee income, rental income, other gains, share of profits
and losses of associates and joint ventures, fair value gains/(losses) on
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, gain/(loss) on
disposal of items of property, plant and equipment, gains on disposal
of subsidiaries and associates, changes in fair value of investment
properties, provision for amounts due from associates and amounts due
from former subsidiaries, impairment of available-for-sale investments,
write-off of other receivables, finance costs and unallocated expenses
are excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. K& 5 IBE R (#)
Consumer
Semiconductor electronic Venture
distribution product capital Others Elimination Total
HEE
HERAH ETER b Hit B &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TEn Thn TR TR FHx
Year ended 31 March 2014 BZ-Z2-mE=f=t-HI
3

Segment revenue: ARl
Sales to external customers ANRBRHEE 2,677,659 69,658 - 2,585 - 2,749,902
Intersegment sales AHREBEE - 37 - - (37) -
Total revenue from continuing operations BEGLEH BNS 2,677,659 69,695 - 2,585 (37) 2,749,902
Segment results PHEE 12,536 (6,256) (30,992) (6,630) - (31,342)
Reconciliation: ik
Bank interest income FATREWA 67
Dividend income from listed investments IREZREMA 1,528
Management fee income from associates WEEERFZERBMA (370)
Rental income REWA 2,193
Share of profits of joint ventures AMERELEEMN 59,082
Share of profits and losses of associates AMEBE R RET REE (1,545)
Fair value gains on equity investments EREREATEEIRZRA

at fair value through profit or loss, net REZATEENSTE 25
Gain on disposal of items of property, LENE HER

plant and equipment B e 55,569
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries == PNG bl 63 3,234
Provision for amounts due from associates Y e A RITIERE (2,045)
Changes in fair value of RENEATEELE

investment properties (1,542)
Unallocated expenses RABZAR (17,870)
Finance costs BERA (13,096)
Profit before tax from continuing operations  #EEEEH 2 BHATEF 53,888

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014 4

95



Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2014 = —F=A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, REFTERE (@)

Consumer
Semiconductor electronic Venture
distribution product capital Others Elimination Total
HER
FEEAH ETER £l Efh B ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL ThEL ThEL ThEL ThEL ThEL
(Restated) (Restated)
(&m=31) (m=31)
Year ended 31 March 2013 BE-T-=#=A=+-HL
G35
Segment revenue: Al
Sales to external customers AN BREE 100,817 2,334,475
Intersegment sales HHEHE 3 -
Total revenue from continuing operations BRIEEXBZEYE 100,820 2,334,475
Segment results %R (6,208) 13,463
Reconciliation: ik
Bank interest income FAMEHA 243
Interest income from an associate —EBERRZFERA 1,036
Dividend income from IiREZREMA
listed investments 2
Management fee income from associates WEgERF ZEBBMA 2,85
Management fee income from YB-BEBEAFZ
a related company EREBHA 360
Rental income REWA 1,120
Share of profits of joint ventures MERELEERN 4,518
Share of profits and losses of associates AMhEE AR RN RER (16,240)
Fair value gains on equity investments BREREATERSIEL
at fair value through profit or loss, net RAREs ATERREFE 239
Loss on disposal of items of property, WENE BE &
plant and equipment REEECER (250)
Gain on disposal of associates HEBERF NS 62,160
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FME AR 2 Kas 2
Impairment of available-forsale investments AT ERE 2 fE (6,623)
Write-off of other receivables HMIEE thEUGRE (3,904)
Provision for amounts due from associates el e A 15}%1% (2,663)
Provision for amounts due from Gl N
former subsidiaries (671)
Changes in fair value of investment properties X &£ AFEEL 2 375
Unallocated expenses RAMZAZ (27,707)
Finance costs BERK (14,015)
Profit before tax from continuing operations BB £ 7 BB ATEF 52,301
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31 March 2014 = —&=/A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4, RESITER (@)

Consumer
Semiconductor electronic Venture
distribution product capital Others Total
HEE
YERAH ETER -1E Hity &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T L TEL TEL THL
Year ended 31 March 2014 BE-E-MFE=A=1+-HL
FE
Segment assets THEE 903,556 47,556 433,279 32,104 1,416,495
Reconciliation: HiR:
Elimination of intersegment receivables % 85> &5 il fE U 0 (370,222)
Investments in associates ﬁ”‘Eﬁ?%/R Al RE 285 2,165 - = 2,450
Investments in joint ventures REELEZRE 123,396 - - - 123,396
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ AFIREMKDEEE 128,602
Assets related to a discontinued HERHEEEEBR AE
operation 34,738
Total assets BEMAE 1,335,459
Segment liabilities AHaE 124,530 243,537 124,376 7,057 499,500
Reconciliation: HiR:
Elimination of intersegment payables Tfﬁﬁ D EEENTE (370,222)
Corporate and RAREMRAREE
other unallocated liabilities 528,658
Liabilities related to HERHEEEBEEL
a discontinued operation BE 8,870
Total liabilities BEEE 666,806
Year ended 31 March 2013 HE-T-=F=RA=+-HIt
FE
Segment assets DHEE 938,893 117,909 383,787 16,140 1,456,729
Reconciliation: Hik:
Elimination of intersegment receivables 54 #5830 (299,749)
Investments in associates Wﬁ?%ﬂ TZ&é“ 1,581 2,346 - = 3,927
Investments in joint ventures NEELEZRE 95,610 - - - 95,610
Assets classified as held for sale "*W%H’Eﬁ EAE = = 66,000 - 66,000
Corporate and other unallocated assets A& REMADEEE 160,316
Total assets BERE 1,482,833
Segment liabilties A 231,578 193,155 135,546 24,875 585,154
Reconciliation: HiR:
Elimination of intersegment payables BEDPREEMNTE (299,749)
Liabilities classified as held for sale "*57%%—;1’% EZEf% - - 21,270 - 21,270
Corporate and other unallocated RAREMAAREAE
liabilities 528,931
Total liabilities afEesm 835,606
AV Concept Holdings Limited
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) ResBER (@
Other segment information: HitnBEHR:
Consumer
Semiconductor electronic Venture
distribution product capital Others Total
HEE
YEEAIH ETEM -1 Hith At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TET TET TiEx
Year ended 31 March 2014 BE-Z-ME=A=1+-HL
FE
Depreciation bl 3,230 194 1,045 - 4,469
Unallocated depreciation RPBEZHE 1,562
Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ H A ER EEE i 3,782 3,029 - 940 7,751
Provision for/(reversal of) BEZRERE,/ (#E)
impairment of inventories 535 (1,037) - - (502)
Impairment of trade receivables, net REUEZERRETFE 1,982 (334) - = 1,648
Bad debts written off RS 6 - - = 6
Impairment of investments BRLEZRE ZRE
in joint ventures 6,755 - - - 6,755
Provision for amounts JEMRE: & N A FURR S
due from associates - 45 - 2,000 2,045
Capital expenditure* BAREZ 309 16 790 9,400 10,515
Consumer
Semiconductor electronic Venture
distribution product capital Others Total
HEBH
FEEAH EfEM % Hify A&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL TEr TER FEL THL
(Restated) (Restated)
(g=5) (&=5)
Year ended 31 March 2013 HE2_Z-=-F=-fA=1-HIt
FE
Depreciation E 3,681 198 1,523 6 5,408
Unallocated depreciation RABZTE 1,702
Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ H A E EEE 4,798 3,023 - = 7,821
Provision for/(reversal of) FEzRERE/ (ED)
impairment of inventories 2,199 (940) - - 1,259
Impairment of trade receivables, net FEWE S8R Z/WE/?%E 570 1,645 - - 2,215
Write-off of other receivables WsHE A e IR - 3,904 - - 3,904
Bad debt written off RS - 3 = 65 68
Impairment of available-for-sale A HERE 2 RE
investments - - - 6,623 6,623
Impairment of goodwill BB ZRE 7,947 - - = 7,947
Impairment of investments RRCEZRE ZRE
in joint ventures 5,163 - - - 5,163
Provision for amounts JE B & N R A B
due from associates 215 793 - 1,655 2,663
Provision for amounts due from ERRTR B2 RIFUAR &
former subsidiaries - - 671 - 671
Capital expenditure* BEARRZ 452 709 23,510 = 24,671
= Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, 3 BARASBREBEBECEEBAEME BERRK

investment properties and intangible assets including assets from the acquisition
of a subsidiary, of continuing operations.
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31 March 2014 = —&=/A=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) KEFEER (@)
Geographical information it & & R

(a) Revenue from external customers (a) REMREEFE2ZWE
2014 2013
—E-MmF —ET—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Hong Kong B 763,890 799,579
Singapore 3N 1,808,115 1,383,636
Korea F B 163,094 140,213
United States of America ENRE RE = 5,054
Other countries HEa R 14,803 5,993
2,749,902 2,334,475

The revenue information of continuing operations above is based

EFEEERB MR ERRE P R E

on the locations of the customers. T E
(b) Non-current assets (b) FRBEE

2014 2013
—E-MF =%
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(geE7)
Hong Kong BH 198,218 244,010
Mainland China H B AT 54,849 54,808
Singapore 0 40,406 43,951
Korea F2E 19,400 22,670
312,873 365,439

The non-current asset information of continuing operations above
is based on the locations of the assets and excludes financial

instruments.

Information about major customers attributable to

semiconductor distribution

PRRHBEEEBZFRDEEERR
BEMEMFR EFTEESRIA-

FEFERIHETEEFZ2ER

2014 2013
—2-mE —F=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAT
Customer A EFA 517,026 481,926
Customer B =B 508,669 69,934
1,025,695 551,860
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31 March 2014 = —F=A=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W& Bt AR K=
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the net invoiced Wes (TMENAEKEE 2 S X)) BAFEDERER
value of goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts, BERFTNEZHEERFME-

during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains from continuing RS R 2 Wam - H AR R s 2 2 T 4o
operations is as follows: T:
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-IOF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
(Restated)
(seE75)
Revenue &=
Semiconductor distribution FE 5 2,677,659 2,230,141
Consumer electronic product sales HERSETEMHEE 69,658 100,817
Others Hi 2,585 3,517
2,749,902 2,334,475
Other income and gains Hth g A R Wz
Bank interest income HRITH B WA 67 243
Interest income from debt securities BEESFEWA 1,168 1,485
Interest income from an associate — Mg &R F) 2 F B A - 1,036
Interest income from —HHAHEERE ZFEWA
an available-for-sale investment 928 -
Dividend income from listed investments & z i B U8 A 1,890 817
Gain on disposal of items of property, EEWE HWERZEEB 2 W
plant and equipment 55,569 -
Management fee income from associates ~ YgEUEE: & A 7 2 BEIRE U A 370 2,856
Management fee income from WE—HE@EEAR 2 ERERA
a related company - 360
Trademark license income from —EEE R A 2 IR WA
an associate 544 505
Rental income e A 2,193 2,549
Others Hih 2,149 2,986
64,878 12,837
1 OO AV Concept Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2014 F %k



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R 2R Y

31 March 2014 = —&=/A=+—H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PBRBLATER
The Group's profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived at AN BB T 2 BB AR A BB  (5F
after charging/(crediting): A) ¢
2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ihg=g FET F&T
(Restated)
(ge&E751))
Cost of inventories sold*** SHE R AR *** 2,611,871 2,216,301
Provision for/(reversal of) GTEZRMERME, (L) ***
impairment of inventories*** (502) 1,259
Depreciation e 6,031 7,110
Amortisation of other intangible Ho b & B 2 B
assets** 18 7,751 7,821
Impairment of trade receivables, FEWE 5 R 2 B S EE*
net* 1,648 2,215
Bad debts written off* 128 AR Hf 81 * 6 68
Impairment of available-for-sale AHEERE ZBE*
investments* 23 - 6,623
Write-off of other receivables* 68 L fth B UL FRIE * - 3,904
Impairment of goodwill* A2 B 17 - 7,947
Minimum lease payments under THREFCEERE
operating leases in respect of &IEHEERE
land and buildings 2,540 2,799
Auditors’ remuneration % Z RN B & 2,700 2,711
Staff costs (including directors’ BIXA (BIEEZHM
remuneration — note 8) — [T 5E8)
Wages, salaries and other I8 FHe kHAMER
allowances 71,464 74,516
Equity-settled share option ARt s E AR R S *
expense* 36 7,592 2,415
Pension scheme contributions RINE T B3R 3,897 3,251
82,953 80,182
AV Concept Holdings Limited ,I O 1
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. PBRBLATERI (40)
2014 2013
—E-ImF —F—=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt 5T FExT F&T
(Restated)
(re=751))
Fair value losses/(gains), net: NEREESE, (W)
Equity investments at fair value FERBEmIEAFEESERZ
through profit or loss A% &
— held for trading —FEEE (5,673) 5,061
— designated as such upon — R HE R 48 T A U
initial recognition sl 27,411 49,197
Foreign exchange differences, net*  [& X =56, F 55 * (3,758) (10,721)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of ~ HEYZE WEKZEEE 2
property, plant and equipment B, (W) (55,569) 156
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR Z WS 39 (3,234)
Gain on disposal of associates ==l RN ol - (150,285)
Bank interest income SRITHIEMA (67) (243)
Interest income from an associate — B & A R 2 F B A - (1,036)
Interest income from —IEA SR E 2 F B IRA
an available-for-sale investment (928)
Interest income from debt securities & 75 & 5 F| B UL A (1,168) (1,485)
Dividend income from listed EKREZRERA
investments (1,890) (817)
Impairment of investments REELERE ZRES
in joint ventures* 6,755 5,163
Provision for amounts due from JrE Wi B i R R FRIB B A
associates* 2,045 2,663
Provision for amounts due from JRE 52 AT PR JB X ) SR IE H 4
former subsidiaries* - 671
Gain on derecognition of financial 4 IEFERT BRARE T2 Wam*
guarantee obligation* (6,755) (5,163)
Gross rental income HEEWA (2,193) (2,549)
Less: Direct expenses B EERE 1,005 870
Net rental income HeFEA (1,188) (1,679)
* These balances are included in “Other expenses, net” on the face of the & ZEERTFTAGEBERZ [EthERFE] -

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

& * This balance is included in “Administrative expenses” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

**%  These balances are included in “Costs of sales” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

1 02 AV Concept Holdings Limited
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FINANCE COSTS 7. Eﬂ‘ﬁﬁﬂx
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as follows: SEREEE CRMER AR Z DT
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-IF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
(Restated)
(e =7)
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable /,\EAﬂi AEEEEZ
within five years, including bank loans TERZHE
which contain a repayment ( &%%Zﬁ/ﬂﬁg (B8
on demand clause ERZIRITEF) 12,660 13,846
Interest on mortgage loans /,\EAiiiWi%ME B2
not wholly repayable within five years RBERZFE 379 111
Interest on finance leases RERE ZFE 57 58
13,096 14,015
DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8. EEHM
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing BE FMREREEDTHEHIE161IEIHEE 2
Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as ANEEEEHMWOT :
follows:
Group
rEEH
2014 2013
—ZT-mF —ET—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Fees e 1,000 300
Other emoluments: H b B 5 -
Salaries, housing and other Fe BEREMBMAR
allowances, and benefits in kind EWMH = 14,346 14,441
Equity-settled share option expense HXFE, EHERERS 843 1,486
Pension scheme contributions BT SR 507 578
15,696 16,505
16,696 16,805
AV Concept Holdings Limited
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(a)

(b)

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEHFM m
Independent non-executive directors () BIYFEHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the RERESZNTEYIFENTES 2SN
year are as follows: N
2014 2013
—E-IF —E—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T T
Dr. Lui Ming Wah, SBS, JP B RAERB L SBS AT+ 100 100
Mr. Charles Edward Chapman Charles Edward Chapman?t 4 100 100
Mr. Wong Ka Kit ERELE 800 100
1,000 300
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent REZWEEMBNEIFERNTESTZ
non-executive directors during the year (2013: Nil). e (ZE—=F:&)-
Executive directors (b) HITESE
Salaries,
housing and Equity-
other settled
allowances, share Pension
and benefits option scheme Total
in kind expense contributions  remuneration
¢ BER
Hit 2R RELE Bie
RENFE BN X BE G e Fob
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FTAT FTAT THAT
2014 —E2-mE
Executive directors: HITES:
Dr. Hon. So Yuk Kwan HEHEL 6,411 - 254 6,665
Mr. So Chi On HELELE 5,964 - 238 6,202
Mr. Ho Choi Yan Christopher MBREE 1,971 843 15 2,829
14,346 843 507 15,696
2013 —E-ZF%
Executive directors: HMITES:
Dr. Hon. So Yuk Kwan BB 6,562 93 272 6,927
Mr. So Chi On BEREE 5,827 929 291 7,047
Mr. Ho Choi Yan Christopher MBBEE 2,052 464 15 2,531
14,441 1,486 578 16,505

104

There was no other arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2013: Nil).

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2013:
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8
above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2013: two)
non-director, highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

B RS R 2R Y

31 March 2014 = —&=/A=+—H

AfuFMERSZES
AEERUHHEE 2 REBE =1 (=%
—ZF: S EF HHFMHERN LM
8% - A AL (=B — =4 : Ff) Hl
REZFEFREZFHHEMT

Group
rEH
2014 2013
—ZE-F —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx F&T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ EZBI R EYWFz= 4,242 3,439

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

FN T THEB ZFMER=IEESREEZA
T

Number of employees
EBEAH
2014
—2-mnmF =T =

HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000

1,000,001} 7T 21,500,000/ 7T
1,500,001} 7T 22,000,000/ 7T
2,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2014 4
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10. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2013:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group

10. Fr8

ERFEHINIBRBEAFEEEBEEZHTER
TR MR Z16.5% (ZB—=%:16.5% )t &
B4 o E fth 3 [ PR AR B R B 2 T IR T iR AR & B 48
BEBERAERBRAZHENE -

operates.
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-NF =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Group: REH :
Current — Hong Kong BVER— B
Charge for the year REEZE 377 428
Current — Elsewhere BV AR — EL At 30 [=
Charge for the year KEEZE 1,538 954
Underprovision/(overprovision) LEFEEREETR
in prior years (FBRER ) (330) 248
Deferred (note 34) IRIE (H17134) (1,375) 1,738
Total tax charge for the year REFZHIEX H1R%E 210 3,368

1 06 AV Concept Holdings Limited
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A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at
the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the

effective tax rate is as follows:

10. FRAEH ()

RAARRQR REKRIBSHE R A M el AR
IR R E 2 B A s FE A 2 RIE
HIFERHEAE BB HZHIRNT

Group rEE
2014 2013
—E-IF =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
(e =7)
Profit before tax from continuing FECE TS 2 BREL AT
operations il 53,888 52,301
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% BEEME16.5%
(2013: 16.5%) (ZE—=%:165%)
SHEZ A 8,892 8,630
Effect of different tax rates HEMBERBRER &8
in other countries 354 431
Profits and losses attributable to EELEREE QAT
joint ventures and associates FEA 5 | K B 48 (9,389) (4,290)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of 75 BAB 1T BAfE B AT I8 2 A%
previous periods (330) 248
Income not subject to tax BAERRIA (15,479) (26,454)
Expenses not deductible for tax EE L 13,972 16,063
Tax losses not recognised KRR 2 TRIEEE 3,340 9,261
Tax losses utilised from previous periods B @ HA R 2 Fi E &5 18 (1,459) (309)
Others EAh 309 (206)
Tax charge for the year RNEEHIE M 210 3,368

The share of tax attributable to associates and joint ventures amounting
to nil (2013: HK$55,000) and HK$11,843,000 (2013: HK$8,812,000),
respectively, is included in “Share of profits and losses of associates and
joint ventures” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

DAk EE R A

REECRZEBEREANNRT

— & — =4 :55,000% T) & 11,843,0007 T
—ZE—=%:8,812,000/&7T) ' Dt ALEE

BRZ [DIEBE AR
o

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 1. ZREHEEAEEZEF
COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company for the HE-_Z-TNF=A=1+—BLEFEZARQF
year ended 31 March 2014 includes a loss of HK$19,313,000 (2013: BE ARBIGES BN BEERARA R BHRE
loss of HK$13,504,000) which has been dealt with in the financial NERIE 27 E51819,313,0008 0 (—E—=F : 55
statements of the Company (note 37(b)). 613,504,000/ 7L) (BEFE37(b)) ©
12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 12. ERLEREER
On 31 January 2014, the Group disposed of its entire interest in RZZE—WFEF—A=+—8 ' A&EE@Chung
Soul Electronics USA, LLC. (“SUSA") to Chung Young Asia Limited, Young Asia Limited (3325 =7 ) tH & E ¥ Soul
an independent third party, for a cash consideration of HK$1. Upon Electronics USA, LLC. ([SUSA )z 2 &tz « IR
the disposal of SUSA, the Group would focus its resources on the SREF/IBIT - REHESUSAE RNEBEGHHE
semiconductor distribution business. As at 31 March 2014, the Group BEREFRIBREBAOHEK - N_T—MF=A
was in the process of disposing of the operation of the Group’s SOUL® =t+—H AEEFHERNEE ZSOULCE # %
headphone business (the “Disposal”) and management expected the BEE([HEFHE]) MEEEBEHHESER
Disposal to be completed within one year from 31 March 2014. REZT—MOF=A=+—HEBi—FAZK-
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Disposal is RARESERR HEFEBAEAIRLET - Bt -
highly probable. Hence, the SOUL® headphone business is presented as SOULCH X BE 25 AERIEREERK - B &
a discontinued operation. The results of the discontinued operation for IEREEB 2 FRNEE2HIWT -
the year are presented below:
2014 2013
—Z—nmEF =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHET
Revenue and other income Wz & E AU A 93,221 130,098
Cost of sales and expenses SHEKA KA (148,942) (193,224)
Finance costs A& B AR (47) (321)
Loss from the discontinued operation BRILEEES 2 B (55,768) (63,447)
Loss recognised on the remeasurement REFFTEEQFEER

to fair value R EE (20,744) =
Loss before tax from ERIEREEB 2

the discontinued operation BRELRIEE (76,512) (63,447)
Income tax credit: FrigHE & :

Related to pre-tax loss BB AT EE A - 7,636
Gain on disposal of SUSA & SUSAZ Uk 25 16,489 =
Loss for the year from BRI EERE 2 FREE

the discontinued operation (60,023) (55,811)

1 08 AV Concept Holdings Limited
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the disposal group classified
as held for sale as at 31 March are as follows:

BARIEEEER @)

REZA=+—BDERFEHEZHEARZE

EEERABBRINNAT:

2014 2013
—E—-NF =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment M - B k& E 4,059 =
Inventories 7E 9,291 -
Trade receivables FEUE 5 8RR 6,434 =
Prepayments, deposits and TETRIA « e I E b e R RIR
other receivables 14,365 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekERBERIEER 589 =
Assets of a disposal group classified PERFBIEHEZHEHERIZEE
as held for sale 34,738 -
Liabilities EE
Trade payables, deposits received and FEREZER BERIES R
accrued expenses FEETE R (8,870) =
Liabilities directly associated with HABEARFIELE 2 HEHT
a disposal group classified BEEEEZBE
as held for sale (8,870) -
Net assets directly associated with HHEAREERAEEFE
the disposal group 25,868 -
The net cash flows incurred by the disposal group are as follows: HEAREFE 2R REFHENT :
2014 2013
—E—-NF —ET—=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Operating activities KT (57,280) (13,716)
Investing activities HEIEE (43) (1,124)
Financing activities A& &) (7) (5,531)
Net cash flow BEemEFH (57.330) (20,371)

Losses per share:
Basic, from the discontinued operation
Diluted, from the discontinued
operation

BREE
EX REDRIEEEET
B8 RECDRLEEERE

8.08 cents{ll

8.08 cents{ll

6.64 centsflll

6.64 centsill

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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12. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share from the

12. CARLEREER @

KRACKRIEREXRBZBRERREERT TR

discontinued operation are based on: BATEEHE
2014 2013
—E-IF —E—=%F
Loss attributable to ordinary equity REBRIELEFERE 2 ARNRF]
holders of the Company from the LRRERFTA ARLEE
discontinued operation HK$53,046,0007% 7T HK$40,107,000/8 7T
Weighted average number of ordinary RAUAFTEEREREE ZFR
shares in issue during the year used in BT EEARMNE T
the basic losses per share calculation (Mt5E14)
(note 14) 656,636,638 603,608,945
Weighted average number of ordinary G E GlREEEE 2
shares used in the diluted losses per LR AT E (M sE14)
share calculation (note 14) 656,871,496 603,707,875

In accordance with HKFRS 5, assets of a disposal group classified as held
for sale with a gross carrying amount of HK$20,744,000 were written
down to their fair values of nil, resulting in a loss of HK$20,744,000,
which was included in profit or loss from a discontinued operation for
the year.

Details of the net assets of SUSA disposed of during the year are as

RIEEBMBRME LB 2ERFELE
ZHEMAR B E 2 RE£%820,744,0008 T E
WORZE R FEBEST  EALEE1520,744,000% 7T -
BT AREBERIEEEEL 2 FNEZ-

FAHEZSUSAEEFEFABUT:

follows:

HK$'000
FH&T
Property, plant and equipment YIE - BB R 1,867
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TR IR « H e B H b FE IR 974
Due to the immediate holding company FER B R A B RIR (19,330)
(16,489)
Gain on disposal of SUSA Hi & SUSAZ W zs 16,489
Total consideration wRE =

Satisfied by: ERNDIE-
Cash Re -

AV Concept Holdings Limited
e
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DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 12. ERLEREEK @)
An analysis of the net cash outflow of cash and cash equivalents in HESUSAZ RE RERKRSEE 2R &R HF
respect of the disposal of SUSA is as follows: EAOMMAT
HK$'000
FHIT
Consideration KE =
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of It ERERERERIEER (589)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of HESUSAZ IR & RERRELIEE i LIFHE
the disposal of SUSA (589)
DIVIDENDS 13. RE
2014 2013
—E-0F =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Proposed final — Nil (2013: HK1 cent) EFEARH-SREERTHE
per ordinary share (ZE—=F:17%8) - 6,031
At a meeting held on 28 June 2013, the directors proposed a final RZZTE—=F~A=Z+tNBETz2gxZL &
dividend of HK1 cent per ordinary share for the year ended 31 March EEEAMBE T —=F=RA=1T—RHLFE
2013, which was estimated to be HK$6,031,000 at the time calculated IRERAREBREBBNB(IL ERERF
on the basis of the number of ordinary shares in issue as at 31 March —=F=ZA=T+T—HZEBTETBREE &t
2013. The final dividend was approved by shareholders at the last /46,031,000 c- REARER =T —=F/\ A
annual general meeting on 16 August 2013. As a result of issue of THRBRITZHEE—ARRBFARG FERFA
shares and exercise of share options between 1 April 2013 and 16 E-HRZZE—=F0MA—RBAE=_T—=F/\H
August 2013, the final dividend paid in respect of the year ended 31 TN BRI BEITIRG RITEBRE  BEE=
March 2013 totalled HK$6,817,000. T—=F=ZA=+—HLEFERNZRBRES
#£ 56,817,000/ T
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 14. A REEBERESFAEABGER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY ZH
The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on BREABRFDIBRBEFAARAR R EBRERTEES
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the AR F RFRE EITE R 2 INETHEE
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 656,636,638[% (== — =4 : 603,608,9453% ) &t
656,636,638 (2013: 603,608,945) in issue during the year. &o
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit for BREERFDIBRBEFAARAR R EBRERFEE
the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company. The AR AFTE - B AGHE 2 EimAR i 5 8
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is RANGTESRERZN 2 FAE BITTRKRE
the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the B ARBREREATEILRAEERETE
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted average number BIEEERE LT ERREE SERT 2T RARM
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration BEFHH-
on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.
AV Concept Holdings Limited ,I 1 1
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on:

14.

AAFEBERERSEEAEBRGEER
B (#)

BREARREGRFTIRIEAT BT E

2014 2013
—E—-0F —E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Earnings B
Profit/(loss) attributable FAUGtEERERN R EERF
to ordinary equity holders of RAFIE R ER
the Company, used in the basic and BEARGRT, (BE)
diluted earnings per share calculation:
From continuing operations REFFELEET 56,399 49,344
From a discontinued operation REBKRIEEER (53,046) (40,107)
3,353 9,237
Number of shares
BB A
2014 2013
—ZT-mnmF T =%
Shares idvi)
Weighted average number of RUGTEERERRFNZ
ordinary shares in issue during FRE BT EBRINET
the year used in the basic earnings per
share calculation 656,636,638 603,608,945
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEy e — TR
number of ordinary shares:
Share options HE AR A 234,858 98,930
656,871,496 603,707,875

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. % BEKRE

Group rEE
Leasehold Land and Furniture,
land and buildings fittings Plant,
buildings (outside Leasehold and office machinery Motor
(Hong Kong)*  Hong Kong)* improvements equipment and tools vehicles Total
THhREF
HETHR (BAUS Gi-£ER  BE BER
B (58) BE) BENERE  BOERE I8 RE i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TiEn TiEn TiERn TET TR TR
31 March 2014 “¥-RmE=A=t-A
At31 March 2013 and at 1 April 2013:  R=F—-=F=A=F+-H}
RZZ—=£MA-R:
Cost XA 98,327 24,419 8,346 15,624 185 16,423 163,324
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (9,310) (4,378) (6,884) (10,773) (185) (12,641) (44,171)
Net carrying amount RE® 89,017 20,041 1,462 4,851 - 3,782 119,153
At 1 April 2013, net of RZE-=4KA-B"
accumulated depreciation MR EGE 89,017 20,041 1,462 4,851 - 3,782 119,153
Additions AE = - - 352 4,619 790 5,761
Disposals HE (56,528) = (724) (44) - - (57,29)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 12) HE—RRBAR (KzE12) = = = (1,867) = = (1,867)
Assets included SFA-BEREEERB EE
in a discontinued operation - - (255) (356) (3,448) - (4,059)
Depreciation provided during the year £ REEZIFE (2,443) (896) (409) (2,033) (1,171 (1,718) (8,670)
Exchange realignment A% - 7 - 1 - (11) (€]
At 31 March 2014, net of RZZE-ME=A=+-R"
accumulated depreciation MR Z2:E 30,046 19,152 74 904 - 2,843 53,019
At 31 March 2014: RZB-ME=A=1-A:
Cost AR 38,410 24,07 6,693 7,7% 185 15,535 93,036
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (8,364) (5,265) (6,619) (6,892) (185) (12,692) (40,017)
Net carrying amount REFE 30,046 19,152 74 904 - 2,843 53,019
AV Concept Holdings Limited ,I 1 3
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15. ¥1%  BERRE @0
Group &
Leasehold Land and Furniture,
land and buildings fittings Plant,
buildings (outside Leasehold and office machinery Motor
(Hong Kongf* ~ Hong Kong)*  improvements equipment and tools vehicles Total
THREF
HELHR (BB GiVRER R BER
BT (B8) WE) BEWERE  BRERE IE "E ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET THT TAL THL THL THET
31 March 2013 —Z-=%=h=t-H
At 1 April 2012: W-E-—#mA-R:

Cost KA 98,327 30,491 7,551 13,243 185 15,767 165,564

Accumulated depreciation ZithE (6,726) (4,132) (6,416) (6,860) (185) (10,208) (34,527)

Net carrying amount FHFE 91,601 26,359 1,135 6,383 - 5,559 131,037
At 1 April 2012, net of R-_E-—#NmA-A:

accumulated depreciation MR 2:E 91,601 26,359 1,135 6,383 - 5,559 131,037
Additions NE - - 799 2,425 - 929 4,153
Disposals e - (1,192) - (184) - (279) (1,655)
Surplus on revaluation on transfer to ERERENE ERRR

investment properties - 15,974 - - - - 15,974
Transfer to investment properties BEEREWE (i)

(note 16) - (20,325) - - - - (20,325)
Depreciation provided during the year —~ FREE 2T E (2,584) (954) (474) (3795) - (2,465) (10,272)
Exchange realignment B 5 A% - 179 2 2 - 38 W
At 31 March 2013, net of RZZE-=%=fA=+-RH:

accumulated depreciation MR E2:IE 89,017 20,041 1462 4,851 - 3,782 119,153
At 31 March 2013; RZZ-=F=f=1-A:
Cost KA 98,327 24,419 8,346 15,624 185 16,423 163,324
Accumulated depreciation Zithe (9,310) (4,378) (6,884) (10,773) (185) (12,641) (44.171)
Net carrying amount REFE 89,017 20,041 1,462 4,851 - 3,782 119,153
# As the land lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and & AR T HEENREEZE LM REFHSHEAE
buildings elements, the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the SEC - Bt 2 EEE R FIGFTA LI R TRA -
land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment. ERD%E BERZEREHRE -
1 1 4 AV Concept Holdings Limited
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R 2R Y

31 March 2014 = —&=/A=+—H

15. ¥ -BERZRE @

Company ¥
Leasehold
improvements
HEYELE
HK$'000
FHT
31 March 2014 —E-—NFE=A=+—H
At 31 March 2013 and at 1 April 2013: RZFE—=F=A=+—HBRK
RZTE—=FMHA—8:
Cost BXAR 30
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (19)
Net carrying amount AR HHE 11
At 1 April 2013, net of accumulated depreciation RZZE—=FNA—H MNKRIRFAHE 11
Depreciation provided during the year REZANBEZTE (6)
At 31 March 2014, net of accumulated depreciation R-ZE—NF=A=+—H KR IFTINE 5
At 31 March 2014: R-_ZE—MF=A=+—H:
Cost B AR 30
Accumulated depreciation R E (25)
Net carrying amount BREDFER 5
31 March 2013 —E—=f=H=+—H
At 1 April 2012: RZE——FWHA—A:
Cost (B 30
Accumulated depreciation Z2EE (13)
Net carrying amount AR HEE 17
At 1 April 2012, net of accumulated depreciation RZF—ZFNA—H NKRRNE 17
Depreciation provided during the year REZANBEEZTE (6)
At 31 March 2013, net of accumulated depreciation R-_ZE—=F=ZA=+—H HIKREFTINE 11
At 31 March 2013: R—_ZE—=F=ZA=+—H:
Cost B AR 30
Accumulated depreciation R E (19)
Net carrying amount BREDEER 11
AV Concept Holdings Limited ,I 1 5
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Notes to Financial Statements

B FE IR AR AL

31 March 2014 = —F=A=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The Group's land and buildings at cost included above were held under
the following lease terms:

15. ¥ -BERZRE @

EXPrE AR BIRAARYIIR 2 T3 R TF TIR
BATHEFHRE .

Outside

Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
&5E FERUIMEE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET

31 March 2014 —E-NE=HA=+—H
Freehold KA R - 12,840 12,840
Medium term leases FRHIEE 38,410 11,577 49,987
38,410 24,417 62,827

31 March 2013 —E—=%=ZA=+—H
Freehold KA ZERE - 12,842 12,842
Medium term leases FREAEE 98,327 11,577 109,904
98,327 24,419 122,746

The net carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
held under finance leases included in the total amount of motor vehicles
at 31 March 2014 was HK$630,000 (2013: HK$1,230,000).

At 31 March 2014, the Group's land and buildings with a carrying value
of HK$30,046,000 (2013: HK$89,017,000) were pledged to secure the
mortgage loans granted to the Group (note 31).

1 1 6 AV Concept Holdings Limited
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R 2R Y

31 March 2014 = —&=/A=+—H

16. BEWE

Group
rEE
2014 2013
—ZE—-0F =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHEx FAT
Carrying amount at beginning of year FUZEESRE 82,760 97,065
Additions V= - 22,647
Transfer from property, EE A WE K& (iE15)
plant and equipment (note 15) - 20,325
Changes in fair value of WEYEZ AT EEEE
investment properties (1,542) 8,293
Reclassified to non-current assets BENOBERELHEZ
held for sale (note 29) JEMEE E (M5E29) - (66,000)
Exchange realignment PE 5 R (454) 430
Carrying amount at end of year FROGEESRE 80,764 82,760

The Group's investment properties are held under the following lease

REBZREMEDRBIATHEFHRHS

terms:
Outside

Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
B8 ERUIMEE &5t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET

31 March 2014 —E-mE=ZA=1+—H
Medium term leases FEIEE 5,100 46,375 51,475
Long term leases REAMEE - 29,289 29,289
5,100 75,664 80,764

31 March 2013 —Z—=%=A=+—8H
Medium term leases FRHARE 5,650 45,825 51,475
Long term leases REAMEE - 31,285 31,285
5,650 77,110 82,760

AV Concept Holdings Limited ,I 1 7
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Notes to Financial Statements

B FE IR AR AL

31 March 2014 = —F=A=+—H

16.

118

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group's investment properties consist of one residential property
in Hong Kong, one office property and several services apartments in
Mainland China and one residential property in Singapore. The directors
of the Company have determined that the investment properties consist
of three classes of asset, i.e., residential properties, office property and
services apartments, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of
each property. The Group's investment property in Hong Kong was
revalued on 31 March 2014 based on valuation performed by Centaline
Surveyors Limited, an independent professionally qualified valuer, at
HK$5,100,000. The Group's investment properties in Mainland China
and Singapore were revalued on 31 March 2014 based on valuations
performed by Prudential Surveyors (Hong Kong) Limited and Realty
International Associates Pte. Ltd., independent professionally qualified
valuers, at HK$46,375,000 and HK$29,289,000, respectively. Each year,
the Group’s chief financial officer decides to appoint which external
valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of the Group's
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained. The
Group's chief financial officer has discussions with the valuers on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuations are
performed for annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 42(a) to
the financial statements.

At 31 March 2014, the Group's investment properties with a carrying
value of HK$29,289,000 (2013: HK$31,285,000) were pledged to
secure the general banking facilities granted to the Group (note 31).

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included on
page 184.
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16.

Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R 2R Y

31 March 2014 = —&=/A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. REWZE #0)

Fair value hierarchy RFEEZEREE

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of Ti’%ﬁlJT\u‘l' AR EREMERATEBEZIFR
the Group's investment properties: R4 -

Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2014 using
FER-E-ME=A=+-AZAVEERER

Quoted Significant Significant
prices in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SEETS BEATBE EAFUER
ZiRfE BAE BAE
(%2—8) (5=8) (%=FE) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TET TET
Recurring fair value measurement for: THREZ &L
AT EERE:
Residential properties EEME - - 34,389 34,389
Office property E/NEL ) ES - - 21,075 21,075
Services apartments RBEAAE - - 25,300 25,300
- - 80,764 80,764
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FRN EF-—RE_EQATEEAE 2EL &S
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3. % BE=EECAEARE -
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of PEAATEESARBE=E 2 AFEET
the fair value hierarchy: S8R
Residential Office Services
properties property apartments
FEE WAEYE REXDE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHBT FHET
Carrying amount at 1 April 2013 RZE—=FNA—AZKHE
k| 36,935 20,700 25,125
Net gain/(loss) from a fair value ?é!ﬁn%:zﬁ& /NS )
adjustment recognised AR, (EEB) F8E
in the statement of profit or loss (2,092) 375 175
Exchange realignment b FH =8 (454) _ _

Carrying amount at 31 March 2014 R=-ZE-—-NE=A=+—-Hz

ARE < 8 34,389 21,075 25,300
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs 8 Y SR (E BT 2 (R E i & = B A B
to the valuation of investment properties. N o
AV Concept Holdings Limited ,I 1 9
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B FE IR AR AL

31 March 2014 = —F=A=+—H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

16. BEWE &)

DNPEESRESE (8

Valuation Significant Value/Range
techniques unobservable inputs (weighted average)
e &E
B B 9 EXTUBEBAE (A1)
Residential property situated Market comparison Adjusted unit price HK$9,497
in Hong Kong approach (per square feet)
URBBZEEMF M5 BUA KRB BAER 9,4974 7T
(BFEHR)
Residential property situated Market comparison Adjusted unit price SGD25,676
in Singapore approach (per sg.m.)
LR FT IR 2 (W M5 BUE KRR BB 25,6763 7T
(BFHK)
Office property situated Market comparison Adjusted unit price RMB51,879
in Mainland China approach (per sg.m.)
LA AR B A b 2 BN EE ) 3 35 L BUE %@?ﬁ%ﬁfﬁf—?% AR¥51,8797C
B ITK

Services apartments situated
in Mainland China

Income approach

RFEAMZ READE WATE

Under the market comparison approach, the properties are valued
on market basis assuming sales in their existing state with the benefit
of vacant possession and by making reference to comparable sales
evidence as available in the relevant markets. Comparison is based on
prices realised in actual transactions or asking prices of comparable
properties. Appropriate adjustments are then made to account for the
differences between such properties in terms of age, time, location,
floor level and other relevant factors.

Under the income approach, the properties are valued by taking into
account the current rents passing or the hypothetical rents and the
reversionary potential of the tenancies if the properties have been or
would be leased to tenants. The duration of the cash flows and the
specific timing of inflows and outflows are determined by events such
as rent reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or
refurbishment. The appropriate duration is driven by market behaviour
that is a characteristic of the class of property. The periodic cash flow
is estimated as gross income less vacancy, non-recoverable expenses,
collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance costs, agent and
commission costs and other operating and management expenses. The
series of periodic net operating income, along with an estimate of the
terminal value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then
discounted. A significant increase/decrease in the estimated rental value
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase/decrease in the term yield
and reversionary yield would result in a significant decrease/increase in
the fair value of the investment properties. Generally, a change in the
assumption made for the estimated rental value is accompanied by a
directionally similar change in the term yield and reversionary yield.

1 2 O AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Estimated rental value
(per sg.m. and

RMB65.0 to RMB82.6

per month)
Term yield 3.25%
Reversionary yield 3.50%
st E AR¥65.0T%
(BFHAEEAR) AR#82.67T
FHM R 3.25%
(Sl e 3.50%
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2014 == —F=A=+—H

17. GOODWILL 17. B
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—2-mE —F=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
At beginning of year: F4

Cost B A 48,795 48,795
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (7,947) =
Net carrying amount BREDEER 40,848 48,795

At beginning of year, net of F4) Mk REHRE
accumulated impairment 40,848 48,795
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) U bE bt /8 A | (Ki7E38) 22,297 =
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) BB A A (FFEE39) (9,621) =
Attributable to a discontinued operation 2R B B 4% 1E AR & 275 (20,744) =
Impairment BB = (7,947)

At end of year, net of FL - Mk RFHRE
accumulated impairment 32,780 40,848

At end of year: FR

Cost B AR 32,780 48,795
Accumulated impairment R2ETEE - (7,947)
Net carrying amount AREHER 32,780 40,848

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group recognised an
impairment of goodwill of HK$7,947,000 for the semiconductor
distribution segment because of the loss of major customers under a
business restructuring carried out by the Group.

Impairment testing of goodwiill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been allocated
to the cash-generating units (“CGU") of semiconductor distribution
business of HK$10,483,000 (2013: HK$28,051,000) and mobile
application development business of HK$22,297,000 (2013: Nil) for
impairment testing. During the year ended 31 March 2013, goodwill
allocated to the CGU of consumer electronic product business of
HK$20,744,000 was transferred to a discontinued operation classified
as held for sale.

REBEE-Z—=F=A=1+—HIEE X&£E
P EEE S D B R AR 2R (ET7,947,00078
T RARASEETESEEANSEERF R
§§o

EmERENR
EREKECHKBZHECPEEFEESHH
%¥7%10,483,000% 7T (= — =4 : 28,051,000
77T ) 7 B FE AR A2 =X B 2 2 7%22,297,0007%8 7T
(ZZ—=F:EB)Z2RsEEEN ([BEELE
fr]) - AREREAR REBEE—T—=4=A
=+ HLEEE 2EEHBEEETEMELR
TEE BN 2 20,744,000/ L EEEEHE
BEEHEZERIEEEER-

AV Concept Holdings Limited ,I 2 1
Annual Report 214 4



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R 2R B A

31 March 2014 = —F=A=+—H

17. GOODWILL (continued) 17. B @)

28

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Semiconductor distribution business

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 10.0% (2013:
12.0%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
semiconductor distribution business until beyond the five-year period is
3.5% (2013: 3.0%). This growth rate is based on the relevant industry
growth forecasts and average long-term growth rate for the relevant
industry.

Consumer electronic product business

In last year, the recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior
management. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 12%. The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the
consumer electronic product business until beyond the five-year period
is 3%. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.

Mobile application development business

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a six-year period approved by senior management.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 18.0%.
The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of the mobile
application development business until beyond the six-year period
is 3.0%. This growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth
forecasts and average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.

Key assumptions

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation of the
semiconductor distribution business and consumer electronics product
business for 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013. The following
describes each key assumption on which management has based its
cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwvill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine the value
assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the average gross margins
achieved in the year immediately before the budget year, increased or
expected efficiency improvements, and expected market development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax and reflect
specific risks relating to the relevant units.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on budgeted gross margins
and discount rates are consistent with external information sources.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. HttELEE

Group PN
Club Customer Mobile
memberships Trademarks  relationships application Total
g% [EE: EFHE RBEARR &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TET TRT THET TRT
31 March 2014 “E-ME=A=1-H
At31March 2013 and at 1 April 2013: RZZE—=F=A=+—-HK
RZZ-—=4mA—H:
Cost XA 4,903 764 38,201 - 43,908
Accumulated amortisation and ZErEERAE
impairment (1,073) (267) (19,427) - (20,767)
Net carrying amount REFR 3,830 497 18,814 - 23,141
Cost at 1 April 2013, net of accumulated R=F—=FMA—B &K
amortisation and impairment Kk R B8RRI E 3,830 497 18,814 - 23,141
Additions 0 - 16 - - 16
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) WeEsi B A (KizE38) = S = 9,400 9,400
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEMER A (Hiz39) - - (4,644) - (4,644)
Amortisation provided during the year A [ U 5 2 B 8 (38) (141) (6,632) (940) (7.751)
Exchange realignment B 5 HE 10 - 292 - 302
At 31 March 2014 RZZ-WE=A=+—H 3,802 372 7,830 8,460 20,464
At 31 March 2014: RZZ-WF=A=1—H:
Cost KA 4,903 780 25,423 9,400 40,506
Accumulated amortisation and ZEEBRAE
impairment (1,101) (408) (17,593) (940) (20,042)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,802 3n 7,830 8,460 20,464
AV Concept Holdings Limited ,I 2 3
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 18. HWELEE @)
Group (continued) NEE (%)
Club Customer
memberships Trademarks relationships Total
o8 (=] EPBE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAHL FEL FET FET
31 March 2013 —T-=#=ZA=1+—H
At 1 April 2012; R-ZE——FmA—H:
Cost B%N 4,880 550 38,051 43,481
Accumulated amortisation and 25 R E
impairment (1,027) (132) (11,750) (12,909)
Net carrying amount ARIE¥ 58 3,853 418 26,301 30,572
Cost at 1 April 2012, net of accumulated ~ RZZE——FMA—H "
amortisation and impairment AR - Bk Rt 8N
KRfE 3,853 418 26,301 30,572
Additions 0 - 214 - 214
Amortisation provided during the year REE R 2 (38) (135) (7,648) (7,821)
Exchange realignment B K FR 15 - 161 176
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=%=A=+—H 3,830 497 18,814 23,141
At 31 March 2013: R-T—=%F=A
==FHs
Cost B 4,903 764 38,241 43,908
Accumulated amortisation and R EENRNE
impairment (1,073) (267) (19,427) (20,767)
Net carrying amount BRES R 3,830 497 18,814 23,141

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

AR5 R 2R Y

31 March 2014 = —M&=/A=+—H

19. RIBRAIZRE

Company
AT

2014 2013

—E2-mF —T=%

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FHET

Unlisted shares, at cost FE LTk - FRA AR 60,710 56,426
Due from subsidiaries =N B 539,723 491,187
Due to subsidiaries FERTHI B A R ZA (51,128) (48,182)
549,305 499,431
Impairment? A" (35,410) (35,410)
513,895 464,021
Less: Current portion B mENEY (2,563) (4,094)
Non-current portion EmBE S 511,332 459,927
# An impairment of approximately HK$35,410,000 (2013: HK$35,410,000) was @ BR— BB AR —ERSER  WE MERZ

recognised on an amount due from a subsidiary because the subsidiary has
been making losses. There was no change in the impairment account during the
current and prior years.

Except for the amounts due from subsidiaries of HK$2,563,000 (2013:
HK$4,094,000) which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand, the remaining amounts due from and to subsidiaries included
in the Company’s statement of financial position are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying
amounts of amounts due from and to subsidiaries approximate to their
fair values.

W 88 A R 503 #E 58 4935,410,0008 7T (B —=
4 135,410,000/ 70 ) ZRfE - RERARESF - BiE

B & U B /B8 A &) 51 182,563,0008 L (=T — =
F: 4,094,000 70) JHEER  TETEREBRE
KEEIN BT ARR R FAR SR 2 B IR K
BB RARRBENERR Tt ERERTE
HE - ZERRREMMEARNEZRE S
HENTEEES -
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([New Concept |) #

19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. RHELREZ2RE @0
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWBARFROT
Percentage
Place of of equity
incorporation Issued/ attributable to
Name and business registered capital the Company Principal activities
BRI/
£ MR E 2 AR A APERERAE DI TEER
Direct Indirect
HiE M
AV Electronics Group Limited* British Virgin Islands/ US$40,000 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong
AV Electronics Group Limited* RERLES/ &% 40,0005 7T 100 - REER
AV Concept (China) Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
Industrial Co., Limited
EB(RE) IEBRAR BB 10,0007 7 - 100 HARRK
AV Concept Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of electronic
HK$1,000,000° - 100 components
FRITAERAT B 287 = 100 EBESTh
1,000,000/ 7.® = 100
AV Concept Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore SGD4,000,000 - 100 Trading of electronic
components
AV Concept Singapore Pte. Ltd. 103 4,000,0003% 7 - 100 EBESTh
AVC Technology (International) Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Procurement of electronic
Limited components
FRME (BF)BERAA Bk 1%L - 100 HBSTFh
New Concept Capital Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
(“New Concept”)* Hong Kong
New Concept Capital Limited EERAHS/ B (E 100 - REZR

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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19. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. RHBE QB ZRE @0
Percentage
Place of of equity
incorporation Issued/ attributable to
Name and business registered capital the Company Principal activities
BRI/
18 LR 3L IR 3 i B MR A APEEGERAE DI TEER
Direct Indirect
HE ik
People & Semiconductor Co., Ltd.* Korea KRW400,000,000 - 100 Trading of electronic
components
People & Semiconductor %E 400,000,0008% & - 100 EBEEFH
Co., Ltd.*
Soul Electronics International Limited Hong Kong HK$400,007 - 75 Trading of electronic
components
Soul Electronics International Limited &5 400,007 ¢ - 75 EEEFIH
Soul Electronics Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Trading of electronic
(formerly known as AV components
Concept Solutions Limited)
Soul Electronics Limited ( Ai#& B 1008 7T - 100 EBESFrl
FROTERERAR)
i Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst o I IE R B A LK G 5T AD B 75 F7 ok H Ath 22 ok BB A
& Young global network BEBEZ
@ Represents deferred shares issued by AV Concept Limited O HBRBITERRARBEITZIBELERD
# New Concept is a venture capital organisation. # New Concept & — [ 81 0 4% -
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the FRIFESFRAEARNFEEEBKNEELES
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or HRAEEEEFEEXERD 2ARAKBR
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give Rl -BEEFRA WIHEMHMBARZHE &8
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result HREBILK °
in particulars of excessive length.
AV Concept Holdings Limited
| Vi
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. REEL¥EZRE
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E2-0OF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Share of net assets NIhEEFE 117,702 94,139
Financial guarantees provided (note 33) 4B #E(R ( W?EEB) 5,694 1,410
Due from a joint venture B —E & &R = 61
123,396 95,610
The balance with a joint venture was unsecured, interest-free and had H-HaE XM ERREER T ERE
no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amount of the balance with EEERP - HELPEMARZEEREE
the joint venture approximated to its fair value. HAFEEBEES -
Particulars of the principal joint venture are as follows: FESEREFFEOT:
Percentage of
Bk
Place of
incorporation ~ Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
Name Issued capital and business interest power sharing  activities
SR B
8 BRITRAE EEWY BAEEER RERE oMEERF  ETEER
AVP Electronics Limited* 80,000,000 Hong Kong 75 50 75  Trading of electronic
ordinary shares components
of HK$1 each
REBRAR* 80,000,0008% EE 75 50 75 BEESFMA
BREEIETZ
E iR
S Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & IR B A &K R 5T AN S5 75 AT sk B Ath 22 ok B BR A

& Young global network

The above table lists the joint venture of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the result for the year and
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other joint ventures would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particular of excessive length.

The above joint venture has a financial year end of 31 December.
The consolidated financial statements are adjusted for the material
transactions between 1 January and 31 March.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

AVP Electronics Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively, “AVPEL
Group”), which are considered a material group of joint ventures of the
Group, are accounted for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of
AVPEL Group adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and
reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements:

20.

AR5 R 2R Y

31 March 2014 = —M&=/A=+—H

REELEZRE @)
AEERARENBAR (FEFEEmE])
BRAREEY BALSAREE  PRERE
ABR©

TRINTABREEZHBEMUZ (EREFNE
ABREREHAR)ARERBRERARES
MR

2014 2013

—ZE-MmF —T—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT T T

Cash and cash equivalents RekERBERIEER 71,005 113,077

Other current assets HAiREE E 895,028 578,347

Current assets MBEE 966,033 691,424

Non-current assets JERENE EE 2,418 2,939

Financial liabilities, excluding trade and cRBE (TEEENES

other payables AR R R EL At FE AT F/IE) (19,036) (18,370)

Other current liabilities HEfnsaE (789,967) (549,162)

Current liabilities mEEE (809,003) (567,532)

Non-current liabilities EmBEE (74) 9)

Non-controlling interests R = (2,438) (1,303)

Net assets BEFE 156,936 125,519
AV Concept Holdings Limited ,I 2 9
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 20. REELEZRE @)
2014 2013
—Z=-0F —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER T
Reconciliation to the Group's interests in ~ EAZNEE B A & (b3 7 S ¥ R
the joint ventures:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEE B RELLA 75% 75%
Group's share of net assets of the joint REESEEEREEERE
ventures 117,702 94,139
Financial guarantees provided R BHER 5,694 1,410
Due from a joint venture B —E & & ER = 61
Carrying amount of the investments KRERE R 123,396 95,610
Revenue LG 4,197,464 2,928,881
Interest income FEWA 72 68
Depreciation e (490) (566)
Interest expenses FEEA (14,441) (10,805)
Tax IA (15,790) (11,749)
Profit for the year F N A 79,849 56,535
Other comprehensive loss for the year FRHMEEERE (239) (125)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ F A2 E U A 4258 79,610 56,410
Dividends received B AR B 35,340 11,129
21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES REtERT 2 RE
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—ET-mF —ZE—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT F& T
Share of net assets Frih & EFE 2,450 3,927
Due from associates JRE s BEs 8 N B FRIR 33,726 24,251
36,176 28,178
Less: Current portion B mENEL Y (33,726) (24,251)
Non-Current portion IEREBNEL 2,450 3,927
AV Concept Holdings Limited
130
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Notes to Financial Statements

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The balances due from associates are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of the balances due
from associates approximate to their fair values.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, impairment loss of
HK$2,045,000 (2013: HK$2,663,000) was recognised for amounts due
from certain associates because these associates have been making
|osses.

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

21.

AR5 R 2R Y

31 March 2014 = —M&=/A=+—H

REBERTZRE @
PR A R 2 A AR IE ST TR B REEE

BB E AR Z AR REASRERLR
FEERE-
BE_Z-NE=A=+—BLFE nEEKE

TFH & A R FUBRERRERE 182,045,000 7T (=
T —=%:2,66300087) RAAZZHE A
AEX1S 18 -

FTEBE

CHGELE

Percentage of

Particulars of Place of ownership interest
issued shares incorporation attributable
Name capital held and business to the Group Principal activities
B &1 A K
A% RARE EXpE AREEGEGEEZEIN  EEEH
2014 2013
—E-QmE —2-=f
Signeo Lifestyle Limited 1,000,000 ordinary shares Hong Kong 32 32 Trading of personal beauty
("Signeo Lifestyle”)* of HK$1 each enrichment products
Signeo Lifestyle Limited 1,000,0008% B 32 32 EBEBEAXRER
([Signeo Lifestyle |) * SREBIATZERER
Me2on Co., Ltd.* 1,034,113 ordinary shares Korea 23.04 23.04  Software programming
of KRW500 each
Me2on Co., Ltd.* 1,034,1130% e 23.04 23.04  EERRREE
BREGES00%E 2 &Rk
Memoriki Limited* 400 ordinary shares of Hong Kong 23.04 23.04  Software programming
HK$1 each
Memoriki Limited* 400R% BB 23.04 2304  BERARG
BREEETZEBR
* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & I 3R BB LK G 5T AD 55 P sk H th 2ok BB X

& Young global network

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed
a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details
of other associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Except for the financial year end of Signeo Lifestyle which is
coterminous with that of the Group, the above associates have
a financial year end of 31 December. The consolidated financial
statements are adjusted for the material transactions between 1 January
and 31 March.

BEBMEX

ERITFEERREAFEXEEBUIETER
ARAEEEEFEIEND 2AEEBRZER
Al -BERA WL EMBERRZHE 8§
HERILR-

BxSigneo Lifestyle A EAE HEAREE 2
MR FEAE R — BN Ll R E 2 B BF
EHEERHART_A=T—H HFEUBREKE
H—A—BHE=ZA=1T—BZEARXRFELH

K o
a4

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 March 2014 = —F=A=+—H

21.

22.

2

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of losses of
certain associates, namely Xocial Limited, Signeo Venture Limited and
Nitgen Eco Tech Limited because the share of losses of associates
exceeded the Group's interests in these associates and the Group has
no obligation to take up further losses. The amounts of the Group's
unrecognised share of losses of these associates for the current year and
cumulatively were HK$383,000 (2013: HK$335,000) and HK$829,000
(2013: HK$446,000), respectively.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the
Group's associates that are not individually material:

21.

REE QAR ZRE @)
AEEERIEEREEGEE THE AR (BEF
AR AR Signeo Venture Limited & £ IRR R
RARAR) 2EE  RE ARSI E A REIER
BAEBRZERE RN R BAEEWE
EREIEE—PEB ASERER 2D EZE
BERNR 2 FERNRRFTEESRED 5 A383,000
7T (ZZ— =4 : 335,000/ 7T ) %829,000/8 7T
— T — =4 :446,000/7T) °

NRINRAE B BRI D ER 2 B R F 2 7
BERRE:

2014 2013
—E-ImF =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Share of the associates’ loss for the year kB & A &) F W& 1E 1,545 16,240
Share of the associates’ total ShEE AR HEEEE
comprehensive loss 1,545 16,240
Aggregate carrying amount of AEERBERRZ
the Group's investments HERE AR
in the associates 36,176 28,178

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

At 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013, the Group held an unlisted
zero coupon convertible bonds with a principal amount of US$756,868
(equivalent to HK$5,881,000) (the “PrivateCo CB") which were
issued by a private company. As at 31 March 2013, the Group also
held another unlisted zero-coupon convertible bonds with a principal
amount of US$7,425,373 (equivalent to HK$57,695,000) (the “IEL CB")
which were issued by Integrated Energy Limited (“IEL").

The PrivateCo CB is unlisted, non-interest-bearing and issued for a
maturity term of 33 months from 1 June 2012 to 28 February 2015.
The holder has the right to convert the PrivateCo CB into 91,821
common shares of the private company.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report D()14. 4

22.

CIE: Y3
RZE—NE=A=+—HE=-ZT—=%5=A4
=+—B AEEFEA-—RLARAETEAS
%8 /A756,868% 7T (18 & 75,881,000/ 7t.) 2 I
EmZEEABRES ([FLARBMREES]) -
RZZE—=F=A=+—HB A£EBHEHFH
Integrated Energy Limited (TIEL | ) BT A& B A
7,425,373% 7T (#8 & $257,695,000%8 7T) 2 5 —
B EMT R AR ES (TIELAT R ESR]) -

FAARBIARESRFTIIE LT Tet B RN =
T——FX NA—HE-_ZT—RF-_A=-+NABL
33EA AR BB 1T - B A G EKFLARAFIA]
HAR(ES .30 591,821 FA A A B E B -



Notes to Financial Statements

22. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

The IEL CB is unlisted, non-interest-bearing and issued for a maturity
term of 36 months from 11 December 2012 to 11 December 2015. The
holder has the right to convert the IEL CB into shares of IEL at any time
on or after the first anniversary of the date of issue of the convertible
bonds up to the close of business on the date of one business day prior
to the maturity date of the IEL CB. The conversion price for conversion
share is US$0.585793 per conversion share. During the year ended 31
March 2014, the Group converted certain IEL bonds with a principal
amount of US$5,925,373 (equivalent to HK$46,040,000) into shares of
IEL and the remaining IEL CB was early redeemed by IEL.

The fair value of liability component was calculated based on the
present value of the contractually determined stream of future cash
flows discounted at the required yield, which was determined with
reference to the credit rating of the convertible bonds issuer and
remaining time to maturity.

The binomial model is used for the valuation of conversion options of
the PrivateCo CB. The key inputs into the model for the conversion
options of the PrivateCo CB as at 31 March 2014 are as follows:

AR5 R 2R Y

31 March 2014 = —M&=/A=+—H

22. AARES (@)

IELAJ IR EHTIFE LT Rt B RIER =T —=
F+-_A+—HEZZ—RAF+=-A+—HL
36fE A B HA B 317 - #F B A B R AT R EH
BITAHE —RAFR 2 BEEIELA] R ESE
B A AT — A% ¥ B E B 4 2R R TR
M AFIELAT IR E 5 KR BIELIR 5 - ARAR 1D 2
AR (E B BRI A% 150.585793F L - REL E =
T—NE=A=+—HLEFE ~AEEEHELS
¥H /95,925,373 7T (4855 7046,040,0007 7T ) 2
HTIELES L BRABIELRD - MIELERFEEEHT
ZIELAJ AR (E 5 o

BEBOZAFEEDRESNEEZAKRE S
mERAEWERTHR ZBEFE  MAHRE
RNRSEANBEAESETAZEETRRBT
B HARS R EEE

ZIRAEARREILAR B AR E 5 2 R
ETHE-R-_FT-—NOF=A=+—H ZEAX
BRATLA AR AR RAE SRR 2 = 2 ABUR
LI

PrivateCo CB
NN
AR ES

Stock price %8
Expected volatility TEHR R 18
Risk-free rate 42 [ B ) R
Time to maturity (years)

FERE R ()

US$2.67957% T
46%

2.4371%

0.92

The fair value of each of the liability components and conversion
options of the PrivateCo CB at the end of the reporting period is
determined by valuation performed by Prudential Surveyors (Hong
Kong) Limited, an independent valuer.

The PrivateCo CB were designated as an investment at fair value
through profit or loss. The change in fair value of the PrivateCo CB was
a gain of HK$628,000 (2013: HK$5,797,000) which was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year.

NHREHAEERES LARRABREESF2AE
o Rk ER B 2 A TEE T BB EER A
BITREBRARET ZMEEEE -

FLARBIAMRESRNIEERBBBREATE
BIEZERE - FAN LARRABRBESZA
(B (E & &) A U 25628,0008 T (Z T — =4F:
5,797,000 L) ' WE KRR IBm KR ER

AV Concept Holdings Limited ,I 3 3
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23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23. AIEHERE
Group
KEE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
Unlisted equity investments, FE TR E KR
at cost (note a) (MgsEa) 6,623 8,523
Unlisted equity investments, FELETRAKRE RAFEE
at fair value (note b) (M5EDb) 29,773 46,679
Key management insurance, FEEBEABRRE BRATEE
at fair value (note ¢ (MF5EC) 13,147 12,653
Impairment (note a) B E (fisEa) (6,623) (8,523)
42,920 59,332
Portion classified as non-current DEEIERES 2 H D (42,920) (39,507)
Current portion mEnEl o - 19,825

The above investments consist of investments in unlisted equity
investments which were designated as available-for-sale investments
and have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

During the year, the gross gain in respect of the Group's available-for-
sale investments recognised in other comprehensive income amounted
to HK$494,000 (2013: HK$1,847,000).

Notes:

(a) As at 31 March 2014, certain unlisted equity investments with a carrying
amount of HK$6,623,000 (2013: HK$8,523,000) were stated at cost less
impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant
that the directors are of the opinion that their fair value cannot be measured
reliably. The Group does not intend to dispose of them in the near future.

At the end of the reporting period, a full provision for impairment
of HK$6,623,000 (2013: HK$8,523,000) was made for available-for-
sale investments with an original carrying value (before impairment) of
HK$6,623,000 (2013: HK$8,523,000) because they had been making loss for
years and have deficiency in assets at the end of the reporting period.

1 34 AV Concept Holdings Limited
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IR EBEIERERA M EREZIF LT
BAREZRE CEEEINMAXZEE K-

FA-

BEASEENE M2 R A TR < 7

SR E 7 I B494,0008 T (T — =4 :
1,847,000 7T ) °

By aE -

(a)

RZE-—WME=ZA=+-R EELEAR
6,623,000/ 7T (=% — =4 : 8,523,000/ 7T ) .2
AT IE LA ERE TR AMERRESI R - R
AAGEATEAER ZHERN EERAHE
DY EEEE R Feat H o AR BT 8 At 8
HitE-

RREHBAERE AR HEERENF NS
BEERRREHHARBEEEBA REH
REEEE OR{ERT) 46,623,000t (ZT—=
4F : 8,523,000/ 7 ) 2 AI & 1% & 2 E1E LR
{E 456,623,000/ 7T (—F— =4 : 8,523,000/
JT) e



Notes to Financial Statements

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(@)

23.

AR5 R 2R Y

31 March 2014 —Z—MFE=A=+—H

AHEBERE @)
MoeE: (4&)

(continued) (a) (#&)
The movements in the impairment provision during the year are as follows: FARMEREBZZESOT
Group
AEEH
2014 2013
—E-ImF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
At beginning of year F1) 8,523 4,027
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) BEfERZ R EEE (MiE6) - 6,623
Write-off 85 (1,900) (2,127)
At end of year FiR 6,623 8,523

As at 31 March 2014, certain unlisted equity investments with a carrying
amount of HK$29,773,000 (2013: HK$46,679,000) were measured at fair
value.

As at 31 March 2014, the insurance contract represented a life insurance
plan with investment elements relating to a key management personnel
of the Group. The total sum insured is US$10,000,000 (approximately
HK$77,700,000) with an annual minimum guaranteed return of 2%.

As at 31 March 2014, if the Group withdrew from the insurance contract,
the account value, net of a surrender charge of US$257,875 (approximately
HK$2,004,000) (2013: US$264,190 (approximately HK$2,053,000)), will be
refunded to the Group. The amount of surrender charge decreases over time
and is no longer required from the 19th year of contract conclusion onwards.

At 31 March 2014, the key management insurance contract classified as an
available-for-sale investment was pledged as security for certain of the Group's
interest-bearing bank and other bank borrowings (note 31).

R_TE—WE=A=+—H FEELEA
29,773,000 7t ( = Z — = 4 : 46,679,000/ It )
ZETHEMBRARE R AT EENE -

RZE—ME=ZA=1+—H8 RBREOAEEMEAE
SE—ZEXZEEABMBRERNDZ AFRE
=12 - (R 4258 410,000,000 7T (4977,700,000
B  FESKRELHRE2% °

R-ZE—WE=A=+—0 ' HAREEHR QIR
F1E (NBRRRFE#257,875% 7T (#42,004,000
BIt) (ZZF— =4 :264,1903% 5t ( 492,053,000
BIL) ) B ERETAEE - RRFEB SR
L BEIAKNF19F BT & BUER

RoT-mE=A=1—0 TEERASRKRA
WA BRI ERE  SRIEER EAKER
5 FH BRI REMBTER (HE31) ZBR

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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31 March 2014 = —F=A=+—H

24. INVENTORIES 24. 78
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—EF-OmF —F=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Finished goods BIRK n 262,427 349,417
25. TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. B E Z IRF
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—Z—nmEF =%
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR 3K 223,466 228,236
Impairment B E (4,244) (3,708)
219,222 224,528
The Group's trading terms with customers vary with the type of REBREFIIV 2R 5 EHETHIEZEME
products supplied. Invoices are normally payable within 30 days of A A PR ANE - R BB B AN ERE L3008 A
issuance, except for well-established customers, where the terms are 1 HERLRARBHRE &S ZKAAIFE

EHB60H - FRAEFPEREERBAEM 2R
B AR E RN EmMATARMNZ S R
VYERE BREPUREFELR ARER
031 EL 2R W [m] g o Rk TR e R AR FE I - I E S
EEHBRE UEEREGFERR BAKEZ

extended to over 60 days. For customer-specific and highly specialised
items, deposits in advance or letters of credit may be required prior
to the acceptance and delivery of the products. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over

its outstanding receivables and has a credit control policy to minimise TR EEEREEAR Y EEEB RO KT )
credit risk. A credit committee consisting of senior management and EHRIIZEE AEEE - ER - LR
the directors of the Group has been established to review and approve AEEYREKBSESRARS L AR ES
large customer credits. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that Al EAHTESAEHREZERK NEBWL
the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified HRFERFEEMERDSEBEERAY -
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The JEWE SEATHANE - EFER RS
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over BEHEAFEERS-

these balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing. The carrying
amounts of the trade receivables approximate to their fair values.

1 3 6 AV Concept Holdings Limited
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AR5 R 2R Y

31 March 2014 = —M&=/A=+—H

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. BIWE SR (@)
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting BREBEMNHREEE RS HRERE 2 EWE S
period, based on the payment due date, is as follows: R ZREDITAT

Group

rEE
2014 2013
—Z2—nEF =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
Current BIVEA 153,722 153,208
1 to 30 days 1£230H 46,005 44,049
31 to 60 days 31£60H 12,524 12,793
Over 60 days tB3E60H 11,215 18,186
223,466 228,236

W E 5 RR 2 BERBESNT

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are as

follows:

Group

AEE
2014 2013

—E2—mF —T—=

HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
At beginning of year F1) 3,708 815
Impairment losses recognised BRI EREE 2,494 2,915
Reversal of impairment losses BB A e (1,360) (28)
Amount written off as uncollectible YE &S B] Y& B 7 T8 Hif 88 (610) =
Exchange realignment M B 12 6
At end of year FUR 4,244 3,708

The above provision is for individually impaired trade receivables which
related to customers that were in financial difficulties and only a portion
of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

bt B 7Y B (8 Bl RE 2 e U E 5 Bk AR 1
e ZEFRRESEREHBHBREZETPE
B IR R U E R R 2 R AR D o

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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IR AR AL

31 March 2014 = —F=A=+—H

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. FEWE S R ()
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered to be AR A R E 2 FE W E 5 8RR 2 BR ik 2 A 40
impaired is as follows: T s
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—Z2—nF =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
Neither past due nor impaired R 480 HA e 3 4 Rk (B 153,568 153,013
Less than 1 month past due B HER DR E A 46,005 43,340
1 to 3 months past due BmHI =318 A 12,420 12,360
3 to 6 months past due mHI3 =61 A 7,229 15,815
219,222 224,528
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large SR80 B R I R (B 2 EGRIE B B8R % B 5 AR
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history ZEFAR REIBAWEERGDEE-
of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number EaBEYERE EBEHEREE TEASE
of independent customers that have a good track record with the BEERTERCH 2B IREF AR IRBUAEL
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Group are of the BASBEEERRBAMNZEEMRIEL BER
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these # FEAREEERWESAEE BEZEHER
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and UG- e
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. NIRRT R EMEYRKE
RECEIVABLES
Group Company
r5E ¥ NG
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NF —T-=F —E-mE =%
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BisE THET FET THER TAT
Prepayments BRHIE 3,359 5,176 117 50
Deposits and other receivables BE K e E (@) 127,932 38,955 = =
131,291 44,131 117 50
Portion classified as non-current: DB AIERE 2 H5H
Other receivables H fth e U 5RIE (@) - (20,758) = =
Other deposits Hiize (680) (361) = -
Current portion mEE 130,611 23,012 17 50
AV Concept Holdings Limited
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

27.

RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which
there was no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of deposits
and other receivables approximate to their fair values.

Note:

(a) In the prior year, other receivables classified as non-current represented certain
loans to Wavesquare Inc., which is unsecured, interest-bearing at 6% per
annum and repayable on 31 March 2015. The loans to Wavesquare Inc. was

classified as current as at 31 March 2014.

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

27.

AR5 R 2R Y

31 March 2014 = —M&=/A=+—H

26. FAMNRIR - RERHEMEWRKIT

(%)

P BEEHMEARSORE Ll EHRERE 2SR
BEETIY EIE RO RKKIAE R/ - &
REMEKRFIRZRESBEEL RN FEERS-

GEE

@ E=F 2BRFTHZHMEBBREERT
Wavesquare Inc.Z & TEHK - Zk B R EER
FIREFEREN-_T—HAE=A=+—H#E
Eo-NZZT—WM&E=A=+—H " & TFWavesquare
Inc. ZERDEARE -

FEBBER BN FEEIERZ
BRARE

Group
REE
2014 2013
—Z-mE —T—=F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Investment in an associate (Note) R—EEBEREZ2%E (M) 143,019 117,621
Managed funds, outside Hong Kong, ERES NEBUIMNOE -
at market value BmE 40,282 34,281
Listed equity investments, in Hong Kong, _EmRAKRE  REE
at market value EmE 6,829 12,203
Debt securities, at market value BEfES EmE 8,980 22,124
56,091 68,608
199,110 186,229

The above equity investments with a carrying amount of
HK$56,091,000 (2013: HK$68,608,000) at 31 March 2014 were

classified as held for trading.

At 31 March 2014, equity investments amounting to HK$42,302,000
(2013: HK$51,024,000) were pledged to secure certain of the Group's
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings (note 31).

RZZE—UF=A=+—H  LilffEALES
56,091,000/ 7T ( == — =4 : 68,608,000/%8
TO) A E T D EARBIEESE -

R_ZE—MWFEF=ZA=+—H BAKRE
42,302,000/ 7T (= Z — =4 : 51,024,000/
JC) REER (ERARSEE T ER1T R EAM
B2 ER (FIzE31) »

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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27.

28.

140

EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 27. ERBEERAFEEIIERZ
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) RAERE (@0
Note: Bt 3 -
During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group (through a wholly-owned subsidiary, REBE_T—=F=A=1T—HBLEFEAR ££E (FEA
a venture capital organisation) acquired 35.94% equity interest in IEL, a limited liability —HBAIRAK 2 AN E A R)) Y iE R Bk
company incorporated in Korea. During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group ZBBRAFIELZ35.94% R A am - REIE —T—MEF=
(through a wholly-owned subsidiary, a venture capital organisation) converted certain A=+—BIEFERN F~&E (ER—HBRERZE
convertible bonds issued by IEL to ordinary shares of IEL amounting to HK$52,174,000. BB AR) %IELFﬁ%fT$?§52 174,000/ T2 & T 7]
As at 31 March 2014, the Group held 33.13% equity interest in IEL. BMREFHILBELZ EBR - R_FE—NF=A=1+—
B ANEEIFAIELZ 33.13% M A 4E S o
The investment in IEL was classified as an investment in an associate as the Group HARASBE AT HIEL R EEBRITREATZE S
exercises significant influence over financial and operating policies of IEL. As this HRIELZ R E D AR — R & A R 218 & - B R &
associate is held as part of venture capital organisation’s investment portfolio, it is ERRNERAIRBBZREBERHE BREETH
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value. This treatment MRARAERFEET R SEEAFXNEESSF 2L
is permitted by HKAS 28 (2011) “Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures" which FR(ZF——F) [REEQFREELEZRE]
requires investments held by venture capital organisations to be excluded from its SEF QZEE‘J%,%;EW]EEEU&@%&%%Z&ﬁE@M%@
scope where those investments are designated, upon initial recognition, as at fair value RHEEERABRERRATEEIR WERESGS
through profit and loss and accounted for in accordance with HKAS 39, with changes ERIFEIRARR (AR A FEEEEELES WZ%?/:\.
in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period of HREREMED)  ABEZEREFHEEA®EE-
change.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 28. ReRERRELIER
Group Company
A%Mm £47
2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z2-mE “EB-=F —E-mF “T-=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BisE TERT FAT THER TAT
Cash and bank balances BeRBTER 90,441 88,981 549 643
Less: Pledged time deposits B BEAESRER
Pledged for interest- TR S AR AE AR
bearing borrowings 31 (2,686) (1,994) - -
Cash and cash equivalents RekERFEER 87,755 86,987 549 643

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"”) amounted to approximately
HK$6,966,000 (2013: HK$6,303,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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29. ASSETS/LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE 29. HEHEZEE &fF
On 22 February 2013, New Concept and an independent third party MN_ZE—=F_H -+ _—H " New Conceptfa
entered into a provisional sale and purchase agreement, and on 8 VEZAIVBEREERZ YR —=F=
March 2013, entered into a formal sale and purchase agreement, ANBEIZIERE E i #RLL - New Concept
pursuant to which New Concept agreed to dispose of certain B = mE % =77 H & BRE € §8 466,000,000/%
investment properties with a carrying amount of HK$66,000,000 to TS TREWE - N E—RERARERFE K
the independent third party. Deposits of HK$56,800,000 were received HR 4% 56,800,000/ 7T (FfFE30) © % 22 5 T8 H1#
as at the end of last reporting period (note 30). The transaction was RZE—=FNATK-BAlt- R_E—=F=
expected to be completed in September 2013. Accordingly, these R=+—H ZEREWEREBNRSRITER
investment properties and the related interest-bearing bank borrowings 21,270,000 7  ERFIEHEZEERARE
of HK$21,270,000 had been presented as assets and liabilities held for o ZRHGERBE_ZE—MF=A=+—H1t
sale as at 31 March 2013. This transaction was completed during the FETK
year ended 31 March 2014.
At 31 March 2013, these investment properties were pledged to secure RZZE—=F=A=+—H ZEREMWEET
the liabilities held for sale. NER ERBEHEZ B ENER.
30. TRADE PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 30. EHEZRN BURIREREFERA
ACCRUED EXPENSES
Group Company
r5E N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=F —E-IMF —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TERT FAET
Trade payables R E S ERN 107,216 201,407 - =
Deposits received Bl e 9,685 9,203 = =
Other deposits received (note 29) HipB Wi e (KizE29) = 56,800 = =
Accrued expenses [EstE R 14,715 20,763 1,866 1,568
131,616 288,173 1,866 1,568
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting BEMREEE RS HRAEREZENES
period, based on the payment due date, is as follows: BRRZREDTAT :
Group Company
r5E ¥ NG
2014 2013 2014 2013
—2-QE —E-=F —E-mE —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET THER THET
Trade payables: ERE SRR :
Current ENER 86,173 166,054 - -
1 to 30 days 1230H 15,603 32,924 - =
31 to 60 days 31260H 1,328 574 - =
Over 60 days BiBE60H 4,112 1,855 - -
107,216 201,407 - -
AV Concept Holdings Limited ,I 4 1
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30. TRADE PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 30. ERESERER BWREREFER
ACCRUED EXPENSES (continued) (%)
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled ERE SRR TS —BN30E908 A&
between 30 and 90 days. The carrying amounts of the trade payables H-BENESERZEESEEA R FEEM
approximate to their fair values. e
31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. MERITRHEMMER
BORROWINGS
Group rE
2014 2013
—E-mE —T-=F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate Maturity rate Maturity
BRAI% H%A ERF= Eikil=
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THL
Current ik
Import and trust receipt loans - unsecured O BETMEET —EER  1.71% to 246% 2014 376,005 1.77% 10 7.14% 2014 364,153
1.71%%£2.46% —E-mF 1.77%%7.14% “E-NEF
Bank loans - secured FAER-BER 0.90% to 4.05% 2014 90,225 0.85% to 2014 131,389
HIBOR +2.30%
0.90% £4.05% —E-mE 0.85%% “T-|mF
BART
EES:)
+2.30%
Bank loan - unsecured ROEH—EER Hong Kong 2014 19,675
Interbank
Offered Rate
(“HIBOR") +
2.30%
BART —E-ME
BERE
+2.30%
Other loan - unsecured HpER-EHA 5.00% 2014 7,783
—E-ME
493,688 495,542
Non-current ERB
Bank loans - secured ROER-BHA 1.80% t0 2.38% 2015 to 2027 17,026 1.68% 2014 18,362
t0 2027
1.80%£2.38% “E-hEZ “E-NER
ZECtE i 3
510,714 513,904

1 42 AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report D()14. 4



31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

Notes to Financial Statements

BORROWINGS (continued)

31

B RS R 2R Y

31 March 2014 —Z—MFE=A=+—H

. ESRITREMER @

Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans repayable: RT3 EEAER ZRITER
Within one year or on demand (Note) R—FASIRERK (M) 485,905 495,542
In the second year F-FR 1,080 1,170
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FFERF
(EREMFEBEEN) 3,243 3,510
Over five years i e 12,703 13,682
502,931 513,904
Other borrowing repayable AR —FRNERZ HMER
within one year 7,783 -
Total B 510,714 513,904
Note: B ET

As further explained in note 48 to the financial statements, as at 31 March 2014,
the Group's term loan in the amount of HK$19,675,000 (2013: HK$23,671,000)
containing an on-demand clause has been reclassified as a current liability. For the
purpose of the above analysis, the loan is included within current interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings and analysed into bank loans repayable within one year or on
demand. Based on the maturity terms of the loan, the amounts repayable in respect
of the loan are: within one year or on demand HK$3,996,000 (2013: HK$3,996,000);
in the second year HK$3,996,000 (2013: HK$3,996,000); in the third to fifth years,
inclusive HK$11,683,000 (2013: HK$11,988,000); and beyond five years nil (2013:
HK$3,691,000).

Except for the other loan which bore interest at 5.0% per annum, all the Group’s
bank borrowings bore interest at floating rates at the end of the reporting period.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
approximate to their fair values.

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group's bank loans are secured by:

(i) mortgages over the Group’s investment properties, which had an aggregate
carrying value at the end of the reporting period of HK$29,289,000 (2013:
HK$31,285,000) (note 16);

(ii) mortgages over the Group's land and buildings situated in Hong Kong,
which had an aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
HK$30,046,000 (2013: HK$89,017,000) (note 15);

(iii) pledge of certain of the Group's time deposits amounting to HK$2,686,000
(2013: HK$1,994,000) (note 28);

(iv) pledge of the Group’s equity investments at fair value through profit or loss
amounting to HK$42,302,000 (2013: HK$51,024,000) (note 27); and

(v) pledge of an available-for-sale financial investment amounting to
HK$13,147,000 (2013: HK$12,653,000) (note 23).

M SRR MI 48 E — AT R =T —ME=
A=+—HB A&EHERERKEERRZEHERK
19,675,000/ 7t (=& — =4 : 23,671,000/ L) E B &=
FAEARBEE - EMATME  ERGTAREN S
IRITREMER RIERAEAR —FARKRERERZR
TERDW - BIEERZEHIER  BRAERZETEE
SEA —FRFIZEFRA3,996,000/8 T (=T —=4F:
3,996,000 7T) : 58 =4 43,996,000 7C (=T —=4F:
3,996,000 70)  E=EF A F (EEMFEBIELEAN) A
11,683,000/ 7 ( =ZF—=4F : 11,988,000/ ) : M8
AFAT(ZFT—=%:3,691,0007T) °

AR F R H5.0%51 8 2 EE RN - RS HIR A RE -
REE 2 A RITERTIRF B FIRET S - AR E 2 K
BRTREMERZEASREL A FEERES -

RIS R A RE  AREETRITERAAT AL
AR -

(i) REBEBZREMERE ERBREHPHELERE
2 BRI B 4. {8 529,289,000/ L (— T — =4
31,285,000/ ) (FIzE16) :

(ii) AEBUREBZ T REFRE  ERREH
il 45 R B 2 BRI (B 4218 530,046,000/5 70 (= F
—=%:89,017,0007%7t) (Biz£15) :

iy EHAEESFE52,686,0008 L (ZF—=4F:
1,994,000 7T ) 2 & T & BAfF 5 (P sE28)

(iv) KB AEESEA42,302,0008 7T (ZF—=4F:
51,024,000/ 7T ) 2 & BB IR A FEBEIRZ AR
KA (KisE27) « &

(v) L% A13,147,0008 L (T — =4
12,653,000 7T) 2 ATt HH & € @ik & (M
23) °

AV Concept Holdings Limited ,I 43
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32.

33.

144

FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles for the Group’s marketing
and distribution business. These leases are classified as finance leases
and have lease terms ranging from one to four years.

At 31 March 2014, the total future minimum lease payments under
finance leases and their present values are as follows:

32.

ENmERERE
AEERETIBRERS WEEEAETE.
REHERSMARANE HEFHNT—F
B

RZE-—NFE=A=+—H0 BREREBEEZR
K EEEFRIBERNMEBRENT

Group K&
Present Present
value of value of
minimum minimum
Minimum lease Minimum lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
2014 2013 2014 2013
REHE HERE
REAERE REZRE HEZHE
“E-mEFE  REMEHE —E-MF =%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THL FTET FHEL
Amounts payable: AT HA R e 2 28
Within one year —FR 268 488 239 429
In the second year F-FR 197 272 174 243
In the third to fifth years, inclusive BE=RERF
(HEMEREER) 345 551 305 4883
Total minimum finance lease payments HERERETIRAE 810 1,311 718 1,160
Future finance charges ARBEER (92) (151)
Total net finance lease payables ENRERENBFEAE 718 1,160
Portion classified as current liabilities PEARBEELDS (239) (429)
Non-current portion FnEHH 479 731

The carrying amounts of the Group’s finance lease payables
approximate to their fair values.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE OBLIGATION

During the year, the Company has provided financial guarantees to
joint ventures in relation to the bank lending facilities granted to joint
ventures, and the Company will make payments to reimburse the
lenders upon failure of the guaranteed entity to make payments when
due.

As at 31 March 2014, the carrying amount of the financial
guarantee obligation of the Group amounted to HK$5,694,000
(2013: HK$1,410,000), based on the valuation from an independent
professionally qualified valuer engaged by the Group, less cumulative
amortisation. The method used in determining the fair value of these
guarantees was by reference to the recovery rate and key financial ratio
of the guaranteed entity.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2()14. 4

33.

AEEEMBEREFRZRESRERL R TE
BERE-

MBREREE

E ADRRA BEEEE T BITHREERA
ABLERUMBRR WEERZ DREDH
B REEER AR ABHE S EN R

R-ZE—NWF=A=+—H0 RBELAEEZEZ
B HELERGEM 2 GER 2 E#ETE
AEEPEEREEZREHR S A5,694,00075
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34. DEFERRED TAX 34. ELEHRIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and asset during the year are FERN REHHEEBREEZEFHNOT
as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities EEBESE
Group EE

Depreciation

allowance
in excess of Revaluation
depreciation of properties Total
BBITEZ
mERE L E=R &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHT FHIT
At 1 April 2012 R-ZT——FmMA—H 5,187 - 5,187
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to FRAKE, (GEA)
the statement of profit or loss BamRk ZBELERIA
during the year (note 10) (MI5E10) (1,355) 620 (735)
Deferred tax charged to FABEESEMHFEHEIRZ
the asset revaluation EREF IR
reserve during the year - 3,993 3,993
Exchange realignment bE H AR 38 - 38
At 31 March 2013 and 1 April 2013 R=-ZE—=F=F=+—HEK
R-E—=F0WA—H 3,870 4,613 8,483
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) U &K E 2 7 (Ff&E38) 1,551 - 1,551
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) HEME QR (KE39) (766) - (766)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to FRMBRE (5t A)
the statement of profit or loss BERZ2ELEBE
during the year (note 10) (HtEE10) (1,416) 41 (1,375)
Exchange realignment ELFEE 71 - 71
At 31 March 2014 R-B-NmFE=A=+—H 3,310 4,654 7,964
AV Concept Holdings Limited ,I 4 5
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34. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax asset

Group

34.

EAERIE (%)
EEFRIEEE

rEHE

Recognition of tax losses

ERHIEEE
2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At beginning of year F9) - 2,473
Deferred tax charged to the statement of &N B8 KR 2 ELEFEIE
profit or loss during the year (note 10) (Kt3E10) = (2,473)
At end of year FI - -

The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$230,268,000 (2013: HK$249,563,000) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which losses arose. The Group also has unrecognised tax losses
arising in elsewhere of HK$28,856,000 (2013: HK$82,395,000) that
will expire during 2014 to 2019 for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets in respect of losses of approximately
HK$259,124,000 (2013: HK$331,958,000) have not been recognised
as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and, in the opinion of the directors, it is not considered probable
that sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilised.

At 31 March 2014, there was no significant unrecognised deferred tax
liability (2013: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain of the Company’s subsidiaries or associates.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
Annual Report D()14. 4

146

AEBERBEBELEZHARBEERE A
230,268,000/ 7T ( == — = 4 : 249,563,000/
o) A EBRHAERESESERZARZA
RIERBUEF - AR BRHE MM 5 EE 2 RIE
R IAE 1B 528,856,000/ 7T (Z T — =4 :
82,395,000/ L) N _E—NFE=_FT—A
B HA - AT A R A 88 oK SR B AR B v A1 o 37 £ 3k
ZEE1849259,124,0008 L (Z T — =4
331,958,000/ 7T ) ERELE R IBEE B SE
BIHEHSEE - BRKEZHEBAREL &
FIW R A AR T T 2 A SR ME R i F) LA L
i B S TR 8 o

RZB-—ME=A=+—8B $ARAETHEB
NEREEARARE LA 2 BNRIERE @ 1L
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35. SHARE CAPITAL PN
Shares % 2
Company
RAF
2014 2013
—ZE-MmF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T T
Authorised: VERE
800,000,000 ordinary shares of 800,000,0000% & A E1E0. 10/ 7T
HK$0.10 each 2 &R 80,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BEETRERE:
711,108,419 (2013: 603,108,419) 711,108,419 (=& — =4 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 603,108,4190% ) FR% F &
0108 7T 2 EimAx 71,111 60,311

The movements in share capital are as follows:

(a)

On 31 July 2013, (1) Jade Concept Limited (a shareholder
of the Company) (“Jade Concept”) and Kingsway Financial
Services Group Limited (the “Placing Agent”) entered into a
placing agreement pursuant to which Jade Concept agreed
to place, through the Placing Agent, an aggregate of up to
72,600,000 existing shares (“Placing Shares”), on a best effort
basis, to certain placees at a price of HK$0.60 per share (the
“Placement”); and (2) the Company and Jade Concept entered
into a subscription agreement pursuant to which Jade Concept
agreed to subscribe for such number of new shares equivalent to
the number of Placing Shares actually placed by the Placing Agent
(the “Subscription”).

The Placement was completed on 1 August 2013 and
72,600,000 shares of HK$0.10 each were issued to Jade Concept
pursuant to the subscription agreement, for a total net proceed
of HK$42,860,000 on 12 August 2013.

The subscription rights attaching to 35,400,000 (2013: Nil) share
options were exercised at the subscription prices ranging from
HK$0.435 to HK$0.834 per share (note 36), resulting in the
issue of 35,400,000 shares of HK$0.10 each for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of HK$23,538,000. An amount
of HK$7,296,000 was transferred from the equity-settled share-
based payments reserve to the share premium account upon the
exercise of the share option.

ARAE BT -

(@9 RZZTE—=FtA=+—H"(1)lade
Concept Limited (K2R ZH&E) ([Jade
Concept ] ) BEE S RMRHE B MR A A
(MMEEERIE]) T A E W% Bt Jade
Concept[d & 5 38 fic & K 32 37 38 35 = % A
FR0.60%E T Z BIEAE TREALRS
A £ 5% %72,600,00005 R B KH ([ERE
Bml) (TBEEFE])  RQ)ARQF H
Jade Concepti] 37 38 B 1h 5% - #5 Ut - Jade
ConceptRl ERBEH B HENEEREER
BREEZREERNEE 2R M ([RES
] e

REEEER=_TE—=FN\A—HB%=/K"
ARABERZZTE—=FNATZARER
B8 1 7% [A1Jade ConceptE7772,600,0000%
BREE0. 108 7T 2 R - Fr{SRIEFREE
%8 /42,860,00078 7T ©

(b) 35,400,000 (=T — =4 : | )ER
M RABREETE RBEEN TSR
0.435% 70 £0.8347%8 7t (M 7£36) * B E
7K A & 3 1735,400,0008% & A% E {H0.10
BLzBRMD LRRE(KRFAZA)
#523,538,0007% T o 1A B AR #E 7 17 {56 0 -
7,296,000 7T 5 IE B R AR i 45 E AR 1+
REESRERGHEER-
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35. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Shares (continued)

()

During the year ended 31 March 2013, 1,084,000 shares
repurchased by the Company were cancelled. Accordingly, the
issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal
value of these shares and the premium paid on these shares upon
the repurchase was charged against the share premium account.
An amount equivalent to the par value of the ordinary shares
cancelled was transferred from the Company'’s retained earnings
to the capital redemption reserve as set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

The directors considered that, as the Company’s shares were
trading at a discount to the expected net asset value per share,
the repurchase of shares would be beneficial to the Company.

35. BRAS (@)
R4 (%)

(@}

REBE-_ZT—=F=A=+—RHLLFE"
AAEESHATIEE 2 1,084,0008% i (5 ° &
It AR AR B BT - SR E R
ERMEE MBELZEROBEIF2E
BEERMDEERTHR - HNGE En
BHERME HERECFHTBREEZ
S FE R B AR AR B 2 FI 8 R = AR AR [
=

E=2RR ARARERN HIERERE
BREEFENEERETER HEQ

PR17 1 < AN B g o

A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to the FR 2ELRRRBEHITRA L EE 225
above movements in the Company’s issued share capital is as follows: AT
Equity-
settled
Number of Share share-based
ordinary Issued premium payments
shares in issue capital account reserve Total
BB REZEN
EERHA ERTRA ROEER ROESREE CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TAT FAT
At 1 April 2012 RZE——FNA—H 604,192,419 60,419 372,379 1,628 434,426
Repurchase and cancellation B R EAR AR KRG
of the Company's shares (1,084,000) (108) (417) - (525)
Equity-settled share option RELHBRERH
arrangements - - - 2,415 2,415
Share options lapsed FERRIE R - - = (1,628) (1,628)
At 31 March 2013 and at 1 April 2013 R=F-=%£=fA=+-HR
R-ZE-=£NAF—-H 603,108,419 60,311 371,962 2,415 434,688
Issue of new shares on Subscription RRBEEMRTHKH 72,600,000 7,260 36,300 - 43,560
Share issue expenses on Subscription REBEEZRABTHX - - (700) - (700)
Equity-settled share option REEEBREZY
arrangements - - - 4,991 4,991
Share options exercised BREETHE 35,400,000 3,540 27,294 (7,296) 23,538
At 31 March 2014 R-Z2-mF=f=+-8 711,108,419 71111 434,856 110 506,077
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35.

36.

Notes to Financial Statements

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Share options

Details of the share option schemes of the Company and one of its
subsidiaries and the share options issued under these schemes are
included in note 36 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Share option scheme adopted by the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “AV Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Eligible
participants of the AV Scheme include the Company's directors,
including the independent non-executive directors, other employees of
the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group, customers of
the Group, any person or entity that provides research, development
or technological support to the Group, any non-controlling interests in
the Company’s subsidiaries, any advisor or consultant to any area of
business or business development to the Group and any other group or
class of participants who have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business arrangements to the
Group. The AV Scheme became effective on 3 August 2012 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted
to be granted under the AV Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon
their exercise, to 30% of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The total number of ordinary shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the AV Scheme
(excluding any which have lapsed) and any other schemes of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the ordinary shares of
the Company in issue as at the date of the adoption of the AV Scheme.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the AV Scheme within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

35.

36.

AR5 R 2R Y

31 March 2014 = —M&=/A=+—H

&N )

i IR 1

AN R E T — R B A TR AR RS B R AR I
ZEHBBTBRESERRMERENS
36 °

BT E

RAFRMZ B RETE
ARARIFERAER B ([AVETE]) B EREA
SEZREBEFEHEM A BR2EERHEE
BIROe AVET Bl 2 A BIR2 HEBFEARRE
= (BRBIUFHTES) AKEEMEER B
AEERERERIRBZHER AKEES
RASBERERE  FREARMENEFRAL
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BRAEECE FEEBIHMBEBEREEAE
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BRIFREUE SR BRIHNZ B REH0FANE
R o

B At AR BBAVAT B3R 2 M R 1T L BB AR i
TEFAIRBEZROEE RZ M BEBARTA
MEMEREZ B ETERBE30%  REBEAVET S &
AR BMEATE A AT B TR 2 A AR (1
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BRI AR AL

31 March 2014 = —F=A=+—H

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 36. HERRERTE (m)

Share option scheme adopted by the Company
(continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price of the
Company's shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance
in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and commences after a certain
vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than the expiry
date of the AV Scheme.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but
may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company'’s shares on the date of offer of the share options; and
(ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders’ meetings.

1 50 AV Concept Holdings Limited
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36.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
Share option scheme adopted by the Company

(continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

AR5 R 2R Y

31 March 2014 —Z—MFE=/A=+—H

The following share options were outstanding under the AV Scheme
during the year:

36. HERRERTE (m)
KA TR 2 BRAESTE (&)

REFZARAVEH SR T RITR ZBREDT

Number of share options
BRERA
The
Company's
Exercise Exercise share price
Name or At Granted lapsed  Exercised  Cancelled Expired At Date of period of price at grant
category of 1 April during during during during during 31 March grant of share ofshare  date of share
participant 2013 the year the year the year the year the year 2014 share options options options options
RERE
RZB-Z% RZ%-BF REAHZ
SAERELIRG BA-A REREL KERZN RERERE REAZE REAER ZAZt-8 BRERLAS BREZOEE BREZGRE ALIRGER
(both dates HKS HKS
inclusive) per share per share
(AEERRR) AT BT
(8R) (8R)
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
(k) ig7) (a3)
Directors
gz
S0 Yuk Kwan 600,000 - - - - - 600,000 13 March 2013 13 March 2013 to 0435 0415
12 March 2018
2] “F-=%#=At=H “3-=%5=ft=R%
“2-N\£=At1ZH
So Chi On 6,000,000 - - (6,000,000 - - - 13 March 2013 13 March 2013 to 0435 0415
12 March 2018
§2% “F-%=A+=A I =
“3-\F=A+tzR
Ho Choi Yan Christopher 3,000,000 - - (3,000,000) - - - 13 March 2013 13 March 2013 to 0435 0415
12 March 2018
188 “2-=%£=At=H “3-=%=RtZBH%
“E-\§=A+zA
Ho Choi Yan Christopher - 3,400,000 - (3,400,000) - - - 25 October 2013 25 October 2013 to 0834 0770
24 October 2015
OEES “F-=£+A=1IR “2-=E+A-THAZ
ZR-RETAZTRA
Sub-total 9,600,000 3,400,000 - (12,400,000) = = 600,000
Nt
Employees
-1
In aggregate 6,000,000 - - (6,000,000 - - - 13 March 2013 13 March 2013 to 0435 0415
12 March 2018
A% “Z-Z£=-81=H “3-=5ZAt=RZ
“Z-N\F=AtZH
In aggregate - 17,000,000 - (17,000,000) - - - 25 October 2013 25 October 2013 to 0.834 0.770
24 October 2015
A “F-=%+A-11A 2 =ETA-TRAZ
Z2-RETAZTRA
Sub-total 6,000,000 17,000,000 - (23,000,000 - - -
It
Total 15,600,000 20,400,000 - (35,400,000 - - 600,000
Aif
AV Concept Holdings Limited 1 5 1
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 36. MRS ()
Share option scheme adopted by the Company AT RMZBRAETE (#)
(continued)
Notes: P aE -
1. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the 1. BREZ GRBARKE B RETEHMR S
commencement of the exercise period. fal o
2. The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case of 2. BB Z AT REEARMARSEITAR S ARAF]
rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share capital. R AN BR EL A SR S B s T DA B
3. The price of the Company's shares disclosed as at the date of grant of the share 3. T2 AN ARG R EBRER L B2 EBRA
options is the Stock Exchange closing price on the date of grant of the options. BEARME R B EATE R A P 2 T B o
2014 2013
—E-mE =%
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
mEFHTEE BREHE METHTRE fmIRER R
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T4 BT T
per share per share
(BR) (81&)
At beginning of year F1) 0.435 15,600 1.050 11,820
Granted during the year RERF L 0.834 20,400 0.435 15,600
Exercised during the year REREITEE 0.665 (35,400) = =
Lapsed during the year RER KA - - 1.050 (11,820)
At end of year R 0.435 600 0.435 15,600

The exercise price and exercise period of the share options outstanding

M ERRERT M ARITEZBREZITEE

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: RATEEBNT :
Number of
options Exercise price* Exercise period
IBRERE TREE* TS
‘000 HK$ per share
) BT (F&R)
2014 —E-NF 600 0.435 13 March 2013 to
12 March 2018
—E-—=%=A+=HZE
—2-\¥=8+=H
2013 —E—=F 15,600 0.435 13 March 2013 to
12 March 2018
—T—=F=ZA+=HZE
—E-N\F=HA+=H
= The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of rights & BB 2 (TR EARNERIBEITAR AR A

or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share capital.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option scheme adopted by the Company
(continued)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
HK$4,991,000 (2013: HK$2,415,000) and the whole amount was
recognised as other expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss during the year ended 31 March 2014.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was estimated
as at the date of grant using a binomial model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used:

36.

AR5 R 2R Y

31 March 2014 = —M&=/A=+—H

R ERTE (3
KA TR 2 BRAESTE (&)

FR - B ZBRREZ AF(EEE4,991,0008 7T

ZT—=%:2,415,000%7T) - MEHEREZR
T NMFE=A=+—HIEFEZREERRE
REEMER-

ERNZEELAEBREATFEEIRELA
P —BARAGE UEFRAZSERLER
GRS MR - TREIIZRAFARAZBA
&:

25 October 2013 13 March 2013

—E—=fF —ET—=F

+A=+HxAH = A =H

Dividend yield (%) % B 2R (%) 1.300 1.032

Expected volatility (%) T8 B R 1 (%) 66.600 56.939

Risk-free interest rate (%) 4 [ B2 ) 2= (%) 0.231 0.229

Expected life of options (years) TAETHEIRER FH (F) 2.000 2.500
Weighted average share price MEFEHRE (BRET)

(HK$ per share) 0.834 0.435

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data over the
past three years and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 600,000 share
options outstanding under the AV Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 600,000 additional ordinary shares
of the Company and additional share capital of HK$60,000 and share
premium of HK$201,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 600,000 share options outstanding under the AV Scheme, which
represented approximately 0.08% of the Company’s shares in issue as
at that date.

TAFHEREA R FH B E = F 2 £ BiEe
HWARTABEHERZITERE - FRHKIE R
[ BR R SEOR IR I RN R E T 2 RER - AR
RERER -

SEAFEER L EE BRI 2 BREZ R

RIRE HAR AR - AR BIRAVETZIIE TR 2 M A&
7T B AR 4 2600,00017 © £ AR R B3 s 2 AR A SE
BT BEITE M ARITE 2 BRE S SR AEIN
#£17600,0000% A A 7] & 38 % + W ZE 460,00075 70
ZEBINIRAN K2 201,00078 7T Z B9 E B (R 31T
FZAT) ©

REHRAMBERRE B KRR RAVEEIET 2
) AR 1T {5 i AR 4 45600,00017 » #HE AR A1 %
BB 31T 0 490.08% °
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IR AR AL

31 March 2014 = —F=A=+—H

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option scheme adopted by a subsidiary

On 5 August 2013, Koocell Limited (“Koocell”) adopted a share option
scheme (‘Koocell Scheme”). Under the Koocell Scheme, Koocell may
grant options to any of their full-time employees and directors and
any eligible persons as defined therein to subscribe for the respective

ordinary shares of Koocell.

The following share options were outstanding under the Koocell

36. BARESTE (@)

— P B 2 B R A oz I IR R = &

RZZ—=F/\AAH Koocell Limited
([Koocell | ) FE#n Az 5T &l ([Koocellzt &) ©
R Koocellzt &l » Koocell 7] [a) H E ] 2 B 2 B &
EE LA K Koocellst EIFT R E 2 R & BB ALE
i B AR - DASR BB AR FE 2 KoocellE AR ©

N6 [E AT KoocellzT 838 N AR 1716 2 B8 AU 40

Scheme during the year: T e
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise Exercise
Name or At Granted Lapsed Exercised Cancelled Expired At Date of period of price
category of 1 April during during during during during 31 March grant of share of share
participant 2013 the year the year the year the year the year 2014 share options options options
R=%-=% R=ZF-0F
SEEHZIER mA-A RERRL RERZR  RERETE REREH RERER =ZA=t-A BRERLES BREZGRE  BREZGRE
(both dates HKS
inclusive) per share
(BEERRX) o
(8kK)
(Note 1)
(Htzk1)
Director of Koocell - 220,000 - - - - 220,000 5 August 2013 6 September 2015 to 80
5 August 2023
Koocell 2 €% “F-ZENARR ZE-REARARE
“ZZZEN\ARA
Employees of Koocell - 70,000 25,000 - - - 45,000 5 August 2013 6 September 2015 to 80
5 August 2023
Koocell Z[EB ZZ-ZEN\ARR  ZZ-RENARRE
“F-=%)\AAA
Total = 290,000 25,000 = = = 265,000
At
Note: B
1. The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the 1. BREHEHAREEBBRE/TE RS2 8

commencement of the exercise period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 36.

Share option scheme adopted by a subsidiary
(continued)

AR5 R 2R Y

31 March 2014 = —M&=/A=+—H

R ERTE (3
— R A B RN 2 B AR AEST & (&)

2014 2013
—E-mEF —T-=F

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options
MEFHTEE BREHR MmETHTRE ERESE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T4 BT T

per share per share

(BR) (Bhk)
At beginning of year =2 - - - -
Granted during the year RERKE 8.0 290 - -
Lapsed during the year RER KR 8.0 (25) = =
At end of year E3 8.0 265 - -

The exercise price and exercise period of the share options outstanding
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

RS R AERE W RTTEZBREZITERER
TTEHRIWT

Number of
options Exercise price Exercise period
BREZAR TEE TR
‘000 HK$ per share
T1n BT (BR)
2014 —E-mEF 265 8.0 6 September 2015 to

5 August 2023
—E-RFNAAKHBZE
—E_=%)1\BEH

2013 —E—=F -

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
HK$2,601,000 (2013: Nil) and the whole amount was recognised as
other expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss during the
year ended 31 March 2014.

FARBZBEREZ X F(EER2,601,0008 7T
(ZF—=%:8) M2UEREBE_FT-—TF
ZH=t - BULFEZHABaRERREMLE
=18
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36.

37.

156

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share option scheme adopted by a subsidiary
(continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was estimated as
at 1 October 2013, being the date when the Group obtained control
over Koocell, using a binomial model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The following table
lists the inputs to the model used:

36.

BB AT 8l ()
— R A F AN 2 B AR AEST & (&)

ERLZBRELEBEREATEEINR - —=
F+A—A8 (BIAEEERSKoocelliZHl#EZ H)
BR-BRNERNGE PO RZECREHERE
ZER KRGS TRBINZEXMFER 28 A
&:

1 October 2013

—ET—=%+H—H
Dividend yield (%) % B2 (%) 0.000
Expected volatility (%) TEHA R 18 (%) 75.500
Risk-free interest rate (%) 4 [ B2 1) 2= (%) 2.092
Expected life of options (years) TAETHERER BFH (F) 10
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) n#EFRRME (FRET) 49.379

The expected life of the options is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility was determined
by using the historical volatility of comparable companies’ share prices
corresponding to the terms of options from the valuation date.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, Koocell had 265,000 share options
outstanding under the Koocell Scheme. The exercise in full of the
outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure
of Koocell, result in the issue of 265,000 additional ordinary shares
of Koocell and additional share capital of HK2,120,000 (before issue
expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, Koocell had
265,000 share options outstanding under the Koocell Scheme, which
represented approximately 37.3% of Koocell's shares in issue as at that
date.

RESERVES

(@) Group
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 51 to 52 of the financial
statements.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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37. RESERVES (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
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37. &% (@

(b) Company (b) Z&2AF
Equity-
settled
share-based Retained
Share payment Capital profits/
premium expenses redemption  (accumulated
account reserve reserve losses) Total
RELE L REEH,/
RORER ROCREE REAERGEE (RitE#R) At
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Btz THT THT THT THT THL
At 1 April 2012 R-E——%MmA—A 372,379 1,628 16,034 22,901 412,942
Total comprehensive loss AEEREERLEE
for the year " - - - (13,504) (13,504)
Repurchase and cancellation BB R AR ARG
of the Company's shares 417 - 108 (108) 417)
Equity-settled share option R S i R iE L o
arrangements - 2,415 - - 2,415
Share options lapsed FBRE RN - (1,628) = 1,628 =
Proposed final dividend FEARBE 13 = = = (6,031) (6,031)
At 31 March 2013 and R-ZZ-Z5=Zf=t-HK
at 1 April 2013 R-E-=£NA-H 371,962 2,415 16,142 4,886 395,405
Total comprehensive loss AEER2EERAR
for the year " - - - (19,313) (19,313)
Adjustment on final HREER=B-ZFRXEKRE
2013 dividend declared ez AE 13 - - - (786) (786)
Issue of new shares RARBSEMRTHREG
on Subscription 35 36,300 - - - 36,300
Share issue expenses on RBEEZROBTHEL
Subscription 35 (700) - - - (700)
Equity-settled share option RELEBRER
arrangements - 4,991 - - 4,991
Share options exercised BRERTE 27,294 (7,296) = = 19,998
At 31 March 2014 R-E-ME=A=+-H 434,856 110 16,142 (15,213) 435,895

In accordance with the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands, the Company’s share premium account is
distributable in certain circumstances.

BEMENEATN A (CEENFELT
%) AR ZROBEEEETHERTD

TR
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38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. WWIBHIE A =)

On 1 October 2013, the Group acquired a 51% interest in Ever
Better International Limited from Amber Treasure Holdings Limited,
an independent third party. Ever Better International Limited and its
subsidiary (together, “Koocell Group”) is engaged in mobile application
development business. The acquisition was made as part of the
Group's strategy to expand into the mobile application market. The
purchase consideration for the acquisition was in the form of cash
of HK$24,000,000, fully settled at the acquisition date. Ever Better
International Limited changed its name to Koocell Holdings Limited
subsequently and the Group acquired the remaining 49% interest
in Ever Better International Limited on 31 March 2014. It became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group since then.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities as at the date of
acquisition are as follows:

R-E—=ZF+A—HBH A£ERBILE=
77 Amber Treasure Holdings Limited!z 8 Ever
Better International LimitedZ51%#E 2 ° Ever
Better International Limited H Kt B 2 & (%
M7 [Koocell S B e FHEREAFEHE
BezBERB N ASERREFHERRAT
BZREN R - ZBERBZEERERES
24,000,000/ 7T - B AU B HA%AS)S © Ever Better
International Limited & ¥ 4 & Koocell Holdings
Limited MASKEAR =T —NF=A=+—H
I B& Ever Better International Limitedfk ~N49%#E
W RAREBKAAERZ2EN B AR

AEBREERBBERKRERBNZ A TFEEN
T

Fair value

recognised on

acquisition

U

R AT EE

Notes HK$'000

B = F&T

Trade receivables FEWE Z BRI 491
Prepayments TEfT IR 156
Cash and cash equivalents RekERBERIER 871
Other intangible assets Hih & 18 9,400
Accrued expenses EsTEH (4,075)
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEEE 34 (1,551)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAFEBEYRZAIE#EE

JFEERE 5,292
Non-controlling interests FEFERRAE = (3,589)
1,703

Goodwill on acquisition WS E A 2 i a 17 22,297
Satisfied by cash LAIR & A+ 24,000

1 58 AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

38. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The fair values and gross contractual amount of trade receivables as at
the date of acquisition amounted to HK$491,000. No trade receivables
was expected to be uncollectible.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries

AR5 R 2R Y

31 March 2014 = —M&=/A=+—H

38. WOBREH 2 F (a0
JEWE 5 BRI s B Bl 2 AP BE METH A
/3491,0007%8 7T - i & JE W Z 5 BR 5K T8 B R I
@ o

WENBARZREREDNTIT :

is as follows:
HK$'000
FAT
Cash consideration HERE (24,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriiER &« kR ERREIEE 871
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included AAREEHCREREZE SRS
in cash flows from investing activities [EIR&HE L FE (23,129)

Since the acquisition, the contributions by Koocell Group to the Group's
revenue and consolidated profit for the year ended 31 March 2014
were insignificant.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year ended 31
March 2014, there would have been no material change to the revenue
and the consolidated profit of the Group from continuing operations for
the year.

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group disposed of (i)
its entire interest in Ditec Company Limited to Nitgen Eco & Energy
International Limited (“NEEIL”), an associate of the Group, at a
consideration of HK$23,690,000; and (ii) its entire interest in Tab-U
Game Limited (formerly known as Signeo Venture Partners Limited) to
AVC Technology Limited, an independent third party, at a consideration
of HK$1.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, Signeo Lifestyle allotted
999,999 shares to its shareholders and the Group's equity interest
in Signeo Lifestyle was diluted from 100% to 32% since then. As a
result, the Group’s investment in Signeo Lifestyle was reclassified from a
subsidiary to an associate.

B U AR - Koocel iR B A KB HZE T — Y

FEAS+— AL FEZ RS REA R R
YTREK -

BEEHNBE—TNF=A=+—HLFE
ﬁ%ﬂ{’ﬁf $EIX§T#,=i“<M¥f%Z¢WH&m
BmMm T EFERE

w.&EW%“E

E’\%Zi —mMFE=A=+—BLEFEA &
WﬂS%lZHﬁﬁﬁﬁ’&TNltgen Eco & Energy

Internatlonal Limited ([NEEIL]) H & X R E %R

BEFERARZEHMER  K(E/23,690,000%8

TL R(NABLE=FEBRBERARHER

M Tab-U Game Limited (ATFE L EBAIZ AR A

Az 2R RERIET-

REE—Z—=F=A=+—HIt&ER Signeo
Lifestylerm f% 5 A #£999,999 % f% 15 & 24 & E 5
It P Signeo Lifestylez A% 7 # &5 F3 100 % & 58 =
32% o Ak ANEE R Signeo LifestyleZTﬁiéfEE—
B AREHR A —BEE LA
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. HEMBEAFE @)
2014 2013
—E-mF =%
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
P &E FTET T
Net assets/(liabilities) disposed of: FILEEEFE(AfF&
REE)

Available-for-sale investments A HERE 19,825 -

Equity investments at fair value BRBEREATEEBESR
through profit or loss 2RI E 406 -

Goodwill GEES 17 9,621 =

Other intangible assets BT EE 18 4,644 -

Trade and other receivables FEW B 5 BR R R EL

&M R IR 6 39

Tax recoverable AT g B I8 1,146 =

Cash and cash equivalents RekERBELIER 587 =

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  F&1[F R i B A 7] 718 - (42)

Due to a related company &S — Al B & X R FR IR (10,279) -

Deferred tax liabilities BEEFRIBEEE 34 (766) =

25,190 3)
Available-for-sale investments A S R AR BR 2 P 4

revaluation reserve released HEEHFEE

upon disposal (4,734) -
Fair value of investments retained ~ RHERREZIREZ

upon disposal and reclassified to: NEEEREF»ER:

Investments in associates REEE R R 2" E - 1
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries M A Rz e 6 3,234 2
Consideration KE 23,690 =
Satisfied by: SRAR:

Cash Be 23,690 -

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of

FRLENBARIZRE 2 RERRSEBRAFE

the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: BT :
2014 2013
—E-WF —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cash consideration ReERE 23,690 =
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FrtEvReRERBESER (587) =

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents ~ BREHEHBARZRERER

in respect of disposal of subsidiaries REeEE RAFERE 23,103 =

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Major non-cash transactions

(@ In the current year, the increase in investments in joint ventures
amounted to HK$4,284,000 (2013: decrease in investments
in joint ventures of HK$2,620,000) was attributable to the
recognition of financial guarantee obligation of HK$11,039,000
(2013: HK$2,543,000) and the derecognition of financial
guarantee obligation of HK$6,755,000 (2013: HK$5,163,000) at
the end of the reporting period.

(b)  In the current year, consideration for disposal of certain items of
property, plant and equipment amounting to HK$101,576,000
was not settled at the end of the reporting period and was
included in other receivables.

(€ In the prior year, the Group's investments in associates
of HK$26,854,000 were transferred to available-for-sale
investments.

(d) In the prior year, a deposit paid for investment properties of
HK$10,920,000 was transferred to investment properties.

41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for

AR5 R 2R Y

31 March 2014 = —M&=/A=+—H

40. FEREREBRME

TEHFBRERS

@ RAEAEE RABGLEZEEHEMN
4,284,000 L (ZE—=F :RA& D
¥ 2B R 22,620,000 L) AR
RBEHEERBEERAVSERET
11,039,000/ 7T (= — = 4 : 2,543,000
S TT) R AR IEFE R B A5 5 R & ££6,755,000
BT (ZZ—=4:5,163,000/ 7T ) Fr 2 -

(b) RAFE HEETHE BERREERE
ZX(B101,576,00078 T I & B 4 R (4]
RBE WEFAH MR FIEA -

O =FE AEBRBEIARNZHRE
26,854,000 TEEREEAH P ERE -

(d EF BEWHEZENE£10,920,000/%
TEEHBEEREYE-

41. AREE
REE BRI AR NI RR AR 2 XA

in the financial statements are as follows: BENT:
Group Company
r5E ¥ NG
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-ImF =5 —E-DF —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET THER FHET
Guarantees given in respect of HER 2 GEREZER:
facilities granted to:
— subsidiaries NG - - 1,416,498 1,525,570
— joint ventures - RERE 823,260 454,650 823,260 454,650
823,260 454,650 2,239,758 1,980,220

As at 31 March 2014, the bank lending facilities granted to the
subsidiaries subject to guarantees given to the banks by the Company
were utilised to the extent of approximately HK$460,358,000 (2013:
HK$508,602,000).

As at 31 March 2014, the bank lending facilities granted to joint
ventures subject to cross-guarantees given to the banks by the
Company were utilised to the extent of approximately HK$690,387,000
(2013: HK$534,962,000). For the financial guarantees provided to joint
ventures in relation to the bank lending facilities granted, the Group has
recognised the fair value of the financial guarantee obligation of the
Group amounting to HK$5,694,000 (2013: HK$1,410,000) as a liability
as at 31 March 2014 which was disclosed in note 33 to the financial
statements.

R-F—MNFE=A=+—8 FAAFHMNEAF
R ZIRITEREER{ERTRT 2ERD
460,358,000/# 7T ( = & — = % : 508,602,000/8
7)) ©

RZE-—NME=ZA=+—H AAFHAEL
CEERZBTERCFERHEIEERTR
17 B £ B 49690,387,000/ 7T (Z B — =4 :
534,962,000 L) - MR E E D EE R 2R
TEREEMREZVBER AEEER=-F
—mHE=A=+—HBEAEEYKEREETZA
(B {E5,694,000/8 7 (—ZZ — =4 : 1,410,000
B ERBRE  FBEERY SRR
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(a)

(b)

42. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 42. EXHERH
As lessor (a) fERHEMEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 16 to the AEERBEEXEMELHEREETRE
financial statements) under operating lease arrangements, with ME (BEHREWT6)  SHEFZHEF
leases negotiated for terms ranging from one to ten years. HANF—Z+F - HEZKRA—RITGE
The terms of the leases generally also require the tenants to FHABLRNREBEL  WAFRIEERKBIT
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments TREHEESEHRELAE-
according to the then prevailing market conditions.
At 31 March 2014, the Group had total future minimum lease RZZE—NF=A=1+—0 ' xEEIREHE
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its FRFISLR N5 F AR B 2 Tl HUS & 2%
tenants falling due as follows: HE 2 RREAREWEEFRIBLETELOT
Company
rEE
2014 2013
—E2-0F —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Within one year —FR 2,205 1,659
In the second to fifth years, E_EZERF
inclusive (BEEMEBREEN) 1,177 1,960
3,382 3,619
As lessee (b) fERAMEA

The Group leases certain of its office premises, staff quarters,
warehouses and motor vehicles under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties and motor vehicles are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to eight years.

At 31 March 2014, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as
follows:

AEBEREEXZHERFHEBAEETHRA
EPE - BEIEES ERRAE -ARAME
MAEEBZHEFHANF—ZE/\F-

RZZE-—OF=A=+—0 AKERE
R FHRIH 2 PAIEEE EEE 2R
REREFIRARNAT

Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-IF —=E—=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —FR 1,302 1,974
In the second to fifth years, FE_EZFERF
inclusive (BEERFEBEEAN) 878 3,613
After five years RF% - 2,815
2,180 8,402

At 31 March 2014, the Company had no operating lease arrangements
(2013: Nil).
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43. COMMITMENTS 43. EiE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note B b XXMt ara2m it o & M EAdESN - AR H B
42 above, the Group and the Company had the following capital AABRMEELERE ZERFEENT
commitments at the end of the reporting period:
Group Company
rEE ¥ YN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mF —ET-=F —E-MF 2=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT TER THT
Capital commitments in respect of Wl 2 BAREE -
acquisition of properties:
Contracted but not provided for EHEERS 3 1,035 = = =
1,035 - - -
44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. EEEALRS
(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (a) BRAFBRBREMIA MR 2T BN
financial statements, the Group had the following material REBRFRNEBEAEATHETUTER
transactions with related parties during the year: RG:
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—ZE—-0F —E-=F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E FTHExT T
Associates: /NI
Sales of products HEEMm (i) 10,863 7,316
Purchases of products BEER (i) 1,035 1,243
Management fee income ERERA (ii) 370 2,856
Rental income e WA (iv) - 1,481
Interest income B U A (v) 1,012 1,269
Trademark licence income RIZEREW A (vi) 544 505
Proceeds from disposal of HE—MWBRARFEHRIE (v
a subsidiary 23,690 -
Proceeds from disposal of HEME N R ERIE (vii)
associates - 146,573
Joint ventures: aEME:
Sales of products SHEE R (i) = 214
Purchases of products BEER (i) 366 10
Handling charges FEE (iii) - 915
Related companies: BHEERNR]:
Sales of products HEEM (i) 274 2,989
Purchases of products BEEM (i) 26 59
Management fee income ERBRA (ii) - 360
AV Concept Holdings Limited ,I 63
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) (continued)

(b)

164

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The sales and purchases were made according to the cost of products.

The management fee was charged with reference to the actual staff
costs incurred.

The handling charges arose from the purchase of products for a joint
venture arranged by the Group, which in return received a handling
income at an amount mutually agreed between the parties.

Rental income was charged in accordance with the respective tenancy
agreements.

Interest income was charged at 6% (2013: 6%) on the amount due
from an associate.

The trademark licence income from an associate was made with
reference to the actual cost incurred.

The consideration was mutually agreed in accordance with the terms of
the sale and purchase agreement.

Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

The Group’s key management personnel are the executive
directors of the Company, further details of their compensation
are included in note 8(b) to the financial statements.

AV Concept Holdings Limited
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ZE—=5:6%) ZFIEUHE -
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

45,

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2014

Financial assets

EHPEMIARRERNHERE 2 RESEN

SMIAZAE
T:
—E-mF
SRMEE
Group
r&E

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

BREZRAVEBIE
ZEMEE
Designated Available-
as such for-sale
Loans and upon initial Held for financial
receivables recognition trading assets Total
EXR ROSRIAR AHE
R E B FEEE SREE CH
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FAT FaERT FaER FaR FHAT
Due from associates i A-UNTEe 21 33,726 - - - 33,726
Convertible bonds AakES 2 - 6,509 - - 6,509
Available-for-sale investments ARHERE 23 - - - 42,920 42,920
Trade receivables B S B 25 219,222 - - - 219,222
Finandial assets included in prepayments, SABNFE RER
deposits and other receivables Hit BB e BEE 26 127,932 - - - 127,932
Equity investments at fair value through FREREATEETIR
profit or loss RAIRE 27 - 143,019 56,091 = 199,110
Cash and bank balances Be RBOER 28 90,441 - - = 90,441
471,321 149,528 56,091 42,920 719,860
2014 —ZE—F
Financial liabilities £ =R
Group
rE
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost
2 18 88 FX A 51 BR
ZEMERE
Notes HK$'000
Bt E FET
Trade payables FERTE B ERK 30 107,216
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings Bt 28R 1T I B M5 5K 31 510,714
Finance lease payables FE < b & B RK0E 32 718
Financial guarantee obligation M EREE 33 5,694
624,342
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45. TRITE 28 @m0
(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments EHRMemI AR REHREGERK ZRmESED
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) T (%)
2013 —E—=%F
Financial assets SREE
Group
i3]
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
BBBmREATEEE
ZEREE
Designated Available-
as such for-sale
Loans and upon initial Held for financial
receivables recognition trading assets Total
ER R iNIpg A&
EBYWFHE — BREET REEE SREE At
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i3 FAT FHT THT FAT FAL
Due from a joint venture FEU— FﬁA%ﬁﬁmﬁ 20 61 - - - 61
Due from associates G -UNG 21 24,251 - - 24,251
Convertible bonds ABRESR 2 - 71,262 - - 71,262
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 23 = = = 59,332 59,332
Trade receivables EWE 5ER 25 224,528 - - = 224,528
Financial assets included in prepayments, FABRMFRE Re K
deposits and other receivables Hit Bz ¢ MEE 26 38,955 - - = 38,955
Equity investments at fair value BRBHEATEEIRZ
through profit or loss RAKE 27 - 117,621 68,608 = 186,229
Cash and bank balances Re RFTER 28 88,981 = = = 88,981
376,776 188,883 68,608 59,332 693,599
2013 —E—=%F
Financial liabilities cRERs
Group
RE
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost
T8 S K ARSI BR
ot 3= K
Notes HK$'000
Bt AT
Liabilities classified as held for sale PERFELEZEE 29 21,270
Trade payables f1‘fﬁ5‘; BR3X 30 201,407
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings Bt 2 ER1T R B MK 31 513,904
Finance lease payables }Iﬁnﬂiéﬁﬁ’s\r i 32 1,160
Financial guarantee obligation MBEREE 33 1,410
739,151
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 45,

(continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued)

AR5 R 2R Y

31 March 2014 = —M&=/A=+—H

EWMIBEZSE @

FHP SR T AR SRS MEERE 2 RESEN
T: (&)

Financial assets SREE
Company
Loans and receivables
¥ NN
ERREWFIE
2014 2013
—E-MmF —T—=
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
Due from subsidiaries NGB 19 539,723 491,187
Cash and bank balances BHe RRITET 28 549 643
540,272 491,830
Financial liabilities SHEaE
Financial liability
at amortised cost
RS A S BR
Zemas
2014 2013
—Z2—F —F—=
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FET FAT
Due to subsidiaries AN EEPNGIE ] 19 51,128 48,182
Financial guarantee obligation MG HEREE 33 5,694 1,410
56,822 49,592
TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 46. TREECER

At 31 March 2014, the Group entered into trade receivable factoring
arrangements (the “Arrangements”) and transferred certain trade
receivables to banks with a carrying amount of HK$5,300,000 (2013:
HK$8,399,000). In the opinion of the directors, the Group has retained
the substantial risks and rewards, which include default risks relating
to such Arrangements, and accordingly, continued to recognise the
full carrying amounts under the Arrangements and the associated
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings with a carrying amount of
HK$2,762,000 (2013: HK$7,728,000) as collateralised bank advance.

R-Z—NME=ZA=+—H0 AE@ETHRKZ
SERFRELH ([ZERH])  THEEEESHE
75,300,000/ 7T ( =& — =4 : 8,399,000/ 7T )
ZETERKBSERTERIT EERE  AEER
BRALIEBREER BEEARELEZE
WER At HEB2BHEREZSELHETZ
FRESELRESE/52,762,0008 7T (ZE—=
£ 17,728,000/ 70 ) 2 I EAMT B iR 1T R E b fE R
AEEFRITERK
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 47.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximates to fair values, are as follows:

ESHTAANFEERAFEESR
e

AEBRAAASBIA (RASERATEE
ARMIBEERIN) ZEASERAFERENT :

Group REE
Carrying amounts Fair values
RESHE NFEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-ImF —T=F% “E-MmE —T—=%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THER TET
Financial assets CREE
Convertible bonds AR ES 6,509 71,262 6,509 71,262
Available-for-sale investments fHHERE 42,920 59,332 42,920 59,332
Non-current deposits and other receivables  JE7RENZ & & E b fE KA 680 21,119 680 21,119
Equity investments at fair value BERBERRATERSIE
through profit or loss RAEZE 199,110 186,229 199,110 186,229
249,219 337,942 249,219 337,942
Financial liabilities cREE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings Bff 588 17 J E A & 5% 510,714 513,904 510,714 513,904
Finance lease payables ERREEETR 718 1,160 718 1,160
511,432 515,064 511,432 515,604

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments
reasonably approximated to their fair values as at 31 March 2014 and
31 March 2013.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, amounts due from a joint venture and associates, trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables (other than non-current deposits and other receivables),
trade payables, liabilities classified as held for sale and financial
guarantee obligation approximate to their carrying amounts largely due
to the short term maturities of these instruments.
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The corporate finance
team reports directly to the chief financial officer and the audit
committee. At each reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments and determines
the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process and results
are discussed with the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

The fair values of non-current deposits and other receivables, finance
lease payables and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for
finance lease payables and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
as at 31 March 2014 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market
prices. The fair values of convertible bonds have been estimated using
a discounted cash flow valuation model based on assumptions that
are supported by observable or unobservable market prices or rates.
The fair values of unlisted available-for-sale equity investments have
been estimated using a discounted cash flow valuation model based
on assumptions that are not supported by observable market prices
or rates. The fair value of key management insurance classified as an
available-for-sale investment is based on account value less surrender
charge, quoted by the vendor.

47.

B RS R 2R Y
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EMTALATFEERATFEESER
B8 (®m)

AEEENBEEREY CLMEENARET
HESBMIAATEEY HERER 0 LHE
BN EEAE N EEREREEEER &

B VEEHETEAZEI2BAE  BENKE
ECEHIMERE - BEXZES—FMER
PN FEMBRBEEIREEBERER -

CRMEENBBEZAFEEAEETARBRR
75 (MIFREFBRHEE)ENRS T ZAXR
SFEBARK - NITTEARBRRIARGEERFE
&:

FnBEe REMERFOR BN BRERERA
NP BARTT R E AR fE 5k 2 A F B ATy A AR U
G EERBRATEHE TAZREFX
RIEHARRSRENRMAE N T M4
ZA=+—8 AEEREENEERE TR LN
BERTT R E 8 SR i EE A 2 B W R R AR R E A
TEK-

EHRARE 2 AFEETIRIBEARTEE -
AR ESZ A FEEDMARSRENRGEE
BARBERREE MZERXIVATEEXS
ABEMSERIEREF -FFLTAHRBE
BAKRE 2 A HERDLHNARSREFREER
HRBERGE  MEXERIXLARKAATERTS
ERREREXF - DE/AHEEREZEE
EEABRBRZAFEERREFEEREFRE
A (RHETHRE)HE-
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 47.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation
of financial instruments:

EHMTAAFEERAFEESR

248 ()

CRTABEIERTABREHAEBHRMRNAT

Significant Sensitivity of
Valuation unobservable the input to
technique input Value fair value
R E M BEXFABEBAE EE BAEHAFEEZBRE
Convertible bond Discounted Weight average cost of 17% 1% increase (decrease) in WACC
cash flow method capital (WACC) would result in decrease
(increase) in fair value by
HK$265,000 (HK$344,000)
Ak ES ReRngfnix INETEARK A 17% MEFHERKAR EF (FRE)
1%HEBBATFEETRE (L
F+)265,000/% 7T (344,0007%
T)

Terminal growth rate 3% 1% increase (decrease) in terminal
growth rate would result in
increase (decrease) in fair value
by HK$161,000 (HK$186,000)

KA RE 3% KABRE EF (TR)1%HK
BYRNTEELA (THR)
161,0007% 7t (186,000 7T )

Terminal year operating 50.4% 1% increase (decrease) in terminal

margin year operating margin would
result in increase (decrease)
in fair value by HK$36,000
(HK$36,000)

IR A % 50.4% KAEELEFIREE LT ()
1% EHAFEBELA (T
F%)36,0007% 7T (36,000/% 7T )

Bond discount rate 21.4% 1% increase (decrease) in bond
discount rate would result in
decrease (increase) in fair value
by HK$26,000 (HK$27,000)

EFFRE 21.4% BHRTRE LA () 1% K5
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 47. TRMI AR TFEERQAFEESR
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) A8 ()
Significant Sensitivity of

Valuation unobservable the input to

technique input Value fair value

fEER BEXATABRBAE EE BAEHLALEEZSRE
Unlisted available-for-sale Discounted Long term growth rate 3% 1% increase (decrease) in long

equity investment cash flow method term growth rate would

FEMARLERSRE ReEnEFIA

Key management N/A
insurance classified as an
available—for-sale investment

NERAHEERBEZEE TER
BEABRR

REER X

Discount rate

HHE

Discount for lack of
marketability

R A HEN 2R

Account value

RPERE

Surrender charge

RiRE

Discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts of premiums
and discounts determined by the Group that market participants would

take into account when pricing the investments.

result in increase (decrease) in
fair value by HK$2,054,000
(HK$1,781,000)

3% RAEERE A (TF)1%585
BRNFEELA (TR
2,054,000/ 7T (1,781,000/%
7T)

17% 1% increase (decrease)

in discount rate would result
in decrease (increase) in
fair value by HK$3,257,000
(HK$3,697,000)

17% THREEFH (TRI1%EEHR
SFEE TR (LEF)3,257,000
# 7T (3,697,000 7T )

15% 1% increase/(decrease)
in discount would result in
decrease/(increase) in fair value
by HK$366,000 (HK$366,000)
15% WEEA(TE)1%EEHA
FEETR,(LF)366,000
77T (366,00075 7T

HK$15,151,000 5% increase (decrease)
in account value would result in
decrease (increase) in fair value
by HK$758,000 (HK$758,000)
15,151,000/ BRPEBLEA (TFE)5%KEH
NFEE TR (EF)758,000
7T (758,000 7T )

HK$2,004,000 5% increase (decrease)
in surrender charge would
result in decrease (increase)
in fair value by HK$100,000
(HK$100,000)

2,004,000 REBA LA (THE)5%EEK
NFEE TR (LEF)100,000
77t (100,00078 7T)

MHEETRTEEARBERRMIZ2RENS
REETERBEBZEERTESHE-

AV Concept Holdings Limited ,I 7 1
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 47. ¢RI AL FEERATFEESER
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) e @
Fair value hierarchy N EEERES
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRITFAEREERTARTFEECERE
the Group's financial instruments: -
Assets measured at fair value: BAFEEHEZEE:
Group EE
As at 31 March 2014: R-E-WE=F=+—H:

Fair value measurement using

HEAFRERER

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

SERT % BEATEHE EAFTEE

ZHE BAE BAE
(F—8) (=) (E=8) &3t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THER THER
Convertible bond AR ES - - 6,509 6,509
Available-for-sale investments At ERE - = 42,920 42,920

Equity investments at fair value BRBHRATEEIEZ
through profit or loss R & 199,110 - - 199,110
199,110 - 49,429 248,539
1 72 AV Concept Holdings Limited
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 47.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

Group (continued)

As at 31 March 2013:

B RS R 2R Y

31 March 2014 = —&=/A=+—H

ERTIAEAFEERAFEESR
ZE @)

DR EESRRESE (5
BRAFEEHEZEE: (F)

rEE(#8)
R-F—=ZF=ZF=+—A:

Fair value measurement using

SEATEERERD
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EEMS BEAUHER  EATUER
2B BAE BAE
(£—E) (£=E) (B=[E) CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FTAT THAT
Convertible bonds AaRES - 65,381 5,881 71,262
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE - = 59,332 59,332
Equity investments at fair value FRERRATERIIR
through profit or loss RAEZE 186,229 - - 186,229
186,229 65,381 65,213 316,823
The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during the year FRN E=ZEAFEBEAEZZFHOT
are as follows:
2014 2013
—E-MmF =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Available-for-sale investments — unlisted: ~ AJ{EHERE —FF ¢
At 1 April E/\V_El H—H 65,213 15,091
Total gains recognised in other REMEEB AR Z
comprehensive income e 4258 494 1,847
Total gains/(losses) recognised in REBHERERZKE (Ei18)
statement of profit or loss FEEE] 628 (1,889)
Purchases BE 2,919 23,310
Disposal HE (19,825) =
Transfer from investments in associates EERBERRIZEE - 26,854
At 31 March R=A=+—8 49,429 65,213

The Company did not have any financial assets measured at fair value as
at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013.

The Group and the Company did not have any financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 March 2014 and 31 March 2013.

R-ZE-mE=A=t-AR=-Z—=4=§1
=+—B ARABFEARAFEREHZS

R=F—NE==+—H k=== j
=t—H AEERARABECARAFEE
AEZERmEE-

AV Concept Holdings Limited ,I 7 3
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets for which fair value is disclosed:

Group

As at 31 March 2014:

47. EMIEQNTFEERAFEEER

248 ()

AR EESRRSE (5
BEATEEZAE:

TEE
R-FE-—mWE=F=+—H:

Fair value measurement using

FEALEERER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SER T & BRAABEE EBAFUEE
ZHRE BAE BAE
(5-18) (5=8) ($=8) Ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT FHT TR TR
Non-current deposits and other receivables  JERENE & & H i fE Uk 5118 - - 680 680
As at 31 March 2013: RZFE—=F=H=+—H:
Fair value measurement using
SEATEERER
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BT BRABR  BATIER
ZHE BAE BAE
(£—E) (B=F) (B=E) G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET TAET
Non-current other receivables HIEm B eI IR - - 21,119 21,119
1 74 AV Concept Holdings Limited
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47. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 47. TRITEANFEERAFLEESEHK
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 248 ()
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AEEEERERS ()
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: WEAFEEZERS:
Group AEHE
As at 31 March 2014: R-FE—mFEF=HA=+—H:

Fair value measurement using

HEAFRERER

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EBTS BERAABE EBAFUEE

ZHRE BWAE BAE
(5—-18) (5=8) ($=8) Ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings  Kf 88817 & E £ 3¢ - 510,714 - 510,714
Finance lease payables ERNRERERE - 718 = 718
- 511,432 - 511,432

As at 31 March 2013: R-FE—=F=H=+—FH:

Fair value measurement using

FEAFEERGA

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

AR T 5 BERABE EANITER

2B BAE BAE
(F—8) ($=F&) ($=B) a4t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings Bfif 588 17 J E A {5 5% = 513,904 - 513,904
Finance lease payables EARERERER = 1,160 - 1,160
- 515,064 - 515,064

AV Concept Holdings Limited ,I 7 5
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 48. B EREEEERBEER

176

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank borrowings, finance lease payables, cash and bank balances,
and time deposits. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations. The Group
is also exposed to market price risk in respect of equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss and a key management insurance
comprising investment and insurance elements classified as an available-
for-sale investment.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are interest
rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and market price
risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings with floating interest rates.

The Group's funding policy uses short term interest-bearing debts to
finance its working capital requirements and interest-bearing debts
over one year or internal generated resources to finance its capital
investments. The Group borrows mainly at floating interest rates.
Interest-bearing debts over one year will only be considered for capital
investments and favourable market conditions.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax from continuing operations (through the
impact on floating rate borrowings).

FEEZTEZcHMIAGERSRITER BN
BMAEMEFRR R MRITEF ARERFK-
ZECRMIAZIEAB I REAEEEERSE -
rEBEEMZHESBEENAE PR KRE
SERRENBSER HMEASEEEERE
Fo REETEZEBRERAFEEIIRZRA
RERTEEBEASRR (BERERRRE
Do BR—BAHELERE) MEETER

G o
v

AEBeMmITAMEAZEERKR AT ERB -
SNERBE - EERR  RBESRRETERRE -
EZgRIAGEEHERESRAR ZBOR R
MR o

MRER
AEEETBNEEHHEELAREERANE
BEF BN RS2 M BRTRAMEREM -

AREE 2 B HEAAE RN E EHRAHEEE
B2B/E WA—FUEZHBREBRALESLE
BRBNEEARE AKEZEREERTH
MEEFE - EEREAREREGN MR T
SER—FUALZHRER-

TRITENE L RBAER TR ZERT &
W EEE ET5 2 BBADEF (B BT SR

YR URETRERL AREH T FHESH
e

Group
TEE
Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
Increase/ before tax from
(decrease) in continuing
basis points operations
HEREERK 2
2E BR B AT R
#m, G ®im, CEd)
HK$'000
FET
2014 —E—mEF
Hong Kong dollars BT 10 (504)
Hong Kong dollars BT (10) 504
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

B RS R 2R Y

31 March 2014 = —&=/A=+—H

R REEEEREEK @®)

Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
Increase/ before tax from
(decrease) in continuing
basis points operations
SELEEB 2
2 B 354 Al A
#Zm,/ Crd) #m, CRd)
HK$'000
FHET
2013 =4
Hong Kong dollars BT 10 515
Hong Kong dollars BT (10) (515)
Foreign currency risk S [ B

The Group has no significant foreign currency risk because its business
is principally conducted in Hong Kong. Since the Hong Kong dollar is
pegged with the United States dollar, the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk is considered to be minimal.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties,
associates, joint ventures and related companies. It is the Group's
policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject
to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts
is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which comprise
cash and bank balances, convertible bonds, available-for-sale
investments, equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, and
deposits and other receivables, arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. The Company is also exposed to credit risk through the
granting of financial guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in
note 33 to the financial statements.

AEBYESAIINERR BETENEBLE
EHo MBI EETTEN  MAKEAEERZ
SN BB ARAR R R 8

FERR
AEERERAMEBAEZE=H HEQ
A AECERAMEARETER - AR

BERAMABRMEEETERE 2R PHALE
EERERRF I BUGRBEGER IR ER
HER MASBAHERZIZRERIL TEK -

RAEBEMeEE (BIERe RRTET
AmRES AHEERE BRBEREATE
BEYERZ AT A A RIS K H A B GRIE )
T RERBEAXRZIHUFEAMELE ZeAR
HERZETAZEESE AARMEE L
BEARMAREERR B@EE —SHFBERYH
AR M IR IRE -
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 48. IR EEHERBER (#)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERRE (&)
Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third HRAEERERAMEBAELE=7 B

parties, associates, joint ventures and related companies, there is no
requirement for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by industry sector.
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group
as the customer bases of the Group’s trade receivables are widely
dispersed in different sectors and industries.

NE - RECENEREARETESR  FitHA
ERR -FERARETEDRES /RXH5HF -
TR MIRTREE - AR AR EERE 5K
ZEPERTIERD AR TRAEERITE - Eitt
AEETESEET 2 EERE-

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to credit BAAEEREEKE SRR ER 2 E8RER 2
risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 25 to the H— T8 5T EIR T B 1 Rk MY sE 255 4R
financial statements. B

Liquidity risk RBESER

The maturity profile of the Group'’s financial liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,
is as follows:

AREE 2 S B A ER RS RS REZT ORI
BNRZBHERAT

Group REE
2014
—E-MmE
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years
1 year or on lessthan  but less than Over
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
1E RS 1E0E 250 E
RERER BL % BHR5E SENE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TR FET TER TER
Trade payables ERES 107,216 - - - 107,216
Interest-bearing bank and other 2. fﬁﬂﬁﬁf R (HsE)
borrowings (Note) 495,847 1,137 3,754 18,314 519,052
Finance lease payables ERBEREFE 268 197 345 - 810
Guarantees given to banks in connection ¥R FAE L EZEERET
with facilities granted to joint ventures 88472 1R 690,387 - - - 690,387
1,293,718 1,334 4,099 18,314 1,317,465
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 48. HEEMREEBERBE @®
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) RBESER (8
Group (continued) REE ()
2013
=%
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years
1 year or on less than but less than Over
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
1ERH 165 PEE
RERER BLi2E BARSEF SELE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT AT TAT TAT TAT
Trade payables REGE 201,407 - - - 201,407
Interest-bearing bank and other W R ER1T REMAETR (HizE)
borrowings (Note) 498,844 1,589 4,766 15,224 520,423
Finance lease payables ERNRERSHE 488 272 551 = 1,311
Liabilities directly associated with the ANEARELE EERR
assets classified as held for sale (Note) 1B Z & & (HizF) 21,270 - - - 21,270
Guarantees given to banks in connection 4R FASME 2 EERET
with facilities granted to joint ventures 81T Z 1R 534,962 - - = 534,962
1,256,971 1,861 5317 15,224 1,279,373
The maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities as at the RRTF 2 ¢ @A ERRE BB RFIZTORT
end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted WK EEAER T :
payments, is as follows:
b N
Company
2014 2013
—ZE-0F =%
Within Within
1 year or on 1 year or on
demand demand
1FRE 14E A3k
REREE BEXREER
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Due to subsidiaries AN EENGI ] 51,128 48,182
Guarantees given to banks in connection ¥ FHEB AR Z{EEERET
with facilities granted to subsidiaries RITZHER 460,358 508,602
Guarantees given to banks in connection ¥E FAEGEZEERET
with facilities granted to joint ventures RIT 2 R 690,387 534,962
1,201,873 1,091,746
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 48. B EMRERE B FERER (@)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESE (&)
Group (continued) AEE ()
Note: Bt 3 -
As of 31 March 2014, included in interest-bearing bank and other borrowings in R-ZZE-—NEF=ZA=Z1+—B HWERTREMER
the amount of HK$19,675,000 (2013: HK$23,671,000) was a mortgage loan. As 19,675,000 7t ( = F — =4 : 23,671,000/ 7T ) R B &
of 31 March 2013, included in liabilities classified as held for sale in the amount of RBEF -R_ZT—=F=A=+—0 2HEARELE
HK$21,270,000 was also a mortgage loan. The loan agreements of these mortgage 2 E11&21,270,0007 TR N B IRILBE R - 2 SR BE R
loans contain a repayment on-demand clause giving the banks the unconditional right ZERBHEHBIRERETIRT BT RITEGEER
to call in the loans at any time and therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity FERFUR B B3 Eitt - gt BB E RN S - AR OB
profile, the total amounts are classified as “on demand”. BEEREE] -
Market price risk ™ 18 & k& ]
Market price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities T B R /R AR AN 15 B 1 B & 37 BB K P 2
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the BHRAZHFAFEETRZAR AKRERAR
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to market price risk “F A=t ASBREERAKAZ
arising from individual equity investments classified as trading equity ERIRA A (KF27) RO BR—EAHLE
investments (note 27) and a key management insurance classified T&*éiz;gﬁ}i/\éi{%ﬁﬁ(Bﬁﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁm{%
as an available-for-sale investment (note 23) as at 31 March 2014. BB - AERBAI S EHIRE R BB R
Most of the Group's listed investments are listed on the Hong Kong REZFHFRZEHETBDRERS ([BEB
Stock Exchange and Korean Securities Dealers Automated Quotations 5] ) T 3R HA R A R A 9 2 Th B s
("KOSDAQ") and were valued at quoted market prices at the end of the HitfE-
reporting period.
The market equity index for the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and R|ERRE R FARELZ RS A EXEH
KOSDAQ, at the close of business of the nearest trading day in the year RERE RNEBB R RBERATER 2 W5
to the end of the reporting period, and their respective highest and AEH UARBEEZBZFARS RBERBUK
lowest points during the year are as follows: T
31 March High/low 31 March High/low
2014 2014 2013 2013
—E-ImF —E-DmF —T—=F% —T-=F
=A=+-H e/ &K =A=+—H &/ &IE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR FAL TAL
Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index BAE-BEER 22,151 24,112/ 22,300 23,945/
19,426 18,056
Korean Securities Dealers Automated REEFRIHEHE 541.58 588.54/ 555.02 556.63/
Quotations BERERSR 478.68 44635
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B RS R 2R Y
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5% change
in the fair values of the listed equity investments, a key management
insurance classified as an available-for-sale investment and convertible
bonds with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit
before tax from continuing operations and the Group's equity, based on

48.

R REEEEREEK @®)

mER R (8
TRIIREMAEH

BURHETEZERT -

BB SHEERE 2 REERBAE - EmikAKR
B DEA—AAHEEREZTZERARR
@ MRS ES 2 R EESEE5% NEER
BREZBZHBBRANGN R AEE R 2 BRE

their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. DT
Increase/
decrease
in profit
before tax from Increase/
Carrying continuing decrease
amount operations in equity*
BEREEL
RR%E AR R Em
IRE<E 01| R B, m L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE&T F#ET
2014 —E-ImF
Equity investments at fair value FRBEEAFEETEZ
through profit or loss R E 199,110 9,956 -
Key management insurance classified DR —EAHEEREZ
as an available-for-sale investment FEEEBABRR 13,147 - 657
Convertible bond AR ES 6,509 325 -
Increase/
decrease Increase/
Carrying in profit decrease
amount before tax in equity*
B 54 A A e 7 *
FRE S o, m o, m
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT FHIT
2013 = =fF
Equity investments at fair value ERBEREAFEAEYEZ
through profit or loss RAZE 186,229 9,311 =
Key management insurance classified SR —EAHEEREZ
as an available-for-sale investment FEEEASRR 12,653 - 633
Convertible bonds AR (E 5 71,262 3,563 -

* Excluding retained profits

* TRERE
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48. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 48. B EMEE HERBER (®)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise the shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
Group is required to comply with certain capital requirements set out
in the bank lending facilities. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
March 2014 and 31 March 2013.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the total capital. The Group's policy is to maintain the
gearing ratio at less than 75%. Net debt includes trade payables,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, liabilities classified as held
for sale and finance lease payables, less cash and cash equivalents and
equity investments at fair value through profit or loss. Capital includes
total equity. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods are
as follows:

BEXER
AEEEAERE 2 XEABRRBARERER
BN BRFBBRIERLE ULBHE
BREREAZBREE-

AEBBBEEERAZEBEEEREALERNEER
EE AR -AEE N SHEFAERNRRIRE 2K
B MBRRFEEEANBETHRARESARE
R - ANEEBAETRITEEMESRZETER
BRERBE-_ZT—NF=A=+—HE=Z
—=F=A=1t—HIEFEAN AEEEEENR
ZEZ BRSEFBEEE -

AEENBEABBLR (EBFHERNERE
BEREA-AEEZBERDBEAAFLX
HIFRIS%AT -ERFREBRERNE SRR
M RRITREMER DERFIEHEZEER
ENBERETE RAESEERRESER AR
BERBREAFEENRZRARE -BABHE
BRERE - NREPRERT Z2ERB B EN
T
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Group REE
2014 2013
—E-0F —E—=%
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Interest-bearing bank and B B ERTT R B M {E 5K
other borrowings 510,714 513,904
Trade payables FEfT B 5 BRK 107,216 201,407
Finance lease payables FEf R E R ERIA 718 1,160
Liabilities classified as held for sale SEARBELEZEE - 21,270
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B EekERBSER (87,755) (86,987)
Less: Equity investments at fair value BB ABERATEEYERZ
through profit or loss fRA& & (199,110) (186,229)
Net debt BI85 331,783 464,525
Total capital ENCEE 668,653 647,227
Gearing ratio BEARBEEE 50% 72%
AV Concept Holdings Limited
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Notes to Financial Statements

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts in the statement of profit or loss have
been reclassified to conform with the current year’s presentation, which
the directors consider to more appropriately present the results of the
Group. Furthermore, as a result of the Group's decision to discontinue
the operation of SOUL® headphone business during the year, the
comparative consolidated statement of profit or loss has been re-
presented as if the operation discontinued during the current year had
been discontinued at the beginning of the comparative period.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 9 June 2014, New
Concept, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered into a sales
and purchase agreement to dispose of an available-for-sale investment
with a carrying amount of HK$29,773,000 as at 31 March 2014 to
NEEIL, an associate of the Group, at a consideration of HK$30,000,000.
The transaction is expected to be completed during the financial year
ending 31 March 2015 and the financial impacts of this transaction
have not been reflected in these financial statements.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 27 June 2014.
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List of Investment Properties
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Approximate Effective equity
Address gross areas Lot number Lease expiry interest to the Group ~ Usage
AEEES
it BHAERE it B R ERERE] ERkE Rz
HONG KONG
B
Flat 302, 3/F, Block G, Telford Gardens, 603.00 sq.ft. NKI 5744 2047 100% Residential
No. 33 Wai Yip Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
NENBEBEFEBRBRILECEE0E 603.00F 7R NKI 5744 “EMEE s
MAINLAND CHINA
REAL
Unit A, 25/F, Noble Center, 1006 Fu Zhong San Road, 325.07 sq.m. N/A 2053 100%  Office
Futian District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province
ERERYMEEBET=IK10065 A BT OEAZ  32507F 77K TEm TRZF YN
The whole of 28th Floor, Tower One, Neptune Center, 1,088.42 sq.m. N/A 2048 100%  Services
Gaoxin District, Chengdu City, Sichuan Province apartments
W)l &RETEHEEF DL —HeERE 10884275k @R “EONAF REALE
SINGAPORE
F 03K
219 Handerson Road, #10-01, 185.00 sq.m. N/A Freehold property 100% Residential
Henderson Industrial Park, Singapore
185.00F 77 K TER KARENE s
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